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As a bank with over 76 years of history in Hong Kong,
Dah Sing Bank has been committed to our vision to be “the
local bank with a personal touch”. Customer centricity
lies at the heart of everything we do, as we continually
uplift the quality of our products and services. We strive
to grow with our customers in Hong Kong, the Greater Bay
Area and beyond, delivering on our promise - “Together
We Progress and Prosper”.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 83, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Bank in 1983. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, the ultimate holding company
of the Bank), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”,
the immediate holding company of the Bank), Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company
Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited) and Macau Insurance Company Limited.
He was a member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG until December
2023. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong
Chamber of Foreign Investors. He was the Vice President of
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology and has over 60 years of experience
in banking and finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 71, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served
and managed various departments before appointed as
an Executive Director in 1989, promoted to the Managing
Director in 2000 and then appointed as the Vice Chairman
in April 2011. He is the Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries
of the Group. He was the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited for the period from June 2008 to August 2023. He is
a Non-Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of Bank of
Chongging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai) in
which the Group has a 13.2% equity interest. Mr. Wong is an
Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The
International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. He holds
a Higher Diploma in Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic College (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and has over 45 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 54, is currently a Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank and an Executive
Director and the Group General Manager of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”). He joined the Bank in
2000, and was appointed as an Executive Director in 2005
and a Vice Chairman in March 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed
as Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in
August 2017. From April 2011 to June 2017, he was an
Executive Director, Managing Director and Chief Executive
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”). He is also a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited
(formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976)
Limited), Macau Insurance Company Limited and Macau
Pension Fund Management Company Limited. Mr. Wong is
currently an Executive Committee Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers, a Non-official member of the Industry
Advisory Committee on Long Term Business established
by the Insurance Authority, and a Non-official Member of
the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of the Trade and
Industry Department. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard University, U.S.A. and
a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from King’s College,
London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and Wales
and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Bank, DSFH and
DSBG.
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Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 63, joined the Bank as the Group Financial
Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997,
responsible for the overall financial management and
control, operations and IT functions of the Group for a
number of years. He was promoted as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011 and was
re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also an
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), an Executive Director
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), as well as a
Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”). He was appointed
as the Chairman of DSB China in November 2023 and a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG in January 2024. Mr. Wang was
the Group Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Bank,
DSFH and DSBG until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified
accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of
Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial
management and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 56, joined the Bank in 1998, and was
appointed as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the
Deputy Chief Executive in August 2011. He was appointed
as an Executive Director and the Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in June 2017. Mr. Mayhew
is currently a Director of Dah Sing Insurance Company
Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited) and Macau Insurance Company Limited. He
also serves as the Group Head of Treasury, Global Markets &
Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible for its treasury
and corporate finance activities. He was an Executive
Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited during the
period from August 2004 to May 2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics)
from the University of London. He has over 30 years
of experience in financial services both in the U.K. and
Hong Kong.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Deputy Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 57, joined the Bank as Head of Retail Banking
in February 2012, responsible for the development and
management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking
and vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive
Director in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in May
2014. She was further appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive
of the Bank and Group Head of Personal Banking in April
2022. Ms. Wong holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from Brunel University (UK) via Henley Management
College and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong. She has over 30 years of experience in retail
and personal banking business with other banks operating
in Hong Kong, including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC
Bank International.
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Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Ma, aged 57, joined the Bank as Group Head of Corporate
Banking in February 2020, responsible for overseeing and
supervising corporate banking business. She was appointed
as an Executive Director and an Alternate Chief Executive
of the Bank in February 2021. She has over 30 years of solid
banking experience in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom
and the United States, mainly in commercial and corporate
banking with a full spectrum of clients in various sectors.
Ms. Ma attained a Bachelor of Science in Economics from
The London School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Chan, aged 52, joined the Bank as General Manager and
Head of Wealth Management in 2009, and was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Bank in March 2019. He
was further appointed as an Alternate Chief Executive of
the Bank in June 2022. Mr. Chan is Group Head of Wealth
Management and is responsible for the formulation and
execution of overall business strategies of the Bank’s wealth
management business, including securities brokerage,
retail wealth management, and private banking. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Cambridge
and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the Harvard Business School. He is a Chartered Financial
Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private Wealth
Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association.
Mr. Chan has over 25 years of extensive experience in various
areas including financial services, manufacturing and public
administration.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 83, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) and Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited
(formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976)
Limited). He is currently the Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee (“AC”) of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG. He served
as the Chairman of the AC of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG until
December 2023. Mr. Sze is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
which was delisted in January 2022 and Mr. Sze resigned in
February 2022. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He was a former partner of
an international firm of accountants with which he practised
for over 20 years.
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Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in December
2017, a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee (“RMCC”) of the Bank in August 2018 and the
Chairman of the RMCC of the Bank in June 2020 and a
member of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Bank in June
2021. He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”) in December 2017 and a member of
the AC of DSBG in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of
the Finance Committee and Nominating and Governance
Committee of The Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which is
listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an INED and a member
of the Nomination Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment
Trust (which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is an INED and a member
of the Finance Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of First Pacific Company Limited (which is listed
on the Stock Exchange). He is also a director of Vision 2047
Foundation and a member of the Supervisory Committee
of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a Hong Kong unit trust
whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange). He is the
Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited and a member of the International Advisory
Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics of The
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong
Kong from December 2008 to November 2014 and a member
of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock
Exchange from July 2015 to July 2016. He was an INED and
a member of the AC of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(the parent company of the Company) from June 2013 to
December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the
Head of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and
served as the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management
Company until July 2015. He joined Jardine Matheson
Holdings Group in 1984 and held various positions in
Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003, he joined
HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as
Chief Executive, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served
as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of
Morgan Stanley Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business
School, U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and
a BA degree (in Political Science) from Stanford University,
U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in December 2018.
He is also an INED and a member of the Audit Committee of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, an INED of Octopus
Holdings Limited and Octopus Cards Limited. He was a
financial services partner of KPMG Hong Kong from 1991
to 2006 and Managing Partner of KPMG’s Shanghai office
from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy was the chief operating
officer and executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission during the period from 2006 to 2010 and he
subsequently took up a role as the Managing Director of
HSBC Hong Kong’s Global Banking Division from 2010 to
2012. Mr. Kennedy was appointed as Special Advisor to
the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEX”) in January 2013 and subsequently served
as the Group Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013
to December 2017. He continued to serve as Senior Advisor
of HKEX until July 2018. Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting and
Financial Administration from the University of Bangor in
the United Kingdom and has over 40 years of experience in
the financial services industry encompassing auditing and
professional advisory services, regulation, risk management,
banking and listed company management.
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Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”), a member of the Audit
Committee (“AC”) and a member of Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of the Bank in May 2020. He
was appointed as the Chairman of the AC of the Bank in
January 2024. He is currently an INED and the Chairman
of the AC of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited. Mr. Winkelmann joined
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984 and was admitted
to partnership in 1990 to become a member of the first
group of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice
in Hong Kong. He specialized in the audits of financial
institutions, both local and international. He was partner-
in-charge of PwC’s risk and compliance matters for Greater
China for 14 years up to June 2014. He was also the leader
of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function overseeing
auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he joined
the governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and
subsequently was appointed to the Management Board
of PwC China and Hong Kong. Following his retirement
from PwC Hong Kong in June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was
engaged as a senior advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on risk
and quality matters during the period from July 2014 to
December 2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED and
a Non-Industry Member of the General Committee of the
Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-IA Eligible
DP Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance
Authority. He was the Chairman of the Financial Reporting
Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) from 2004 to 2009 and the
President of HKICPA in 2009. In 2005, he was appointed
to the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform and
served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the
Chief Executive Officer of Financial Reporting Council of
Hong Kong (now known as the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council) from April 2016 to March 2019. He is a
fellow member of the HKICPA. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Business) Degree from Trinity College, Dublin.

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in March
2019. He was appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”) in June 2021 and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Bank and
DSBG in January 2024. Mr. Tam was an INED of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited during the period from December
2018 to June 2021 and a member of the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of the Bank from March 2019
to December 2023. Mr. Tam started his career with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in
1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999.
In March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and
was the Deputy General Manager and Head of Commercial
Banking during 2003 to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from
2008 until his retirement in 2012. He was a director of Yantai
Bank, a city commercial bank in Yantai, from December 2012
to June 2017. He resigned as a Non-Executive Director of
Nameson Holdings Limited in April 2022 and retired as an
INED of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in June 2022. Mr. Tam
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The Chartered Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an
associate of The Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University
of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of
experience in commercial banking industry in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chan, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of the
Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Bank and Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited in January 2024. From March 2022 to
December 2023, she was an INED and a member of the AC,
the Connected Transactions Control Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Strategy Committee,
and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Bank. Ms. Chan joined Bank
of Communications Co. Limited, Hong Kong Branch
(“BOCOM”) as a management trainee in July 1981. She was
the Assistant General Manager of BOCOM from April 1992
to June 1998, primarily responsible for the formulation
and implementation of the operation procedures for
trade finance, loan administration and bancassurance
business, and she also led the trade finance and loan
operations centralization project. Ms. Chan was the
Deputy General Manager of BOCOM from July 1998 to
March 2021 responsible for overseeing the daily operation
of trade finance, loan administration, remittance and
retail banking business and the launch of private banking
business. She was appointed as Alternate Chief Executive
of BOCOM in August 2002. Ms. Chan was a Director of Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited from September 1999
to October 2019 and was appointed as the Chairman in
June 2006. She was the Vice Chairman, Director and Chief
Executive of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
before her retirement in June 2021. She has over 38 years of
experience in the financial industry. Ms. Chan is an associate
member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers, United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (“HKIB”).
She is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and a Certified Banker of HKIB. Ms. Chan holds a Master of
Science degree in Information and Technology Management
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of
Corporate Finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank and
an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in January 2024.
Mr. Cheung worked with DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
(“DBS”) from July 2009 to December 2022 where he served
as Managing Director and Head of Institutional Banking
Group in Hong Kong from June 2011 until his retirement in
December 2022, responsible for growing DBS’s franchise in
the corporate and commercial banking businesses in Hong
Kong. He was also the Alternate Chief Executive of DBS from
December 2012 to December 2022. Prior to joining DBS,
he was the Regional General Manager, North East Asia and
General Manager of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Prior to such appointments,
Mr. Cheung held senior positions in corporate commercial
banking and risk management with major international
banks including Citibank, Hong Kong, ABN AMRO Bank
N.V., Hong Kong and Rabobank, Hong Kong Branch.
Mr. Cheung has over 40 years of corporate and commercial
banking experience. Mr. Cheung is currently as an INED of
K. Wah International Holdings Limited and Yuexiu Property
Company Limited (both are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited). He is the Chairman of the Board
of Governors of World Green Organisation, a member of
the Hong Kong Academy of Finance and a member of the
Advisory Committee on Accounting and Finance of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was a member of
the Advisory Board of Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation from 2011 to 2016 and a member of the Banking
Industry Training Advisory Committee from 2021 to 2023.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cristo Chi-Leung Chow
Group Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Chow, aged 56, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Bank in June 2021 and was re-designated as
the Group Chief Financial Officer in April 2022, responsible
for the financial management and control functions of the
Group. Mr. Chow has over 25 years of solid accounting and
finance experience in the banking industry and had held
various senior positions in financial institutions. He has
extensive experience in financial and regulatory reporting
and tax, financial control, capital management, budgeting,
financial and business analysis. Mr. Chow holds a Master
of Science in Finance degree from University of Michigan,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Business degree from Monash
University, Australia. He is a Certified Public Accountant and
a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Ms. Betty Wai-Yee Chung
Group Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of
Information Technology

Ms. Chung, aged 58, joined the Bank in January 2019
as the Deputy Chief Operating Officer and Group Head
of Information Technology, and was appointed as the
Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in April 2020. She was
re-designated as the Group Chief Operating Officer and
Group Head of Information Technology in April 2022.
Ms. Chung has over 30 years of solid banking and IT
experience. Prior to joining the Bank, she held various
senior IT management positions in multinational and
regional financial institutions. Ms. Chung holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Science degree in
Computer Science from Purdue University, U.S.A.

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 52, joined the Bank in January 2018 as
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources
Division. Ms. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the
human resources field, of which 27 years are in the banking
and financial industry. She graduated from the University of
Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts degree followed by
a Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resources Management.
Ms. Chan is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of Personnel
and Development of the U.K. and was awarded the “HR
Leadership Award” in 2010 Asia’s Best Employer Brand

Awards.

Mr. Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance

Mr. Wong, aged 58, joined the Bank in 2014 as General
Manager and Group Head of Compliance. Mr. Wong has
solid experience in managing regulatory compliance
and providing compliance service, with many years of
experience in the financial services sector and regulatory
supervision. Mr. Wong attained a Bachelor Degree of
Commerce (Accounting) from The University of Birmingham,
UK, a Master Degree of Finance from Curtin University
of Technology, Australia and a Master of Laws Degree in
International Corporate and Financial Law from University
of Wolverhampton, UK.

Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management

Mr. Lau, aged 53, joined the Bank in 2010 as the General
Manager and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to
become the Head of Risk Management and Control
Department within the Group Risk Division of the Bank in
2012. Mr. Lau was appointed as the Head of Group Risk
in April 2018 and was re-designated as Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management in April 2021. He
was further re-designated as the Group Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management in April 2022. He has
over 26 years of working experience covering mainly risk
management and other roles in the banking sector, and also
in regulatory supervision capacity. Mr. Lau attained a degree
in business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a master degree in business administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 51, joined the Bank in July 2007. He was the
Head of Corporate Development, Strategy and Investor
Relations of the Group before the appointment as a Director
of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Bank, in November 2018. He
was then appointed as an Executive Director of DSB China
in June 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer of DSB China in
July 2021. Mr. Ho has over 25 years of experience in finance
and banking industry in China and Hong Kong. He worked
for investment bank, international commercial bank and
international accounting firm before joining the Bank.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 59, joined the Bank and was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau), a key subsidiary of
the Bank, in January 2020. Mr. Lau has over 37 years of solid
banking experience in Hong Kong and Macau. He started his
career in banking by joining HSBC in 1986 and immediately
before joining the Bank, he was the CEO of HSBC Macau
Branch.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2023

19



20

EEERKRS

KRIRITARAR (THRRT IR AER) EFEREERE
BT K EZEEERT R RRERERR
HMREZTERARZEXEAEREBRGEEE =77
EEFEXCREFREEELVTHEE - RFNEEER
ARERRERRAEMBIET R RETERHMHENN
RULRAABITHREIMNEE -

FIRTTRFEE TR E B ERRER » RENEERE
BREEATREER (28R WEEREMIES] ° &IR1T
TMEFTAEEREN oS ERE HIEEBRTMCG-1T414
SR EEN R EE R (1C6-11) K CG-5ERERH B E
18511 (TCG-51) » UBARABIUIFNTERRIF RN 2 H55]
RS TR E 21551 o

EEERRARER

FIFTERECEEARBURISERRNFRELEE RN
TEAL > MPIEEZENREF » URMMERITERESE
ERBERIEF T ERIHE

FITE0BFERM—EEFTTERBERIER (TZHEE
K2 1) o B ERIERZENR » RRITHZBERKERF
PR E ARG ST K B o

ZHERRIBFTHRBECC-1ZERMGER » BIARTZE
AEERRE > BEEFENET EFTHEBKEF
EFERTZZEE  EFNEELEE EFTNERK
Bl EREANSHREEENER - EFEREREEN
REFFE - EERBNER AFPRIUNRBHEE
EREEREFIEREE -

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

EFEEEBEERKARTEFREFZHA > 17
RIEARIRIT 2 AR E R S PRDIBRL T 2 R B Sh > M
BT AR T AT RS BT A HE R — U1 1 BT — 1)
TEHKAFEE - RETERER > EFGLEBRKAKRRE 7/
REMAERIR D E 2 1R o

EEg

FIRTEFEHARTZEE - BE  2EXYBRE2E
RREMF - -EFGERTHERER BB ARRTH

EH - U7 BARITEREESRIINECERIZHENERE

B EFEABTHM > EEERDENKRFRTEHER

£ UARRITIIA B RE B EIRE « 7R BEMAERIT

MENGERDE > (FRBEERRE -

RAERE > EFETAHIAER > EFARPITESFRIA
PHEUIFNTES - EFGMENT :

BITEE (TRITES))

FrE-ZE

=EE -1

FAHE—F/F 5 EFEEIERTTEAEE
F & —EITEA

R — B TR

TR BT

FRIERE — BT

BRAEER — BT TIEAR R

B FITES (TRIJFITES))
ekl

BlEREs
BER
BRI
BREESS

(220244151 HEEHEZ(T)
REYE

(3220244151 HEEEZT)
Rk )

(5220244151 HE/T)



The Board of Directors and the Management of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (the “Bank” or the “Group”) are committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices and devote considerable effort to identify and
formalize best practices. We believe that sound and effective
corporate governance practices are essential for delivering
sustainable value, enhancing a culture of business integrity
and maintaining investors’ confidence. Good corporate
governance promotes and safeguards the interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders including customers
and employees, thereby enhancing the credibility and
reputation of the Bank.

The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong, and observes the rules and guidelines issued
by regulatory authorities including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”). It has complied with the requirements
set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual module CG-1
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” (“CG-1”) and CG-5 entitled
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (“CG-5"),
Guidance on Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive
Directors and the circulars on Bank Culture Reform issued
by the HKMA in all material aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Bank has in place a corporate governance framework
which identifies all the key participants of the Group and the
ways which they relate to each other and their roles in the
application of effective governance policies and processes.

The Bank has adopted a set of Board Governance Policy and
Procedures (“BGPP”) since 2013. The BGPP of the Bank is
subject to regular review and update to ensure compliance
with the latest regulatory requirements.

The BGPP has been developed in pursuance of the
requirements of the CG-1, which has laid down the
governance framework and structures of the Bank covering
the responsibilities of the board, the organization and
functioning of the board, board committees, appointment of
directors and succession, board qualification and training,
delegation of authority and oversight of senior management,
evaluation of the board and individual directors, governance
in group structure, controls on structures established on
behalf of customers, risk management, and legal obligations
of directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The supervision of the management and direction of the
business and affairs of the Bank shall be vested in the Board,
who, in addition to the powers and authorities set out in the
Bank’s constitutional documents expressly conferred upon
them, may exercise all such powers and do all such acts and
things as may be exercised or done or approved by the Bank.
In discharging its responsibilities, the Board shall take into
account the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors
and other relevant stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank has the ultimate responsibility for the
supervision, leadership, operations and financial soundness
of the Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board
actively engages in the affairs of the Bank and is cognizant
of material changes in the Bank’s business and the external
environment in which the Bank operates. The Board acts
honestly and in good faith in the interest of the Bank, and
on an informed and prudent basis, having regard to the
legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other
relevant stakeholders.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
fifteen members, of whom eight are Executive Directors and
seven are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of
the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors (“ED”)

David Shou-Yeh Wong - Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang - Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew - Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong - Deputy Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma - Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan - Alternate Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”)

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
Paul Franz Winkelmann
David Wai-Hung Tam
Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)
Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)
Seng-Lee Chan
(retired on 1 January 2024)
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The biographical information of the Directors is disclosed
in the “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this

Annual Report.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies
and personal qualities, including professionalism and
integrity, to discharge its responsibilities adequately and
effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has adequate
knowledge and expertise relevant to each of the material
business activities that the Bank pursues and the associated
risks in order to ensure effective governance and oversight.

According to the Terms of Reference of the Board, the key
responsibilities of the Board include:

. setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of
the Group
. approving annual budget and business plan, and

monitoring performance and execution of plan

. overseeing the development and implementation of
Environmental, Social and Governance and climate
related strategies

. establishing and overseeing risk governance

. appointment and oversight of senior management,
and ensuring competent managementisin place

. setting corporate values and standards

. overseeing the remuneration policy

. ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate
structure

. ensuring effective audit function and internal control

. ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness

in respect of the structure, operation and risk
management of the Bank

. matters involving conflict of interest of substantial
shareholder or any Director

. material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in
the ordinary business or operation of the Bank),
investments and business reorganization

. material capital projects with long-term commitments

. delegation of authority to Board level Committees
or individual Directors (for approving specific
transactions)

. delegation to Senior Management the authority and
responsibility to manage the regular businesses and
affairs of the Bank and its subsidiaries consistent with
the objectives and strategies of the Bank, and within
the risk framework and limits approved by the Board

. appointment of Directors and Senior Management

. actively engaging in succession plans for the chief

executive and other key senior executives as appropriate

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In
addition, special Board meetings are held when necessary.
Dates of regular Board and Board Committee meetings
are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For special
Board meetings, reasonable notice is given. Board agenda
is approved following consultation with the Directors and
Senior Management. All Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of Directors. The Board held five
meetings in 2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authority to various committees
to deal with specific matters under written terms of
reference, which set out in detail their respective authorities
and responsibilities. The Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, and Risk Management
and Compliance Committee were established under the
authority of the Board. The composition and terms of
reference of these committees are reviewed and updated
regularly to ensure that they remain appropriate and in line
with the regulatory requirements, the Group’s business and
changes in governance practices. All Board Committees
adopt the same governance processes as the Board as far
as practicable and report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

Apart from regular meetings of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management and Compliance Committee, INEDs
meet separately, without the presence of other EDs or
management, with the internal audit, compliance and risk
management functions, at least once a year.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”) has the authority to review
all matters related to financial statements and disclosure,
audit work performed by internal and external auditors,
internal control systems, risk management system and
compliance for the whole Group. The AC reports to the
Board following each AC meeting, drawing the Board’s
attention to significant issues or matters of which the Board
should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which
it considers that action or improvement is needed, and
making relevant recommendations.

The AC meets at least four times a year with the presence of
the Bank’s executives including the Chief Executive, Deputy
Chief Executives, Group Chief Financial Officer, Group
Financial Controller, Group Chief Risk Officer and Group
Head of Risk Management, Group Chief Credit Officer, Group
Head of Internal Audit, and representatives from the Bank’s
external auditor. Special meetings of the AC are held when
necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC comprises four
members and all of them are INEDs. The members of the
AC are Messrs. Paul Franz Winkelmann (Chairman), Robert
Tsai-To Sze, Blair Chilton Pickerell and Nancy Ha-Fong Chan.
The AC held four meetings in 2023.

The AC was established with written terms of reference and
its major roles and functions are as follows:

. To ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting

. To review the internal control system and compliance
with regulatory requirements

. To make recommendation to the Board on the

appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor

. To review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards

. To approve the appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the head of internal audit

. To approve audit plans

. To review the effectiveness of the internal audit
function

. To review findings and reports of the internal and
external auditors

. To review and monitor the integrity of the Bank’s

annual and interim financial statements, including
significant financial reporting judgements used in
producing the financial statements

. To review the Bank’s internal controls and reports its
major findings and comments to the Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
is responsible for overseeing the remuneration matters of
the Bank, and also to review and endorse the nomination
of candidates for appointment as Non-Executive Directors
(including INEDs), Executive Directors and Senior
Management, prior to the approval by the Board of the
Bank. The NRC reports to the Board regularly on its findings,
decisions and recommendations.

The NRC meets at least twice a year and at such other times
as the NRC deems appropriate.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the NRC comprises
three members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired
by an INED. The members of the NRC are Messrs. Robert
Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) and David Wai-Hung Tam who are
INEDs of the Bank, and Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, who is an ED
and the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank. The NRC held
three meetings in 2023.

The NRC was established with written terms of reference
and its major roles and functions are as follows:

. To review and endorse the nomination of directors
and senior management

. To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for
the design and operation of the Bank’s remuneration
system

. To review and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the Bank’s remuneration policy and
practices

. To review and endorse the specific remuneration
packages of directors and senior management

. To ensure that regular review of the Bank’s remuneration

system and its operation is conducted
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. To review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and also its committees at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board

. To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board and also its committees,
particularly in respect of the composition of Board
and committee members

. To advise and assist the Board in discharging its

culture reform and related responsibilities

Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”)
is to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s risk
management strategy and development, review risk
management issues and the resolution thereof, review
risk management policies and major risk limits prior to
the approval by the Board, and review major regulatory
compliance issues and development, and exercise oversight
on the compliance function and activities of the Bank. It has
the authority to conduct any enquiry and review on matters
related to risk management and compliance with risk policy
and regulatory requirements. The RMCC reports to the
Board regularly, drawing the Board’s attention to significant
issues or matters of which the Board should be aware,
identifying any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The RMCC meets at least four times a year with the presence
of the Bank’s executives including the Chief Executive,
Deputy Chief Executives, Group Chief Risk Officer and Group
Head of Risk Management, Group Head of Compliance,
Group Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk, and Group
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information
Technology. Special meetings of the RMCC are held when
necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the RMCC comprises
four members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired by
an INED. The members of the RMCC are Messrs. Blair Chilton
Pickerell (Chairman), Paul Franz Winkelmann and Kin-Sang
Cheung (Alex Cheung), who are INEDs of the Bank, and
Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, who is an ED and the Chief
Executive of the Bank. The RMCC held four meetings in 2023.

The RMCC was established with written terms of reference
and its major roles and functions are as follows:

. To assist the Board in reviewing all major risk
management policies and risk limits, including capital
management policy and capital plan, as well as the
recovery plan

. To assist the Board in reviewing all major compliance
and legal issues, including those relating to anti-money
laundering

. To assist the Board in overseeing the implementation of
the stress-testing programme, reviewing the stress-testing
results, including the stress test against capital
plan and ensuring that suitable actions are taken to
mitigate potential risks where necessary

. To monitor and ensure that major risk management
policies and risk limits of the Bank and its subsidiaries
comply with relevant regulatory requirements, and
follow up on non-compliance issues and their resolutions

. To provide periodic update to the Board on its work,
finding and recommendations

. To review any risk and/or compliance issues raised
by the HKMA which are considered significant by
the Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk
Management, Group Head of Compliance, Group
Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk, Group Chief
Operating Officer and Group Head of Information
Technology or Group Head of Internal Audit

. To oversee the resourcing for the risk management
and compliance functions of the Bank, including
anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing

. To interact with the AC to ensure consistency and
compatibility in actions and minimize any potential
gaps in risk management oversight

. To promote sound risk governance and a strong
risk management culture and provide guidance and
oversight on the development of risk management
strategies as well as the risk tolerance and risk
appetite of the Bank
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK

The Bank’s risk appetite is defined as the level of risk the
Bank is willing to take, having regard to its resources and
financial capacity, strategic objectives and regulatory
constraints (e.g. capital and liquidity requirements), with
the expectation that the risk taken or to be pursued is
sufficiently compensated or at acceptable return with
reasonable confidence level. Against this background, the
risk appetite framework is comprised of a Risk Appetite
Statement (“RAS”) and a set of risk tolerance is established.
The RAS covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns
of the Bank, namely the target returns to shareholders,
earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and others while
more granular risk types including credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and other less quantifiable
risks (e.g. operational risk, reputation risk, strategic risk,
technology risk, cyber risk, legal risk and conduct risk, etc.)
are controlled under different risk limits and risk mitigation
measures that constitute the risk tolerance of the Bank.

The RAS is a high level statement which sets out the
risk-return requirements as well as the risk taking capacity
of the Bank, taking into account its financial and capital
strength and covers a wide range of metrics including return
on average shareholders’ funds, liquidity maintenance ratio,
core funding ratio, leverage ratio and measures of impact
on profitability and capital adequacy ratio under selected
stress scenarios, etc. Moreover, to ensure that the Bank’s
operations and risk taking activities are in line with the RAS,
the Bank has adopted a set of risk tolerance levels to govern
and control specific categories of risk, which is made up of
major quantitative risk limits as well as some qualitative
measures.

As for the process of risk appetite setting, the Board
determines the optimal risk appetite having regard to the
Bank’s capital, risk profile and strategy. In addition, the
Board is responsible for overseeing the development and
monitoring of the Bank’s risk appetite to ensure that the
Bank is able to achieve sustainable growth in pursuing its
business strategy, operating within its tolerance levels. The
RAS is designed to be consistent with the Bank’s business
strategy, risk and return balance and market outlook, for the
medium to longer term and it is not intended to be changed
frequently, unless there are significant changes in the Bank’s
strategy and operating environment. Furthermore, during
the annual and other ad hoc reviews of the RAS framework,
risk scenarios covering different courses of development
of the global economies including highly stressed
scenarios are developed for the purpose of conducting the
firm-wide stress test. The results together with regulatory
developments will be taken as one of the key considerations
in the review of risk appetite.

Compliance with the RAS and risk tolerance is monitored
and reported to the Board and the RMCC respectively on a
quarterly basis to ensure that the businesses of the Bank
are conducted within the requirements of the risk appetite
framework. Moreover, the risk appetite framework and
major risk appetite limits are subject to the review by the
RMCC and the Board on an annual basis, when the annual
budget and medium term plan of the Bank are reviewed
and approved, or new business and risk strategies are to be
approved.

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The
proposed appointment will first be reviewed by the NRC,
taking into account the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
NRC, the proposed appointment will then be reviewed and,
if thought fit, approved by the Board after due deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking
Ordinance, approval from the HKMA will need to be sought
prior to the appointment of any person as a Director of the
Bank.
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The Bank issues appointment letters to each of the INEDs,
setting out the terms and conditions of their appointments.
For proposed appointment as INEDs of the Bank, the factors
as laid down in the HKMA’s Guidance on Empowerment
of INEDs will be considered to assess the independence
of a proposed INED of the Bank. The same factors will be
revisited to reassess the independence of any INED who has
served the Board of the Bank for more than 9 years, where
applicable.

The Bank has in place Board Appointment and Succession
Policy. The Board or NRC should satisfy itself that the
candidate nominated for appointment is a fit and proper
person for appointment, taking into account the following
features and attributes of the candidate:

. age

. gender diversity

. education background and professional qualification

. experience, especially working and commercial experience
. stature and reputation in the community

. capability

. professional and/or business management skills

. track record

. independence of mind (particularly in the case of

non-executive directors and INEDs)

. any financial or other interest in the business of the
Bank

. other directorship

. intellectual strength

. fitness and propriety

Candidates as proposed Board members should not have
any conflict of interest that may impede their ability to
perform their duties independently and objectively or
subject them to undue influence from:

. personal, professional or other economic relationships
with other members of the board or management (or
with other entities within the group)

. other persons including shareholders

. relationship arising from or connected to past or

present positions held

A Board director candidate has to confirm that there is
no conflict of interest prior to his/her appointment, apart
from clearance under the relevant regulatory requirements
relating to connected lending.

REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Remuneration information in line with the requirements set
out in CG-5 is disclosed in the Regulatory Disclosure Statement
of the Bank at the Bank’s website at www.dahsing.com and is

accessible at the following direct link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_
disclosures.html

MAJOR SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS
AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited. The ultimate holding company of the Bank is
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. Both Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited and Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited are
listed companies in Hong Kong.

The Bank’s related party transactions are set out in Note 42

to the Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

OTHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Bank did not
engage in any material and complex or non-transparent
structure that is difficult for supervisors and stakeholders
of the Bank to reasonably assess the risks to which it is
exposed.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Bank”) are the provision of banking, financial and other
related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
are shown in Note 26 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 39.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.30
per share, totalling HK$142,600,000, which was paid on
19 September 2023.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$11.20 per share, totalling HK$694,400,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW

No business review for 2023 is prepared as the Bank
is exempted under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance since it is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year are
shown in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$1,929,000.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Seng-Lee Chan*
(retired on 1 January 2024)

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

Paul Michael Kennedy*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*

David Wai-Hung Tam*

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan*
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) *
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association

for retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on
the boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year
and up to the date of this Report of the Directors is provided
in the “Directors of Subsidiaries” section which follows this

Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year which enabled
the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in its holding companies.

(i) Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”) and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate and immediate holding
companies respectively, eligible participants may be
granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option
to subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise
price per option share is varied by tranches of grant,
which is concluded on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03E of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
being determined as no less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the relevant shares traded on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”)
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of the relevant shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

(a) DSFH Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May
2015, the shareholders of DSFH, the Bank’s
ultimate holding company, approved the
adoption of a share option scheme of DSFH (the
“DSFH Share Option Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted
to Directors of the Bank under the DSFH
Share Option Scheme and no Directors had
outstanding options under the DSFH Share
Option Scheme.

(ii)

(b) DSBG Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May
2014, the shareholders of DSBG, the Bank’s
immediate holding company, approved the
adoption of a share option scheme of DSBG (the
“DSBG Share Option Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to
Directors of the Bank under the DSBG Share
Option Scheme.

During the year, save for Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang,
Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew and Ms. Phoebe
Mei-Chun Wong, no other Directors of the
Bank had outstanding options granted under
the DSBG Share Option Scheme and none of
the Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by
exercising options granted under the DSBG
Share Option Scheme.

Share Award Scheme

Each of the Boards of DSFH and DSBG adopted a share
award scheme (respectively the “DSFH Share Award
Scheme” and the “DSBG Share Award Scheme”) both
on 9 September 2021 (the “Adoption Date”).

(a) DSFH Share Award Scheme

During the year, share awards were granted
to Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, Mr. Hon-Hing
Wong (Derek Wong), Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing
Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, Mr. Nicholas
John Mayhew, Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong,
Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma and Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin
Chan under the DSFH Share Award Scheme
which shall be vested in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the scheme.

During the year, save for Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong),
Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling
Wang, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Ms. Phoebe
Mei-Chun Wong, Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma and
Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan, no other Directors of
the Bank held share awards or shares of DSFH
granted under the DSFH Share Award Scheme.

(b) DSBG Share Award Scheme

During the period from the Adoption Date
to 31 December 2023, no share awards were
granted to Directors of the Bank under the DSBG
Share Award Scheme.
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Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the
Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the
Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Bank’s business to which the Bank,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies was a party and in which a Director of the Bank
or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Bank is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Bank were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been set out in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Bank has fully complied
with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority under
section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The Bank
has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

REE2023F12A31H L FEANKREE20245F The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

38288 (AIARIRIT2AFEEETEREEHH) subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2023 and

LIEERR » HAERRITZMBARESEENES Y up to 28 March 2024, being the date of the Report of the Directors of the

LI Bank for the year, are set out below:

(=T R FHES) (in alphabetical order)

RREE S CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy*

fRIERE CHAN Ho-Tong (Tom CHAN)

FRef CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

PRAEER CHAN Cliff Wai-Kin

1M CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

[ERES) > CHEN Yi Chuan (Rawson CHEN)*

R CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

BER CHOW Chi-Leung Cristo

E5JKER FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

G HO Ka-Yeung Eric

2R LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

2as LAU Pak-Hung

PER LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

FRE LI Richard Tsung-Yung

BEZ MAO Chi-Dor (Johnny MAO)

T POON Clement

FEZ WANG Pak-Ling Gary

=EE WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

= EE WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

FEE WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

FE WONG Shou-Yeh David

FHE WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

O YAN Yun-Shum Grace

RikE YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

* BT/ FEETARITERMMNBASES * Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
7% o subsidiary(ies) of the Bank.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EZ 2023512 H31H L For the year ended 31 December 2023

PisE
LGB TFTUsR HK$’000 Note 2023 2022
FBWA Interest income 7 11,485,606 6,964,613
FEZH Interest expense 7 (6,670,469)  (2,592,986)
FHBURA Net interest income 4,815,137 4,371,627
R E AU Fee and commission income 8 1,078,967 2,432,747
RFEMAEZH Fee and commission expense 8 (212,165) (183,652)
FBREERASTIA Net fee and commission income 866,802 2,249,095
FRZUWA Net trading income 9 164,993 144,011
Heh=ZE A Other operating income 10 69,004 51,263
EEIRA Operating income 5,915,936 6,815,996
EESH Operating expenses 11 (3,178,844)  (3,026,052)
R RERER 2 EE iR Operating profit before impairment losses 2,737,092 3,789,944
EERERE Credit impairment losses 13 (731,311) (803,100)
N ETREREESEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
Wis K E5E AT 2 EiEimF) certain investments and fixed assets 2,005,781 2,986,844
HETEREMBETEEEBWE,~  Netgain/(loss) on disposal of premises and
(B518) other fixed assets 2,828 (2,451)
WEMEATERE 2 FEE Net loss on fair value adjustment of
investment properties (41,087) (38,311)
HE L ER AT RN EMBE 2 Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
R amortised cost - 24
YN+ | Share of results of an associate 688,957 656,691
BN RIRE Z BB 1E Impairment loss on the investment in
an associate 23 (552,000) (1,683,000)
HEHEBE A ARREZFIE Loss on deemed disposal of investment in
an associate (10) (10)
FE(LHEEIEHIER 2 #4& Share of results of jointly controlled entities 27,014 29,879
PRI AR Profit before taxation 2,131,483 1,949,666
I8 Taxation 14 (281,275) (361,167)
A ERITRE R E(LEE ST Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 1,850,208 1,588,499
FASEEF29B W H ARG M BIRER 2 —EB The notes on pages 45 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
7 financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

LB TF (05T HKS’000 2023 2022
EEHF Profit for the year 1,850,208 1,588,499
FEEHMPEWKE (B5i8) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
ARESEMDBEELEWEIRRIER ¢ Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHRE Investments in securities
AT ESTEEEHEHTAEMEE  Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair
WamEH TR AT EEEFEE value through other comprehensive income 298,270 (834,317)
R R S s ARIENEE /AT Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of an
Hﬂﬂiﬁuﬂl 5/ (B518) associate accounted for using the equity method 248,924 (226,037)
NESTEEEHEF T AEMEE  Netchange in allowance for expected credit losses
LlﬁZ s BB TR FRIEEEE of debt instruments at fair value through other
EEBEFE comprehensive income 33,612 7,109
BRI 7 IRIERR I Deferred income tax related to the above (43,181) 132,583
PSRN | (920,662)
BB BIMEB IS IRRNER = Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (156,209) ) (719,179)
TEEMNBERSWERENIES ! Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
AT ESAZ2EBEEFAEMEE  Net change in fair value of equity instruments
WEMESEE TR AT EES)FEE  at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,086,307 586,378
Z=1 o M O 1 Deferred income tax related to the above (65,481) (35,153)
B 551,225
MNpREREz EEEM2ERG Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
(&518) net of tax 1,402,242 (1,088,616)
NRRIBR 2 FEZ IG5

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
BASHES

3,252,450 499,883
$239B Mz Ty AR e Rk 2 — 36
ﬁ-j\ o

The notes on pages 45 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20235 124831H Asat 31

December 2023

Bt
LGB TFlid)m HK$°000 Note 2023 2022
BE ASSETS
R RERTTIAER Cash and balances with banks 17 16,395,770 17,800,880
ERITIE 1288 REIHARER Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 3,151,814 8,616,565

FHER 5 AGES Trading securities 18 1,739,841 562,161
AT EEBHEEH ABmMNERBEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 8,216 9,303
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 19 3,566,149 3,901,236
RIEERHMERE Advances and other accounts 20 149,116,035 142,714,799
AT EsHE B HEE T AHM Financial assets at fair value through other

2ERENEHEE comprehensive income 21 40,525,842 38,617,851
DR AT BRI SR E Financial assets at amortised cost 22 39,372,378 32,926,090
BENEIRE Investment in an associate 23 2,215,131 2,159,290
HEEHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 129,946 123,072
[ Goodwill 25 713,451 713,451
B EE Intangible assets 25 61,005 61,005
TERAMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 27 3,640,520 3,645,703
REME Investment properties 28 761,606 802,693
BNEAMIEE B Current income tax assets 1,273 -
RERIBEE Deferred income tax assets 34 165,823 262,273
BEAS Total assets 261,564,800 252,916,372
=1 LIABILITIES
RITHER Deposits from banks 2,485,044 4,112,493
TESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,279,419 997,637
FERZBRNERE Trading liabilities 30 99,853 730,491
BERER Deposits from customers 31 207,303,078 199,802,595
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 32 2,428,028 4,228,983
BEED Subordinated notes 33 5,916,645 3,801,495
HMER B R TER Other accounts and accruals 8,076,766 7,915,029
BIARIEE&E Current income tax liabilities 287,545 284,453
EERIEER Deferred income tax liabilities 34 100,921 36,267
aEast Total liabilities 227,977,299 221,909,443
e EQUITY
B Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
Hithf# e (BIEREEA) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 26,219,691 23,639,119
RREE Shareholders’ funds 32,419,691 29,839,119
EIMERIETR Additional equity instruments 39 1,167,810 1,167,810
A Total equity 33,587,501 31,006,929
ERRama: Total equity and liabilities 261,564,800 252,916,372
BEEE2024F 3528 AL E R IZHEEEA o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

March 2024.

=EHE F1HE Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EF EFRSE Director Managing Director

FASEEF29B W H ARG M BIRER 2 —EB The notes on pages 45 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

FIRITRRAE (R
Attributable to the Eoh
shareholders of the Bank EMTE
iz HithfktE fRE%&F  Additional
Share Other Retained equity #iEas
LCBIETF L5 HKS’000 capital reserves earnings instruments Total equity
2023F1510 48 Balance at 1 January 2023 6,200,000 562,022 23,077,097 1,167,810 31,006,929
FERF Profit for the year - - 1,850,208 - 1,850,208
FEEMEENE Other comprehensive income
for the year = 1,402,242 = - 1,402,242
UGSz (AR 1E RS Provision of equity-settled
ERR 2 515 share-based compensation - 54 - - 54
UGSz (AR 1E RS Settlement of equity-settled
EHER 2 455 share-based compensation - (16,107) - - (16,107)
EIMERIETA Y Distribution payment of additional
IKETNIE equity instruments - - (135,025) - (135,025)
2022F KHIRE 2022 final dividend - - (378,200) - (378,200)
2023FFHARE 2023 interim dividend - - (142,600) - (142,600)
2023F 1283104 Balance at 31 December 2023 6,200,000 1,948,211 24,271,480 1,167,810 33,587,501
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raEmEBERR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZ 2023512 H31H L For the year ended 31 December 2023

AIRITI R
Attributable to the EEOL
shareholders of the Bank EaMTE
fgAs Hithfkt RERBF  Additional
Share Other Retained equity BEAE
LOBIETF T (08)m HKS’000 capital reserves earnings  instruments  Total equity
2022F 1B 1HA# Balance at 1 January 2022 6,200,000 1,650,399 21,979,750 898,587 30,728,736
FEEH Profit for the year - - 1,588,499 - 1,588,499
FEEMEZHEERE Other comprehensive loss for the year - (1,088,616) - - (1,088,616)
BEEIMER T A Redemption of additional equity
instruments - - - (898,587) (898,587)
FTRRIMERMET R Issue of additional equity instruments - - - 1,167,810 1,167,810
LA (LA 1R Provision for equity-settled share-
BRI 2 Bt based compensation - 239 - - 239
BIMERMTAY Distribution payment of additional
KRB equity instruments - - (41,652) - (41,652)
2021 F KRR E 2021 final dividend - - (310,000) - (310,000)
2022FFHAR S 2022 interim dividend - - (139,500) - (139,500)
2022612831845 Balance at 31 December 2022 6,200,000 562,022 23,077,097 1,167,810 31,006,929
B4 EFEH2398 2 M AR S FBIRR 2 —Ef The notes on pages 45 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
palt financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

PisE
LGB T 7Tl 5)m HK$’000 Note 2023 2022
REEEZIRERE Cash flows from operating activities

1R E) (FRA) TRAIRE 348 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 40(a) (1,087,013) 4,075,837
KEESZRETRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEREMEREMETEE Purchase of investment properties and

other fixed assets (275,081) (267,346)
HETEREMEEEERMENRIE Proceeds from disposal of premises and

other fixed assets 17,813 208
BUHEEIERI B AIEHEATRE Dividend received from jointly controlled

entities and associate 218,377 230,664
KREEHPTAIRE P Net cash used in investing activities (38,891) (36,474)
REIFZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITERIMERME TR Issue of additional equity instruments - 1,167,810
BIRERIMERM TR Repayment of additional equity instruments - (895,321)
BFITREGER Issue of subordinated notes 40(c) 1,939,796 -
GEN=S=L AN Payment of lease liabilities (148,964) (148,876)
EIMER M TR 2 RERIE Distribution payment on additional equity

instrument (135,025) (41,652)
I BEITREESRMER Interest paid on subordinated notes and

BHZFE debt securities issued 40(c) (309,761) (164,342)

IREA RN BRI E Dividend paid on ordinary shares of the

Company (520,800) (449,500)
BMEEEIRA (FTA) IR& 358 Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 825,246 (531,881)
REREEIRSIEH GRL) /1Ehn Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

SREE equivalents (300,658) 3,507,482

FYRERERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 19,260,423 16,042,821
EXEE 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 5,039 (289,880)
FEXRREKRERIREIER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 40(b) 18,964,804 19,260,423
FASEEF29E WA GRS BRERZ — The notes on pages 45 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
pal financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. —AgER

RIRITARLE (T48R17)) BEKMB AR (i
TR&EE) EEE  BPIRTRREHTERT &
FIRTT R EMARRE AR

IR —FEEE B MBI RIS - sEfMthiL
B BEFERERBR2485FE AT TR 002642 o

KRBT ZREERABDAHERERFTRAF
(TRHERR) HEB—BLHAR -

BrB AFERRSN > IR A M RRMLUBE Tl
PR WER2024F3F28HES EFHUERRK o

2. EXRESBERBE

DUR iR AR B3R R FTERN T2 G 5TEER -
Fr= AR - EIBTEMEEEFTRME 2 -

2.1 RRIEAE

FERZGEEVBREREREBGSMAE (T
BESENAE)) FIEMZ EBMBREER (T
BYHHREED ) > HEFENNEBHMBRS
Al BB ER ((EBGER)) UKHERE
ZH)  EAEBRMZ G RIREBRER
BIFE622ETMARSL ©

f# DA DH

IR EMBRETVRIBELRAB R ERR > I
I AFEIRZ B BEKREYE  IAFE
StEBHEHF AHMEE N (TUATEFE
BHEFHFAHMEE W) WEMEE - F1F
RZBRZEMEEREREENUAFESNE
BEESFt \BENEREEREREE (BT
ETER) ZE-IFLHRE -

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH?”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2024.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”, which is a collective term and includes individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.
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2. EBEXRESBEREE (&)

2.1 RREE(H)
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in applying
the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the period the assumptions change. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the consolidated
financial statements therefore present the financial position and results
fairly. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended standards
to its annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

- HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments) -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- HKAS 8 (Amendments) - Definition of Accounting Estimates

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules -
amendments to HKAS 12

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction - amendments to HKAS 12

None of these has a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

. Adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax

Reform

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules apply to income taxes arising from tax law enacted
or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (“OECD”). The Group is within the scope of
the OECD Pillar Two model rules. Pillar Two legislation has
been enacted in some tax jurisdictions in the world and will be
implemented in Hong Kong in 2025. Under the legislation, the
Group is liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between
the Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (“GloBE”) effective tax
rate for each tax jurisdiction and the 15% minimum tax rate. The
Group has applied the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred income tax assets and liabilities
related to Pillar Two income taxes and there is no current tax
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 under Pillar Two
legislation.

Due to the complexities in applying the legislation and calculating
GloBE income, the quantitative impact of the legislation on
the Group is not yet reasonably estimable. The Group plans to
conduct further analyses and may engage tax specialists to assist
itin applying the legislation.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and interpretation
have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2023 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

- HKFRS 16 (Amendments) - Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

- HK Interpretation 5 (Revised) - Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

- HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Supplier Finance
Arrangements

- HKAS 21 (Amendments) - Lack of Exchangeability

- HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

These amendments are not expected to have material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from

1 January 2023 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a

material impact on the Group.



2.

2.2

EXEFTBEREIE (48)

rREMTERR

REMBRREERRTREMBNBAREE
128318 IE 7 BAFEERE o

(F) WBLE

B AE R AEEES 2 B (B1EERE
MER) c AEEFEFIZEREIEELE
EEe2NzEREmE A A RER R EN
[Ol$k > BRENEEHZERBZENTEZ
Z[OlR - BEEFIRER T AEEE HIENE

NEMEEEETE » WHZESIRE L2 HiE
THEGEE -

REBUWEEHEARER 2 ZHE S0
iR o WHE—EIMBARFTHZEAEE
BEE - R BBERAERBITZREY
AFE o FHTHAEEEEARANRERYE
ZEENBBEZATE o IWEERZ BAR
BEERE Y o EEKRS HEBIETESFTUEE
AR E ER AR BERIREE 19
R E B E AT EELEETE o K&
EIREZFIBUR BRI A T E SRR
REERFE(E U IS B AR E 2 L AR SR A
WSS 2 2 e HIE RS Rt w o

FHT tHZ RUE ~ R IEHIRERR SR UL B
B RS BRI R E R A
FEB AN B (S P BB T B R B
ZATHE  BPRAEE o EENAE EE
Rz IR E R BT ER st E 2 48
EERERBEERER AT EA T,aaﬁ
ENATE  HEBERERARGE2AEKS
ARAFEST o

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the consolidated

income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of
the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s

share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interestincome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated income
statement for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair
value through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over

aservice to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI
which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss
when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using

market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets

(i) PERHEZEFE
FEEDEHEREEE MIFEER

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. MAFESEREEEFHHAER (8 . Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);
ERERZ AR ;

. MAFEstEEEEHT AHMEE . Fair value through other comprehensive income; or
Yeas 5 &

. BEERALAS © . Amortised cost.
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The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments

depend on:
. FEBREEZBEZEBEN K . the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
. ZEEZIREREM o . the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2.6 TMEEREREGE)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

BHEEB) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) PERHEHEBEZEEGEE) (i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
EFETAGE) Debt instruments (Continued)
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Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii) below.
Interest income from these financial assets is calculated
using the effective interest rate method.

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which it arises.
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Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither
of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of “other”
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated. Securities
held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These securities
are classified in the “other” business model and measured at
FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

BRTMTETEZSHEE > BBETHRS Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
MeSMBAE R E 2 BN UEERSE their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
e o SPPI.
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BHEEB) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) PERHEHEBEZEEGEE) (i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
EFETAGE) Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting

RN BRI RS o period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
Bt TA Equity instruments
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Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence
a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity

instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s

right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the consolidated income statement.
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(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated
with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to customers,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group
recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting
date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

RIER Bt AR £58 ; determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
. SERNREEE; & . The time value of money; and
. BATCERNNE M ASE MM EE . Reasonable and supportable information that is available
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without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the

modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to

TMEENEEE © amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
. BAEMAEAEARFGER > FlNE . Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
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a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is

not in financial difficulty.

. R BEBAREE o . Significant change in the interest rate.
. ERNEEEE 2 EE o . Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
. MMAZIER G~ EMiERYSAIEE . Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements
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that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the

loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at
fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the
asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered
to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that

result in derecognition if the Group:

. Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects

equivalent amounts from the assets;

. WEIFHESNRIREE ; & . Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
. BEAEEENMETEHNEEE . Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the

EZEARE -

assets without material delay.
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the
basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria
for derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to
certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains a
subordinated residual interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss;

. Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

. Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors,
such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features
attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also
taken into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred to
adjust the carrying amount of the liability are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the
conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

. Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract;

. A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

. The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts
at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)

(a) Fairvalue hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the consolidated
income statement under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss)
arising from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit
or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedge relationship no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated
for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of
the hedged item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment
(the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item
at the time of termination and the value at which it would have
been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is
amortised to the income statement over the remaining life of the
hedged item by the effective interest method. If the hedged item
is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement under
“Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose”. For derivatives that are managed
in conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their fair
value are included under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Bank or the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent
to counterparties are also retained in the consolidated financial
statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the
purchases and sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in
trading income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as
a trading liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances
made. In the case of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal
arrangements or court orders, and with the legal title of the assets
having been passed to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The
foreclosed assets held for resale are included in “Advances and other
accounts - Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating

decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the Group
has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking,
Treasury and Global Markets, Mainland China and Macau Banking and
Others.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Bank and major part
of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement are presented net in the
consolidated income statement within the corresponding item.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive
income items are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,
except for impairment, are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assetsand liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land and
all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

- Premises Over the remaining period of lease

- Furniture, fittings, Over the estimated useful lives
equipment and motor generally between 3 and 10 years
vehicles or the unexpired terms of the

lease, whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2023

73



74

2. EBEXRESBEREE (B)

2.15 EME (B)

HIREMERAEBETARMMEA » BERR
BERTEREMBEEEE ERENRERANZ
NTHERRAERAE °

HRERETEREMEEEERNERREMES
REME > REESEGFERFI6N  HEER
RO IREERATERERNERE  BEFT
EREMBEEEE 2 B MBI EmRA © 24
m > MZATEREREBEZRERE &g
BRI E U IRARESD ©

2.16 BEKRELEE

B E 2 A A B A S [ PR (G AR U BB i UR
BEHZIRAEEREBATEFEZSRE -
FELARPTA REGERIIT - BEREFE
TRERE - FERRERIETELRE  BESE
RrlmkBEe st EERBEREE -

AMEARIRESREEEEMUEREBER
o TN B ATRRTZR BN ELZBEZ
EEOHZEREEEBUNSAREELSEN -

HREEBMEE Z BV B ER Hig 8B II gD
HHAGHEMERENMEEZ BT EE -
REEBEIURFEMES > BETEERBED
D - MIPEEBRBHRRIZLER » 5L
REFMENETEE - BILEERBEEER
FHR AR, HREREBEIT  #
BREN FSE 126 2 FAsHE B ERILIBRERIERUE
stE o

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other
fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s
share of the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity
in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share
of the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in

its consolidated statement of financial position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of debt
securities at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the
consolidated income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation
(i) Share option schemes

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.
The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at the grant
date, is charged to consolidated income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the
options are exercised, the holding company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from
the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital”

account.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
(ii) Share award schemes

For award shares under the Share Award Scheme, the amount
to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions associated
with the grants on grant date. The total expenses is recognised
over the relevant vesting periods or on the grant date if the shares
vest immediately, with a corresponding credit to the “Shared-
based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over the vesting
periods, the Group reviews its estimates of the number of award
shares that are expected ultimately vest based on the vesting
conditions at the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative amount recognised in prior years
is charged or credited to share-based compensation expenses
in the current year, with a corresponding adjustment to “Share-
based compensation reserve”.

Where award shares are acquired under the Share Award Scheme
from the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of cash dividends,
the total consideration of the shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable costs) or the value of shares
received under the scrip dividend scheme is presented as “Shares
held for share award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested award shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired from reinvesting
cash dividends or received under the scrip dividend scheme
(dividend shares) are credited to “Shares held for share award
scheme”, with a corresponding decrease in “Share-based
compensation reserve” for the purchased shares, and decrease in

retained earnings for the dividend shares.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely

than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an

outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering

the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any

lease incentives receivable,

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees, if any

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably

certain to exercise that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does

not have recent third party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received,
. any initial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits

is probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending to
commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of
each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on
a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that
do not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting
are discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair
value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate. Pay-floating/
receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched to specific issuances of
fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate swaps are
matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with terms that closely align
with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from fixed-
rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose fair
value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or a debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the

fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount

of the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(v)

changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in

interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. RIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 FERERIT AR (&) 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 FFERBGEERE N EEEZITET 3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
H(#) accounting (Continued)
FERBZ AT EL (&) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
RERFFA TR g BARF R R A T EL A The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
ZHHTIA - instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
]|

2023%F12H31H 31 December 2023 Maturity

1EURA 1FEUE SEME
E\&EER] — FI=R A& Risk category - interest rate risk Less than FE5%  More than
LOBM T oA d HKS’000 1year 1-5years 5 years
AT BB —FEE Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 2,437,126 = =
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 4.74% - =
T BB - BEES Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
HE Nominal amount 1,757,543 4,296,215 -
FHEEFRZE Average fixed interest rate 5% 4.99% =
HrHETrasE—EEs Hedge of issued liabilities - borrowing
(=] Nominal amount - - -
THBEEM =R Average fixed interest rate - - -
A Z LA ESTE B HEE) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AR M EWGHIETSE S through other comprehensive income
HE Nominal amount 1,983,923 11,275,548 3,929,084
FHEEFZE Average fixed interest rate 3.79% 3.59% 3.15%
A 2 USRS AT EREY Hedge of debt securities held at
B8 amortised cost

HE Nominal amount 2,356,655 10,700,221 8,137,928
TFHBEHZE Average fixed interest rate 3.84% 3.47% 3.03%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

ZIH#AE

20225 12H31H 31 December 2022 Maturity

1FMUA 1EME SEME
R BB R — =R Risk category - interest rate risk Less than 55 More than
LOBTF (15T HKS’000 lyear 1-5years 5years
AT BB —FEE Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 3,898,625 389,863 -
TFHBEHZE Average fixed interest rate 3.17% 0.74% -
AT BRE—BERS Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
HE Nominal amount - 4,093,556 -
THEEF]ZE Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HHETraE—EEs Hedge of issued liabilities - borrowing
(=] Nominal amount - - -
THBEEN = Average fixed interest rate - - -
A Z LUATESTE B HEE) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AR M EWGHETSE S through other comprehensive income
[iETf (=] Nominal amount 4,238,195 10,124,343 5,563,679
THEEF]ZE Average fixed interest rate 3.94% 3.45% 3.34%
$HREA 2 DU ERAL AT BRAY Hedge of debt securities held at
(EVEEEE amortised cost

HE Nominal amount 48,468 10,620,370 8,846,085
EHEENZE Average fixed interest rate 4.52% 3.32% 3.12%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows:
2023
fRax
BaMBRRRA
EfELER
REBZ A
BERZATHE
Hhzmagen
Bt E203E Accumulated
Hms  amount of fair value
AEEHAERREE HEHEE  hedge adjustments
ZHAERZATE JATEEE) remaining in the
HrEAESR Changein consolidated
Accumulated amount of BARERNE A S value subject to statement of
fair value hedge adjustments HWIEE ZI5E hedgeusedfor financial position
on the hedged item included Line item in the calculating hedge for any hedged
Kt inthe carrying amount consolidated statement ineffectiveness items that have
Carrying amount o the hedged item of financial position for 2023 ceased tohe
WEET T BE B EE B  inwhichthe hedged £ ()  adjusted for hedging
HKS 000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  itemisincluded Note (a) gains and losses
B . 2,428,028 - (0,09) BEFHENE (54,023) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEEH - 5,016,645 - (137,113)  %EER (167,058) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
&8 - = = - RiER = -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
FEZUATEHEER 16,335,053 - (924,665) - WATEHEAHES 350,969 -
AL ENED sTASMEENER
(a5 EHEE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
R Z BRI AT R 19,689,607 = (1,505,197) - LUEERRUASIERRD 433,629 >
(a5 EHEE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at
amortised cost amortised cost

RIERITARAE 2023FF%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

2022
RE7
SRHBRARR
EEERS G
REEZ TR
BEZATE
HPEREEEE
AR TENE Accumulated
RN amount of fair value
it RERE HEBELS  hedgeadjustments
ZHWEEZATR JATEEE  remaininginthe
HARREEED Changein consolidated
Accumulated amount of EeEBRTRRES value subject to statement of
fir value hedge adjustments $4BEEE hedgeusedfor financial position
on the hedgeditem included Line temin the calculating hedge for any hedged
IRE inthe carring amount consolidated statement of ineffectiveness items that have
Carrying amount of the hedged item financial position for2022 ceased to be
WESF T EE & 3 &  inwhichthe hedged #(F)  adjusted for hedging
HKS 000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  item isincluded Note (a) gains and losses
et - 4,208,983 - (59505) BEMHERE 41,608 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEER - 3,801,495 - (292,06]) &(EER 328947 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
&8 - - - - BiER - -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
REZURTEHSER 18,776,876 - (1,260,361) - NATEFBAEES (1923,889) -
AL ENED AR ENER
(5% ERIEE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
RE 2RI 17,622,300 - (1,892,623) - LUEBRRUATIERRD (1,792,343) -
(a5 ERIEE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at
amortised cost amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

2023
FREE
WBE
HmkH
ZATHERE
Change in fair
REHBRRERA valueusedfor BNl
BEHHTRZER calculating  ZHHER
Line item in the consolidated hedge Ineffectiveness
%ﬁﬁﬁ statement of financial ineffectiveness  recognisedin  INEIRABAHHLN
il Carrying amount position for2023  profit(loss) ZIEE

LEEFT Nominal BE #ff  wherethe hedging 3(R) sH(E)  Lineitemin profit orloss that includes

HKS'000 amount Assets Liabilities instrument isincluded Note (a) Note (a) hedge ineffectiveness

Gz

Interest rate risk

s iR PR 2,431,126 1,362 1055 fEERIA 54,486 463 AATESMERSRIA G/

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial )
hedge of certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value
hedge

Rt - S AR R E 6,053,758 50,159 188,980 fEERIA 169,006 1948 FATEHANERSRIE NG/

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial )
hedge of subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value
hedge

gilEs iR = = - {THERIA = - BATEHANIEESRIAZ NG/

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial )
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value
hedge

MR- HEBE 2 A TE 17,188,555 932,544 1950 fiEERIA (351,041) (12) BATESANEESHIRZSIE/
sTEEHEEE \Hh 2 ENEN Derivatives financial )

B instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt instruments subject to fair value
securities held at fair value through hedge
other comprehensive income

RIS 2 s 21,194,804 1,519,696 14,630 fEERIA (433,746) (117) BATESANERESHIZ M/
RS ERES Derivatives financial )

Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain)/loss) arising from financial
hedge of debt securites held instruments subjectto fair value
atamortised cost hedge

5t ¢ Note:

() ERBmnERHNSEATEEPRYEE > B
WEPEE R ENNEELSRERNEZ HIP T
BMATEEHMEBZEZR -

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

(a) The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each
category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in value
of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the change in
fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)

2022
A8
W0
EN S
ZATEES
Change in fair
GEMERRER valueusedfor  BESPRNES
BAHATAZIEE calculating  ZEER
Line item in the consolidated hedge  Ineffectiveness
Kt statement of financial ineffectiveness  recognisedin - WERERDEHHRH
e Carrying amount position for2022  profitfloss) 2%EE
WEST T Nomninal BE &  wherethe hedging £ (E) 3E(®)  Lineitemin profit or loss thatincludes
HK$ 000 amount Assets Liabilities ~ instrumentis included Note (a) Note(a)  hedge ineffectiveness
Gk
Interest rate risk
Gl R P 4,288,488 - 60249 {74ERTA (41,976) (368) AATEEANERSRIAZ NG/
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial )]
hedge of certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value
hedge
HEEE- SR RER 4,093,556 - 15718 TESRTA (332,353 (3406) BATEHANIEESRIEZSNE/
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial (B8
hedge of subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value
hedge
Rl - 48 - - - T4EMIA - - BATESAMNERSRIEZHE/
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial i)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value
hedge
- B ZATE 19,926,217 1,260,861 - fiASRIE 1,923,860 (29) RATEHAHERERIAZRNE/
STEEHEEE \Hh 2 ENEN Derivatives financial (E8)
BRES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt instruments subject to fair value
securities held at fair value through hedge
other comprehensive income
SRR eyt 19514923 1,893,831 123 fiEERIA 1,792,359 15 BATEHANERSHTAZING/
AASIES ERES Derivatives financial )]
Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain)loss) arising from financial
hedge of debt securities held instruments subjectto fai value
at amortised cost hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

In March 2021, the UK Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) announced
the date on which London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) will be
discontinued. All GBP, CHF, EUR, JPY LIBOR settings and the one-
week and two-month USD LIBOR settings had discontinued after 31
December 2021. The remaining USD LIBOR settings will discontinue
after 30 June 2023. In July 2023, the UK FCA published a statement
confirming that the USD LIBOR panel had ceased.

Also, at 31 December 2022, the Hong Kong interbank offered rate
(“HIBOR”) was included given that the reform of this benchmark was
considered possible. At 31 December 2023, HIBOR is no longer expected
to be directly affected by interbank offered rates reform following the
successful transition of all major LIBOR settings and the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) affirmation that there were no plans to
discontinue HIBOR.

The Group has defined and executed the implementation plan for
Interbank Offered Rate (“IBOR”) reform. We had ceased to enter into
new IBOR contracts and liaised with its counterparties to modify
existing IBOR contracts by using other interest rate benchmarks
or agreeing the fallback interest charging mechanism when IBOR
discontinued. These actions for a smooth transition had been
completed in 2023. Management considered that the risk and the
impact to the Bank is immaterial.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of the
loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees have been
chaired by the Chief Executive or Group Chief Risk Officer with certain
Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as members.
Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and
asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management,
credit committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and

review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.1 Creditrisk measurement
Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retail
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
((‘PD)Y)-

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as borrower’s financial statements. This will determine

the updated internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

321 [FEEEZ (18) 3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

S8R MR (B8) Credit risk grading (Continued)

& Treasury

BRI ERIRIKTIHEE AN 2 EF5HES & FEFEM For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury and
2 BB AEERR RN BT AR B 2 S E TR - ZF Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used.
TR FHBR I R EHT o SMRAI 2 EREN These published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The
WIRENRT AR IE M 2 BOKETE o PDs associated with each grade are determined based on default rates

published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 FAHIEEEREIE 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HARUHREER BRI B ARERBRAEE HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
BREFMSIBUREBE 2 M3MEL B » Eamm changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
T

. REESR S EERENERIAD .
BRIERL REEERBHAERGER
52 o

. iR TERHAR B EEREB RS .
RIgEm(MEEEMRAEEM)) > BIEEB
EMEER2) » BIHREARIFEERIE -

. HEMTRSKRAESEERE > RIERT .
ERMREREREE3 ) o

. (RIS T A R EEREEERT .
RR12EB AP BEREZENFMFSIRZ
EIFRAEERIREMI BV ERFT & - BEER2
3z TRARBREAEES EHTEH
EERE -

. RESEMBROENZTHERMES .
RN EZBNSHRUAE BATRIEE
GE

. BARREZ EEREEMEERZFNRT] .
RN EREEREZERNEE - HRH
EEBE—BER2PEENHE -

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk

continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS

9 is that it should consider forward-looking information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets):

BIREREZFEERES

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

P& ER 1 BEER 2 FEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(e T#R) (FERR B MRHERERIEEIN) (FERESE)

(Initial recognition)

121 A i B i E B &8
12-month expected credit losses

REMFERRE RN 2 TEHEFRR R
—FI

3221 SEERKIEE I

ENEUT BN ZRERNFAEED TR T

AEBMNMEERBRAEEN :

(Significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition)

(Credit-impaired assets)

2 HIEEEEEE
Lifetime expected credit losses

2 EEAEE SR
Lifetime expected credit losses

amyn The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in

addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a SICR
when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

FESFEEMS » EINBEETREFEKX
THEE > ARERFIEREIFRERS]
WBERRADIFRER 2 ESF TE—R

MEXEEAME » ENEMEETREIRS
B RBHEBEETR > R—RELRZ
L

ERRE#R (Al Bg0) BE30X

MEFEAMS > EBERAC2BAER

R

EEMACKREBEERZERNEERS
FRIRE - DERZERZIRENRERAZ
BEENMENRZHFZEAPIHEN
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when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate

portfolio

when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according to
the loan classification of HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of
individual counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of
the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that
the Group would not consider otherwise;

. the borrower is bankrupt;

. it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of

individual counterparties defaulting; and

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

Aloan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3.2.23 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or over the
remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for a revolving
commitment, the Group includes the current drawn balance plus
any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

. LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood
of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier
month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The
discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest
rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on a
portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and
is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower
over a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted
for any expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early
repayment/refinance assumptions are also incorporated into
the calculation.

For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is
predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit
conversion factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of
the remaining limit by the time of default.

For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the

maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilised amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/
book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery
costs observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods
(i.e. after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the
last forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default
risk level of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables
on the PD, EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables
have had historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator.
This determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1,
Stage 2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should
be recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant ECL
model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

In 2023, the post pandemic recovery was not as strong as expected,
driven by the high interest rate environment, heightened geopolitical
tensions, falling asset prices and more importantly failure of certain
Mainland property developers. While US interest rates are expected to
drop in 2024, the impact on the local economy is yet to be observed as
the pace and the magnitude of the rate cut is still uncertain. Meanwhile,
credit quality issue of Mainland property developers and geopolitical
tensions is likely to persist for some time, bringing uncertainties to
economic developments. Against this background, the Group has
continued to adopt appropriate assessment and risk management
procedures in the measurement of ECL. This includes reviewing credit
portfolios, considering different macroeconomic forecast scenarios,
assessing the reasonableness of ECL models outputs, and evaluating
the adequacy of ECL allowances.

Management judgments and overlay

To recap, in 2021, the Group imposed management overlay to
the ECL model output in consideration of the potential impact on
certain borrowers who relied on the Government’s Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme (“PPPHS”). Although the principal
moratorium ended in October 2023, and the credit quality of the
portfolio was generally maintained, the Group considered it appropriate
to maintain an overlay amount of 0.17% of the total outstanding
for the vehicle finance portfolio as a provision for risk in light of the
uncertainties ahead. The Group will continue to evaluate credit quality
of the portfolio and the need for such overlay in the coming year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by
the industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used
in the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of
the Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative
standards.

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed data
covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.

Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base
scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts
which formulate a “base case” view of the most probable
future direction of relevant economic variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties by
incorporating upside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects negative uncertainties by
incorporating downside variations to the “base” scenario

macroeconomic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of credit risk units
put forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence,
enabling the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the
forward-looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and
reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall
view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line
with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes
will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking
PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit
loss model.

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set

out as below.
SEHARIIETI9 1 HA i
Average of 5-Year One-Year
#22023F12H31H As at 31 December 2023 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking
HARAUE ELEEIRRZE Hong Kong GDP Growth B Base 2.3% 2.5%
(BAL) Rate (%) R#f  Good 7.0% 7.2%
R Bad -2.4% -2.2%
ESREEMEBER Hong Kong Residential Property ~ £H Base 2.9% -5.0%
egEEH) (59t Price Index Change (%) RF Good 22.2% 14.3%
R Bad -16.4% -24.3%
FRKRER(BEDL) Hong Kong Unemployment B Base 2.8% 2.8%*
Rate (%) R#F Good 2.3% 2.3%*
R Bad 4.7% 4.7%*
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

SEHRATIE T 98
Average of 5-Year

Forward-Looking

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

15 HARBE
One-Year

Forward-Looking

EBRAMEEEELREZE Hong Kong GDP Growth EiE Base 1.8% 0.9%
(B7th) Rate (%) R Good 7.4% 6.5%
R Bad -3.8% -4.7%
EETEYEBER Hong Kong Residential Property &5 Base 2.0% -3.9%
IEHEE) (5 0h) Price Index Change (%) RBir Good 25.2% 19.3%
R Bad -21.2% -27.1%
ERREX(EBDL) Hong Kong Unemployment B Base 2.9% 3.3%*
Rate (%) RBiF Good 2.3% 2.3%*
R Bad 5.2% 5.6%*
* ZELIF AR SR ZARIFERZEA TR * These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for
o oneyear.
BT EREETTEREEBEERERN The above assumptions were the latest forecasts available at the time
BATTER c MREHR B BERINATEAR the ECL calculation was performed. If after the period-end date further
—EHREEIRFE— S 21E > BRI SE S AR changes in the economic condition that are not consistent with the
BEMEDR > URMEIIER o BAIHRE forecasts are observed, adjustments may be made in the assignment
1TUEEERAEE o of probability weightings accordingly to reflect the latest situation. No

such adjustment was made so far.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,
“good” and “bad” are as follows:

20235 2022£F

12831H 12A31H

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

=i Base 70% 71%
BiF Good 11% 14%
B Bad 19% 15%

EERRARNEM S WA L5z 2 HAthaiE 1t
EEAR PIMNEREE » IENBUAEEH &
B)ERER/AFEATE > WU ENZSFRRNA
HEEERFLRBRRETEEEERREEH
BEE -

BT

FERREERREANRIZRRNT ¢

(i) REX BEREBAERKERRMERARE

TENENENNZE ;

(i) AEBEEREXR > ENHHREEERILT
mEENEATE ; &

(i) EBERIER - ER ARSI
ENEAFE -

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated

within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,

legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not

deemed to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has

been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored

for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as

follows:

(i)  Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured

borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i)  GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’

performance and collateral valuations; and

(iii)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on

mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from

reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual

assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:

e Retail
FEHEEsIENTE
ECL Impact
LB T (05T HKS’000 2023 2022
LFER Unemployment rates +1% 14,037 86,867
1% (8,487) (13,103)
FEREIRRR GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,145) (4,610)
-0.5% 4,221 4,701
IESELESISE Property price indices +5% (5,729) (4,228)
5% 11,651 8,360
b2 Corporate
FEHEEsIENTE
ECL Impact
LB TF oI5 HKS’000 2023 2022
KHEK Unemployment rates +1% 26,048 35,288
1% (23,225) (32,079)
FEREIERR GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,953) (7,129)
-0.5% 5,161 7,417
YEEERIER Property price indices +5% (9,044) (7,254)
5% 12,005 10,049

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of
the overall credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country
limits are also set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from
international credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a
more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit
risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions,
the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved financial
institutions, and uses established market practices on credit support
and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative
counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for individual financial
institution counterparty, including valuation limit for derivatives, is
approved by the GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit
rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral
and their characteristics are established within the credit policies, as
are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse
to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based

upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position
and ability to repay.
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3.23

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(a) Loansand advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

. Mortgages over properties;

Charges over business assets such as premises and

accounts receivable;

Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities

and equities;
Charges over deposits; and
Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans

and advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event
of default or early termination and in accordance with the
regulatory requirements.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of such
assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2023 was
HK$1,160 million (2022: HK$201 million).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

2023F12531H At 31 December 2023
REE/ 2528
Gross carrying/notional amount
RS
BRRE  RBIUT EiatE

i Special  Sub-standard &t ECL e
LOBEF A5 HKS$'000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RN RER Balance and placements with banks 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5534 19,547,584
—Reg - Stage 1 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5534 19,547,584
-k - Stage2 - - - - - -
—E3 - Stage3 - - - - - -

AT ES EEHEEA Debt instruments at fair value through
Hit2Ek&EHEE TR other comprehensive income 40,071,584 - 78,113 40,149,697 81,886 40,067,811
—FEEL - Stage 1 40,071,584 - - 40,071,584 34,356 40,037,228
-k - Stage2 - - - - - -
—MEE3 - Stage3 - - 78,113 78,113 47,530 30,583
DB ATRREH TR Debt instruments at amortised cost 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,028 39,372,378
—Reg - Stage 1 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
-k - Stage2 - - - - - -
—E3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
RREDREH Loans and advances to customers 138,418,175 1,851,740 2,779,561 143,049,476 1,113,256 141,936,220
—FEEL - Stage 1 128,604,667 - - 128,604,667 364,345 128,240,322
—ReE0 - Stage2 9,813,508 1,851,740 - 11,665,248 263,656 11,401,592
—REE3 - Stage3 - - 2,779,561 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306
BRZE Tradebills 2,060,317 - - 2,060,317 2,981 2,057,336
—FEEL - Stage 1 2,060,143 - - 2,060,143 2,981 2,057,162
-k - Stage2 174 - - 174 - 174
—E3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
B RIS R EMIRE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,054,974 20,487 67,933 5,143,394 20,915 5,122,479
—Reg - Stage 1 5,024,796 - - 5,024,796 6,979 5,017,817
V) - Stage?2 30,178 20,487 - 50,665 2,907 47,758
—MEE3 - Stage3 - - 67,933 67,933 11,029 56,904

EFREMEE  RIHER Loan and other commitments, and

financial guarantees 68,765,937 6,550 - 68,TT2,487 68,318 68,704,169
R - Stage 1 66,993,660 - - 66,993,660 65,861 66,927,799
V) - Stage?2 1,772,217 6,550 - 1,778,827 2,457 1,776,370
—E3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
=) Total 313,337,411 1,878,777 2,925,607 318,141,795 1,333,818 316,807,977

BRI ERIE - EFIRUATEE
BHEHF A MEERENEF TREZY
HELHERNREEGRFETAIESERITE
HifEERIE -

112 KER1ITARAR 2023555

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

20224 12831H At 31 December 2022

REE/ LR

Gross carrying/notional amount

FHEE
THEE  RBIUT FiEER
fi= Special ~ Sub-standard At ECL FE
LOBEF A5 HKS 000 Pass mention orbelow Total allowance Net
RITNEERRER Balance and placements with banks 26,432,036 - - 26432036 14591 26417445
—Re - Stagel 26,432,036 - - 26432036 14591 26,417,445
-k - Stage2 - - - - - -
—RE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
WATEZEESHEA Debt instruments at fair value through
EtzEianEsIE other comprehensive income 39,775,573 - - 39775573 482715 39,727,298
—Re - Stagel 39,697,600 - - 39,697,600 47645 39,649,955
V) - Stage2 77973 - - 77973 630 77,343
-3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
DA A FERRYER TR Debt instruments at amortised cost 32,985,496 - - 3298549 50,406 32,926,090
R - Stagel 32,985,496 - - 3298549 50406 32,926,090
-k - Stage2 - - - - - -
-3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
RRETRET Loans and advances to customers 132,178,461 1,812,898 2,539,012 136,530,371 1,636,402 134,893,969
—Re - Stagel 123,617,447 - - 123617447 406618 123,210,829
V) - Stage2 8,561,014 1,812,898 - 10373912 342,731 10,031,181
—REE3 - Stage3 2,539,012 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959
Eh R Trade bills 3,666,988 - - 3,666,988 5,570 3,661,418
—Re - Stagel 3,665,808 - - 3,665,808 5,569 3,660,239
V) - Stage2 1,180 - - 1,180 1 1,179
-3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
eI EREMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 4,102,480 11,806 70,319 4,184,605 25,193 4,159,412
—FBEL - Stagel 4,077,962 - 4,077,962 10,169 4,067,793
V) - Stage2 24,518 11,806 - 36,324 2,238 34,086
—REE3 - Stage3 - - 70,319 70,319 12,786 57,533
EFREMEE IR Loan and other commitments, and
financial guarantees 74,563,798 33,167 10,125 74,607,090 98973 74,508,117
—FEEL - Stagel 71,765,299 - - 71,765,299 80,684 71,675,615
) - Stage2 2,798,499 33,167 2,831,666 9,289 2,822,311
—REE3 - Stage3 - - 10,125 10,125 - 10,125
=5 Total 313,704,832 1,857,871 261945 318,182,159 1888410 316,293,749
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3.2.5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers
are current in meeting commitments and for which the full
repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

Treasury

Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with

internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to

counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to

counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

IREE
Gross carrying amount

LOBHET TS HKS’000 2023 2022
FERXZRAERNEE Trading assets

—(EFES - Debt securities 1,739,841 562,161

—{TETA - Derivatives 1,062,388 746,544
AT TR Hedging derivatives 2,503,761 3,154,692
MR ESTEEEEH) T AEGN Financial assets at fair value

ERIBE through profit or loss

—KREEE - Investment funds 8,216 9,303
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3. RIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 KFIAFFHE IR mat Ats EtE=F 57 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
ZREIEEREE (B) other credit enhancements (Continued)

FEEZEERRI2E TP BE— ST - The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

with reference to the following:

. HEFZERADEZIFBENBERLZ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
B8 ; portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. EERBEZERFENRBRLERERRE . Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
RARZERY1.94% (20224 © 1.86%) ; constituted 1.94% (2022: 1.86%) of the total loans and advances

to customers; and

. BB S R EMESIEERT4% (20224 - . 74% (2022: 72%) of the investments in debt securities and other

72%) FR/VIEA-FELRB © bills have at least an A- credit rating.
3.2.6 BERIRE 3.2.6 Loans and advances

PET BT Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:
LGB F o i3m HK$’000 2023 2022
ER R 4RER Gross loans and advances 143,049,476 136,530,371
B © REZEBELRER Less: total impairment allowances (1,113,256)  (1,636,402)
VHRE Net 141,936,220 134,893,969
EEREZERREH Credit-impaired loans and advances 2,779,561 2,539,012
PR : PEER3 IREZERH Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (485,255) (887,053)
HER Net 2,294,306 1,651,959
FEERRAFE Fair value of collateral held* 1,707,443 1,056,118
EEREERMBTIEEEEMN Credit-impaired loans and advances as
FBFAEEER DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 1.94% 1.86%

* EFRRAFEDRIBFIERRTERERRERS * Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of

B MBEFPRIEEET © collateral and outstanding loan balance.

116  KHRITAMRAR 2023555
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2023 2022
R BEZER
(L ETREREE LB REREE
Epalid Bt
B Impairment  SEFUREE Impairment
BOEE  allowance BHtE  allowance
Loans and as a % of Loans and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
4871 Class
1—1E8 1-pass 96.8 0.3 96.8 0.4
2—F5RIRE 2 - special mention 1.3 10.0 1.3 15.3
3—WARSLLLTH 3 - sub-standard or below 1.9 17.5 1.9 34.9
100.0 0.8 100.0 1.2
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3. RIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.6 BRRB (B) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
() BREBMBREENFISFEESER (a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
BEZEFRERRER impaired under HKFRS 9
BEEREEN MBI R A EEPRRE The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
BRZ BRI IR AT ERER DTN T ! and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

e =piniiln
el RELERE ARE(E ATE
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Gross Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
LB TF T (78T HKS’000 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EERBEZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—fEAF® - Credit cards 13,055 11,265 1,790 -
—IRER - Mortgages 336,922 60,443 276,479 315,248
—Hfth - Others 295,157 118,753 176,404 51,617
EEW Loans to corporate entities:
—BHEM - Term loans 1,834,850 195,196 1,639,654 1,073,352
— BN - Mortgages 49,254 12,842 36,412 47,724
—BEmAE - Trade finance 123,826 30,069 93,757 101,265
—Hfth - Others 126,497 56,687 69,810 118,237
EEREZEREE Total credit-impaired loans 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306 1,707,443
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3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

BEZEFERRBEHR (@) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FEIEER
[EBGAEEE REZEE REME NEE
20224 12H31H At 31 December 2022 Gross  Impairment Carrying  Fairvalue of
LOBM T3 HKS’000 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER Loans to individual:
—ER* - Credit cards 14,176 11,991 2,185 -
—ZIBER - Mortgages 254,376 52,170 202,206 219,655
—Hfth - Others 340,231 168,771 171,460 43,633
EEM Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER - Term loans 1,566,736 569,768 996,968 498,002
—RIBEM - Mortgages 109,328 6,608 102,720 108,734
—BomE - Trade finance 106,092 35,465 70,627 43,726
—Hfth - Others 148,073 42,280 105,793 142,368
EEREBEZERREE Total credit-impaired loans 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959 1,056,118
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

() BEIBERU EZERKREH (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(i)  BEIKIEEEREEE (i) Gross amount of overdue loans
2023 2022
EHAREE BHAREE
BH4azE BiazE
Gross Gross
amount of {h48%8  amountof {H4B%ZE
overdue Bt overdue =Rl
LB T3 HKS’000 loans % of total loans % of total

REBEPERREM
WBER > A

—3ER U LE6ER

—6EBB U LEE1F

—1F

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

Gross loans and advances to
customers which have been
overdue for:

- six months or less but over

three months 344,615 0.24 535,376 0.39

- oneyear or less but over
six months 664,811 0.46 987,443 0.72
- overoneyear 1,158,163 0.81 332,525 0.25
2,167,589 1.51 1,855,344 1.36




3. RHIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.6 BRRB (B) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
() @EE3ARMU L2 BB (48) (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)

(i) BWEIKREEEFN BN Z (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
BZEERATFFR P mE against overdue loans and advances
=708 i
REEHEE HHE BRE  IRHSRREE FEEZ3
Outstanding Current  FREEIRMS HHEZRR B
amount of market Portion  Portion not Stage 3
2023%12H31H At31December 2023 loans and valueof coveredby coveredby impairment
LUBIET o5 HKS’000 advances collateral collateral collateral  allowances

AHAREEES  Overdue loans and

BERRER advances to customers 2,167,589 2,615,092 1,553,890 613,699 228,158
BB EiAg

RMEBEHEE HmE HFE IEREREE FEER3

Outstanding Current  FRZAIESZHD EHEEMD BEERE

amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3

20224 12831H  At31 December 2022 loans and value of covered by covered by  impairment

LOBET o5 HKS 000 advances collateral collateral collateral allowances

HEAREERS  Overdueloans and

BRESR advances to customers 1,855,344 1,715,178 888,975 966,369 632,380
FAZEAREEDRIFER 28 Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
MEFATFREAME E B EWRMA © mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.

() KEHER(BNREEELEZE (c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
HRER) overdue advances shown above
{h48%E {H4B%E
Bkt Bkt
LOBEMSET (75T HKS’000 2023 % of total 2022 % of total
BERERKE®R Loans and advances to customers 405,780 0.28 339,249 0.25
PEEE BB L Stage 3 impairment allowances 115,036 123,023
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.7 Trade bills

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no balance of trade bills
that were overdue for more than 3 months.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

LOBISF LT HK$’000 2023 2022

BEME Nature of assets
Bl /ES Repossessed properties 252,687 125,262
Hth Others 925 5,560
253,612 130,822

WEHE R mIZ P ITIE R BIREE » BUWERIEA MU
RARBRZ ERARBIRET

& 5 BT % 35 48 (& 7 58,181,000 78 7T (2022 £F :
59,356,00077T) 2 7£ 1 Bl Ayt B9 5 T H A4 2
Th 72 EAR YR AR B R A BB i 2 7k 2 AT
VIR ER R DU o ZIRIRGA 2 MIMEF292 TH
MEEIETWRHEBEHEZEE - BAZERE
WAL ERESD o

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$58,181,000 (2022: HK$59,356,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in Mainland China, represent assets held by the Group
for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note 29. The
relevant loans had been derecognised.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL allowances
for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial

EEBREERRLR -

guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.

£ Retail
23l 1] PEER3 Ait
S S BHEE B
EEEE SRR BiR%EE FSIR%ER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
LOBIEFoAidn HKS000 allowance allowance allowance allowance
2023%1H1H At1January 2023 301,393 43,466 232,932 577,791
7 Transfers:
EBREREE Transfer to Stage 1 7,800 (5,227) (2,573) -
ERERERL Transfer to Stage 2 (6,259) 38,425 (32,166) -
BREMES Transfer to Stage 3 (25,868) (18,830) 44,698 -
RS R EBEEFEL Y Effect of stage transfers and changes in
o7 allowance (4,595) 11,755 339,157 346,317
HARRTRA: ~ BB A S ESD New financial assets originated, purchased
JEHEE or derecognised during the period 55,948 17,767 (6,880) 66,835
BNTIAE BIERE /BN Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
BRAE /IR RS 25 assumptions (50,112) (11,140) 48,651 (12,601)
FERRERIR Unwind of discount 363 570 76 1,009
Hi Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SN R EL {23 Foreign exchange and other movements (12) (47) = (119)
2023F12A831H At 31 December 2023 278,598 76,739 190,461 545,798
2022%181A At 1 January 2022 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
7 Transfers:
EREMRR Transfer to Stage 1 5,676 (5,676) - -
BRERED Transfer to Stage 2 (4,498) 4975 (477) -
EEEIE Transfer to Stage 3 (20,511) (13,099) 33,610 -
AEREEREGEFMES Y Effect of stage transfers and changes in
EZ allowance (845) 7,615 266,461 273,231
HARRTRA: ~ BB A S ESD New financial assets originated, purchased
JEREE or derecognised during the period 36,837 7,516 (7,197) 37,156
BNTAR BIERE /BN Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
RREE/ mEENER 2 assumptions (81,337) 5,403 31,178 (44,756)
FRIREEER Unwind of discount 409 502 68 979
s Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
IME R H A= Foreign exchange and other movements (163) - - (163)
20225128318 At 31 December 2022 301,393 43466 232,932 577,791
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3.2 EERKGE)
3.2.9 EEER (4B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

1o Corporate
[Z231 PEEZ2 PEE3 =1
TREAEE TREAEE FEHAIEE FEHAIEE
RiREER RStREER EiREER RREERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
LUBBEF DA HKS000 allowance allowance allowance allowance
2023%181H At 1 January 2023 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
EIE Transfers:
EREREL Transfer to Stage 1 20,345 (19,629) (716) =
BREMR Transfer to Stage 2 (17,535) 17,535 = =
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (123) (200,220) 200,343 =
MM ER R RS EFET 2§42 Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (8,115) 19,807 174,078 185,770
HAPRE ~ B SRS New financial assets originated,
ZEMEE purchased or derecognised during
the period 10,497 43,908 (19,597) 34,808
BIEAR /BUIE%RE /EXEK Changesin PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-

I /ARG B8 looking assumptions (48,113) 17,929 257,298 227,114
FRIRBAIR Unwind of discount 396 1,579 508 2,483
iG] Write-offs = = (971,199) (971,199)
INE e EL AN Foreign exchange and other movements (290) (89) (42) (421)
2023128310 At 31 December 2023 151,608 189,374 294,794 635,776
202%181H At 1 January 2022 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
70N Transfers:

BREMRL Transfer to Stage 1 7,275 (6,111) (1,164) -
BRERE Transfer to Stage 2 (19,004) 19,004 - -
BB EMERS Transfer to Stage 3 (1,795) (81,831) 83,626 -
MR EE R EREEmEL Y Effect of stage transfers and changes in

allowance (3,481) 20,174 505,434 522,127
HARETRLE « BASREERERL New financial assets originated,

SREE purchased or derecognised during

the period 23,306 (16,342) (39,442) (32,478)
BIEIAR BAERE /EXEK Changesin PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-

I/ ARERNERR 225 looking assumptions (28,716) 50,246 44,493 66,023
ARRRAEIR Unwind of discount 84 1,422 127 1,633
b6z Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
AN R H fthigE Foreign exchange and other movements (1,265) (1,753) (42) (3,060)
20224128314 At 31 December 2022 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221

RIERITARAE 2023FF%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
(in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial
guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

o2 Retail
REEZL 2] PEEX3 =1
el [ pz4R%E R pn4REE EpnAREE
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LUBISF oI5 HKS’000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 108,270,902 549,368 608,783 109,429,053
B2 Transfers:
BREREL Transfer to Stage 1 91,960 (69,081) (22,879) =
BREME Transfer to Stage 2 (499,145) 576,495 (77,350) =
BB Transfer to Stage 3 (449,421) (154,194) 603,615 =
IaHESD ~ 4R IEHEED Origination, derecognition, further
E—SERRIER lending and repayment 581,670 (70,277) (33,527) 477,866
i Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SN R EL thiEE Foreign exchange and other
movements (28,606) (262) (74) (28,942)
2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
2022F151H At 1 January 2022 111,759,893 448,842 588,688 112,797,423
o Transfers:
BT/ Transfer to Stage 1 76,020 (76,020) - -
BRERED Transfer to Stage 2 (344,783) 349,174 (4,391) -
BRERLS Transfer to Stage 3 (347,038) (93,907) 440,945 -
TIAHER ~ 4R IEREER Origination, derecognition, further
E—F B RREN lending and repayment (2,715,075) (78,721) (106,318) (2,900,114)
6 Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
SNE R E S Foreign exchange and other
movements (158,115) - (250) (158,365)
20222128311 At 31 December 2022 108,270,902 549,368 608,783 109,429,053
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

e S Corporate
FEER1 PEER2 PEER3 A
EbR4EEE RR4EEE ER4E%E ER4EEE
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LUBISF T3 HKS’000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2023F181H At 1 January 2023 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584
7 Transfers:
BREREL Transfer to Stage 1 825,047 (820,113) (4,934) =
BREMREL Transfer to Stage 2 (4,489,852) 4,498,645 (8,793) =
BREMES Transfer to Stage 3 (60,863)  (1,445,766) 1,506,629 =
TIHARESD ~ 48 ERERD Origination, derecognition, further
E—VETRED lending and repayment 4,608,617 (2,277,320) (327,205) 2,004,092
iG] Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SME R H A= Foreign exchange and other
movements (46,002) 370 (425) (46,057)
2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420
2022F181H At 1 January 2022 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
7 Transfers:
HBRERE Transfer to Stage 1 1,289,871 (1,287,410) (2,461) -
BREMR Transfer to Stage 2 (4,974,097) 4,979,117 (5,020) -
BYERRS Transfer to Stage 3 (827,604) (823,332) 1,650,936 -
ANIARESD ~ £2 ERESD Origination, derecognition, further
E—TERRED lending and repayment (1,858,687) (3,640,620) (287,024) (5,786,331)
b6 Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
IME R H A= Foreign exchange and other
movements (167,061) (28,907) (5,112) (201,080)
2022%12831H At 31 December 2022 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584

MEESERERS RERTHER KU ERRE

TR U A ESF 2R EEFH A HMEZE KSR
WEFTE  HPUATESFSBEEFFAR
2 mEW R ER T A48{E78,113,00078 7T HFE
ER2EREME3 > Bt EHEEREEERERE
FEF 5120225 12 531 HBY630,000 8 T M ER
2023412/ 31 H#47,530,00078 7T (2022 : #B{E
77,973,00078 TCHPEER 1 SRS E [ ER2 » FEFHEE
B A M ER S S AR FE FR 72,000 78 7T 1S 1 2 630,000
BT o Ht D EEMRERINMEHEG N ERER
ERER o

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. Of which, debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income with notional amount of
HK$78,113,000 was transferred from Stage 2 to Stage 3 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$630,000 as at 31 December 2022
to HK$47,530,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: transfer notional
amount of HK$77,973,000 from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an increase in
ECL allowance from HK$72,000 to HK$630,000) due to stage transition.
Others are classified in Stage 1 without stage transition during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.10 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency

IEEZ S HR DI 2 (BF58 55 o

designation at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

HAFE
sTEBHEE)
STAHEMEE
W SRS E LUBERR S
Financial HlJERAY
assets at EREE
HER S fair value Financial
BAREE through other assets at
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Trading  comprehensive amortised &%
LB T AT HKS’000 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA = 927,174 204,328 1,131,502
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 1,739,841 14,972,157 8,768,677 25,480,675
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ - 16,210,084 16,494,505 32,704,589
BHRBERA- Rated but lower than A- = 5,259,389 6,458,233 11,717,622
KB Unrated = 1,395,483 7,487,563 8,883,046
=1 Total 1,739,841 38,764,287 39,413,306 79,917,434
URFE
FTEEHEEF)
FFAEMEE
W E/MEE DU BRALAS
Financial FERAY
assets at ETWMEE
BFER 5 fair value Financial
RREE through other assets at
2022512 831H At 31 December 2022 Trading  comprehensive amortised =E
LOBMST o8 HK$°000 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 3,127,926 - 3,127,926
AA-ZEAA+ AA-to AA+ 562,161 10,208,949 6,440,778 17,211,888
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ - 15,630,609 15,806,959 31,437,568
BREEIA- Rated but lower than A- - 8,975,053 7,449,315 16,424,368
KB Unrated - - 3,288,444 3,288,444
Akt Total 562,161 37,942,537 32,985,496 71,490,194
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are
classified according to the location of the borrowers after taking
into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to
customers by geographical area.

2023%F 20224

12831H 12831H

At At

31 December 31 December

LOBBEFTlIFT HKS 000 2023 2022
BRER B AEEE Gross loans and advances to

customers

—&58 - Hong Kong 119,759,434 115,359,550

—HREIAith - Mainland China 7,546,867 6,387,927

— 8 - Macau 14,012,453 13,466,387

—HAth - Others 1,730,722 1,316,507

143,049,476 136,530,371

128  KHRITAMRAR 2023555
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

LGB F TR HK$’000 2023 2022
TEAEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEErt Industrial, commercial and financial
— MR - Property development 6,908,262 5,194,440
—ERKE - Property investment 23,767,506 21,406,840
—ERbZE - Financial concerns 3,607,794 2,564,573
—RERA - Stockbrokers 1,240,252 842,926
— BT EX - Wholesale and retail trade 4,791,670 4,825,599
—BEx - Manufacturing 1,684,066 1,954,317
— B BRI - Transport and transport equipment 2,662,549 2,247,726
— AT E) - Recreational activities 62,840 79,708
— Bk - Information technology 29,760 22,048
—Hfh - Others 6,062,815 6,054,928
50,817,514 45,193,105
A Individuals
—HBEIEEEHESE ~ - Loans for the purchase of flats in
FAABZEEREFE X Home Ownership Scheme, Private
TAEEHEIIEFER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 467,752 484,470
—EBHMEEYEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 34,954,353 33,911,826
—(ERFE®R - Credit card advances 3,841,087 3,674,222
—HAfth - Others 13,530,504 12,181,304
52,793,696 50,251,822
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 103,611,210 95,444,927
BZHME (FE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,624,799 5,752,611
EBEBLIMERANER (5X(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 33,813,467 35,332,833
143,049,476 136,530,371
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and
within the market risk management framework set by the Bank. The
RMCD of the Bank oversees the market risk arising from the treasury
operations of BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put in
place are commensurate with their businesses and consistent with the
Group standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market rrisk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(a) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.1 Marketrisk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value-at-risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least
annually for all trading positions and allocated to business
units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored
against limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR
for the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$3,022,000 (2022: HK$3,388,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.1 Marketrisk arising from the trading book (Continued)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(i) BT A

BRI R SRR TR EHRZ

BEBXRZNE EREERERE
ﬁBLﬁE’J@ﬂ;ﬁUEﬁ&% D ABRRRE
FVRE > TERES RRARRI P IETT
TEBHRE ; RMEZEESAE > 75
ERFNARER B N EEEEER
BRAGETRE - 1o > TREHER
ERX Z RS Z Rt GHEE
BHRIEEEGEK T RERREREH
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(i) Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the

BKFHIFRBE AN TIBE N RAL prescribed tolerable levels.
R o
BHARE ERAEEGREFEEY The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
LEgTHAER - and its delegated committees regularly.
(Z2) HmiZRARERE (b) VaR summary of trading portfolio
#%2023F12H31H1E12(ER #E2022%12A31HF1218AF
12 months to 31 December 2023 12 months to 31 December 2022
15 &= a3 15 R RIE
LUBMSF T i3m HKS’000 Average High Low  Average High Low
SNEE & s Foreign exchange risk 2,504 4,030 291 1,660 3,113 262
MR Interest rate risk 1,393 4,822 469 2,393 5,844 511
el All risks 3,022 5,997 703 3,388 6,132 653
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control

measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau. The net exposure positions including
the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by individual
currency and in aggregate, are managed by the Treasury
and Global Markets Division of the Group on a daily basis
within established foreign exchange limits.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.2 Marketrisk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that
this is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2023, if HKS had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$34 million higher (2022: HK$27 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKS had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$34 million lower (2022: HK$27 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the interest
margins or net interest income and the economic value
of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.

At 31 December 2023, if HKS and USS$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA’s standard parallel up scenario, with
other variables held constant, the impact on earnings over
the next 12 months and the impact on economic value of
equity would have been HK$201 million higher and HKS$775
million lower respectively (2022: HK$335 million higher and
HK$670 million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are broadly
on the same basis for both 2022 and 2023.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s

investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed

to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such

investments could change significantly depending on a variety of

factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that

might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

THEEREE  UKEEBBRINGERETF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
BEREEREZEEE - commitments translated into equivalent HKS amounts, categorised by
currency.

2023%12A31A At 31 December 2023 BT £ P AEH i ok
LEEFT AT HKS°000 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
e RATRITHVEER Cash and balances with banks 7,825,273 1,925,695 488,870 1,456,791 4,699,141 16,395,770
ERTIERERNIIS Placements with banks maturing between

N one and twelve months 496,027 271,724 - 2,230,640 153423 3,151,814
?—*rf’ﬁ*%ﬁﬁ?@%ﬂ% Trading securities 1,739,841 - - - - 1,739,841

UATHES B B HES Financial assets at fair value through

E“\?Eﬁﬁﬁq THEE profit or loss - - - 8,216 - 8,216
fTESBTIA Derivative financial instruments 98,744 3,190,255 - 43,311 233,839 3,566,149
KIE“#&HWEE Advances and other accounts 114,606,456 12,751,407 7,789,057 8,794,149 5,174,966 149,116,035

UATEEEHEEEA Financial assets at fair value through

Hit > ERENEREE other comprehensive income 7,888,098 31,448,863 863,918 88,181 235,882 40,525,842
DU AT RN EREE Financial assets at amortised cost 5,499,662 30,230,626 1,577,744 1,887,122 177,224 39,372,378
SREER Total financial assets 138,155,001 79,818,570 10,719,589 14,508,410 10,674,475 253,876,045
&ff Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 39,775 1,954,100 - 490,697 412 2,485,044
fTE£MTIA Derivative financial instruments 41,690 1,036,182 - 12,231 183,316 1,279,419
FIERZRENEE Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
BEER Deposits from customers 137,700,017 40,434,677 8,823,039 12,005,523 8,339,822 207,303,078
BEINEDE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,428,028 - - - 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes - 50916,645 - - - 5916,645
EHRERER Other accounts and accruals 3,504,501 3,927,482 287,913 302,757 54,113 8,076,766
SHaEAH Total financial liabilities 141,391,836 55,697,114 9,110,952 12,811,208 8,577,123 227,588,833
BEABRAKARE Net on-balance sheet positions (3,236,835) 24,121,456 1,608,637 1,697,202 2,096,752 26,287,212
BEBARIGRLERE Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 47,035  (22,348,398) - (1,436,748)  (1,798,634)  (25,536,745)

EE&E Credit commitments 55,122,860 7,059,396 1,841,877 4,697,483 50,871 68,772,487

* BEARRIINGAELRFEETERNREARSE
ESNEEF AR INEERITE TRRR TP

*

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2023

137



3. RHIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 TiFAK (&)
3.3.3 SMEEEE (FB)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 BT e P NG 2t At
LOEEF AT HKS$°000 HKD usp MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
RERIERITHER Cash and balances with banks 9,396,640 401,962 521,291 2,294,409 5,186,578 17,800,880
ERMIZDERRE Placements with banks maturing between

HER one and twelve months 5,839,272 - - 2,217,134 500,159 8,616,565
BERBRRNES Trading securities 562,161 - - - - 562,161
WATErEEHES Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNSHEE profit or loss - - - 9,303 - 9,303
TE&mIA Derivative financial instruments 153,112 3,568,584 - 2,716 176,824 3,901,236
REETREMKE Advances and other accounts 110,168,455 13,449,728 7,846,916 8,453,351 2,796,348 142,714,799
WATESEEEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through

Htt2EhENEHEE other comprehensive income 9,061,417 28,956,363 324521 131374 144176 38,617,851
DS AR SREE Financial assets at amortised cost 4154888 25,098,193 1,141,293 2,355,588 176,128 32,926,090
SREEA Total financial assets 139,335,946 71,474,830 9,834,021 15,523,875 8,980,213 245,148,885
& Liabilities
TR Deposits from banks 422,926 3,689,567 - - - 4,112,493
fTE£MTIA Derivative financial instruments 59,048 828,542 - 11,551 98,496 997,637
BERZRENEE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
BRER Deposits from customers 129,107,899 39,154,310 9,057,422 13,042,834 9,240,130 199,802,595
[SELLRER Certificates of deposit issued - 4,228,983 - - - 4,228,983
BEER Subordinated notes - 3,801,495 - - - 3,801,495
EfERERTER Other accounts and accruals 3,039,134 4,317,747 192,617 316,402 49,129 7,915,029
SEIBRAS Total financial liabilities 133,359,498 56,020,644 9450,039 13,370,787 9,387,755 221,588,723
BEBERARETE Net on-balance sheet positions 5976448 15,454,186 383,982 2,153,088 (407542) 23,560,162
BEBERIMNIEREFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 16,463,860 (15,923,280) - (1,099,191) 647,607 88,996
EEAE Credit commitments 59,473,558 7,503,748 2,160,921 5,092,322 376541 74,607,090
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3. RHIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 TIBEE (@) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

334 FIEREE 3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TERMIIAER ZFERE - KNBIEAERRZ The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
BREESETEZSHMEEREE ) THREEEX Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
HeEIHAE (UUREEREE) H1E ° carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

3fEAME
3f8A kS 1ENE
FUT Over B5E SEBE FHE

2023%12831H At 31 December 2023 3months 3months  Over1lyear Over  Non-interest A3

WEET AT HKS000 or less to1year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total

BE Assets

REREHTHEER Cash and balances with banks 15,549,282 - - - 846,488 16,395,770

ERTIEREANIS Placements with banks maturing

igge=s between one and twelve months 1,172,881 1,978,933 - - - 3,151,814

%—W*%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?éﬁ% Trading securities 1,725,135 7,293 7,413 - - 1,739,841

UATHES B B HES) Financial assets at fair value through
aﬂ?‘%ﬁiﬁﬁ THEE profit or loss - - - - 8,216 8,216
fTEERTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,566,149 3,566,149
mg%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ&@ Advances and other accounts 129,093,406 7,390,531 5,604,257 253,581 6,774,260 149,116,035

ATES 2B HEFEA Financial assets at fair value through
,\ﬂﬂ%ﬁuﬁzmﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁé other comprehensive income 5,882,922 7,989,493 21,376,780 3,515,092 1,761,555 40,525,842

DU AT RN SR E Financial assets at amortised cost 4,855,651 7,644,867 19,744,598 7,125,270 1,99 39,372,378

SHBEA Total financial assets 158,279,277 25,011,117 46,733,048 10,893,943 12,958,660 253,876,045

Bff Liabilities

TR Deposits from banks 2,472,238 6,107 - - 6,699 2,485,044

fTE£MTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1219419 1,279,419

RIERBRENER Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853

BRER Deposits from customers 153,457,800 37,670,653 2,634,371 - 13,540,254 207,303,078

BEINEDE Certificates of deposit issued 796,144 1,631,884 - - - 2,428,028

BEES Subordinated notes 1,754,856 - 4,161,789 - - 5916,645

HAERE KB Other accounts and accruals 487,347 101,404 326,627 149,062 7,012,226 8,076,766

EHakaH Total financial liabilities 150,068,238 39,410,048 7,122,787 149,162 21,838,598 227,588,833

FISHREESH (REHE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap

(unadjusted)* (788,961) (14,398,931) 39,610,261 10,744,781

FIEGETRANZTE Effect of interest rate derivative

contracts 30,131,970 (395,558)  (17,669,399)  (12,067,013)
HEBEEEA: (GHR2)* Total interest sensitivity gap
(adjusted)* 29,343,009  (14,794,489) 21,940,862  (1,322,232)

* REAENEHREEREEEERNEEN * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENFHEEET - KRAREMEBREERSA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
FURER R R EMETHAERTE TESHAN takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
Ko into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EAUE
3(EA Z1E VERE
LT Over 55 SENE T3t 8

202E12831H At 31 December 2022 3 months 3 months Over 1 year Over  Non-interest EH
VBT HKS000 orless to Lyear to5years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
e RITRITHVAEER Cash and balances with banks 16,088,163 - - - 1712717 17,800,880
TERTIZELERREES Placements with banks maturing

iofeEy between one and twelve months 5,856,264 2,760,301 - - - 8,616,565
FIERBRENES Trading securities 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161
WATErEEHES Financial assets at fair value through

SABRNSRHEE profit or loss - - - - 9,303 9,303
fTEEHTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,901,236 3,901,236
RIBERAMERE Advances and other accounts 122,130,082 4,962,885 8,510,503 2,910,738 4200591 142,714,799
WATEEEESHHA Financial assets at fair value through

B 2ANENeHEE other comprehensive income 6,690,905 6,158,337 20,117,460 4,975,835 675314 38,617,851
DS AR EREE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,969,264 3210135 19,153,704 7,590,998 1989 32,926,090
SRBERS Total financial assets 154279843 17,098,096 47,792,225 15477571 10,501,150 245,148,885
af Liabilities
B1TEA Deposits from banks 3411424 - - - 701,069 4112493
fTE£MTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 997,637 997,637
BIFRZEENERE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
BEER Deposits from customers 132,723417 48,958,085 2,406,598 - 15714495 199,802,595
BETNETE Certificates of deposit issued 814,917 3,049,142 364,924 - - 4,228,983
BEES Subordinated notes - - 3,801,495 - - 3,801,495
EERENRTER Other accounts and accruals 738,548 101,529 295,877 101,148 6,677,927 7,915,029
SEBRAS Total financial liabilities 138418797 52,108,756 6,868,894 101,148 24091,128 221,588,723
FISSEEBA (REER)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap

(unadjusted)* 15861046 (35,010,660) 40923331 15376423

HEETRERNZZE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 29,990,577 689,839 (16,153,692)  (14,526,724)
HESRER A (%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 45851623 (34,320,821) 24,769,639 849,699
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA’s requirements set forth in the
SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk”
and the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk
Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the approach adopted by
the HKMA for supervising and assessing the liquidity risk of banks while
the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles
formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel
Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of
banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to oversee
liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the Group’s loan
and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and projections,
and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the LMR, CFR and
maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition, material changes
in the liquidity risk metrics together with any corresponding proposed
mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO. Appropriate limits or
triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets are
held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient level of stable
funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and Global Markets
Division is responsible for the day-to-day management of funding and
liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the measurement
and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis,
and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial
Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk,
and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR,
CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of
the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as
the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical
observations. The cash flow projections also take into account the
historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn
lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as standby letters
of credit and guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate
liquidity cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable
securities with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities in the
cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can be readily
sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short period of time.
Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity.



3. RHIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 REBEEKE(E)
34.1 FEELEEEIEEF ()

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BERETT In HK$ million
20234 20224
12H31H 12H31H
AERD 4R As at As at
Internal EAcAER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2023 2022
F1R RIEEEBBENREENEA « Zi2RREIRT - BRABRES KA 13,202 11,331
EEEITHR R AREER0%NEEE
Tier1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2AR REEEBBENREENBN « ZBEREIRT - REBUKRIFEM 13,594 7,859
R TIIERZ BB EER20% 5 BESS
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and
non-financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under
the Basel Il Standardised Approach
552B#R E D ABKESERR A OEN BB EER RPN P RENEE 46,973 46,384
HNEERERIEBRTHERCEAMEERS
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the

liquidity maintenance ratio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the

=N reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
ERME
{8318
FUT  3fERMUL
1f§B  3months F1E 1ENE
B8RRI HUTF orless Over B5E SENE

2023128318 At 31 December 2023 Repayable Upto butover  3months  Overlyear Over EHMHAM fit
WEEF AT HKS 000 ondemand 1month 1month tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
BE Assets
B REsRIneEes Cash and balances with banks 2,798,656 13,507,114 - - - - - 16,395,770
HRTIELERRA Placements with banks maturing

HERER between one and twelve months - - 1,172,880 77,398 1,901,536 - - 3,151,814
BB EENES Trading securities - 799,564 925,571 7,293 7,413 - - 1,739,841
NATEHEREES) Financial assets at fair value

STABEIEHER through profit or loss - - - - - - 8,216 8,216
TEEHTE Derivative financial instruments - 391,222 168,773 461,233 1,108,949 1,435,972 - 3,566,149
FEESREMEE Advances and other accounts 7,906,144 20,568,142 8,765,033 18,835,403 47,061,274 43,855,800 2,124,239 149,116,035
NATEHEEEES Financial assets at fair value

AR AN through other comprehensive

THEE income - 2062699 2424252 8,100,081 22,262,064 3515091 1,761,555 40,525,842
DR AR SR Financial assets at amortised cost

B - QM47,698 1,219,847 7,995,630 20,521,040 17,125,271 1,992 39,372,378
HENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 2215131 2,215,131
HESNEREE Investments n jointly controlled

entities = = = - - - 129,946 129,946
5 Gooduill - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
B EE Intangible assets - - - - - - 61,005 61,005
TEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3,640,520 3,640,520
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 761,606 761,606
S T Current income tax assets - - - 1,213 - - - 1,273
ELEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 165,823 - - 165,823
BEA: Total assets 10,704,800 40,266,439 14,736,356  35478,311 93,029,099 55,932,134 11,417,661 261,564,300
&ff Liahilities
FTER Deposits from banks 97,690 625719 1,755,528 6,107 - - - 2,485,044
ik = Derivative financial instruments - 484,474 166,770 331,390 246,168 50,617 - 1,219,419
BIERBRGNEE Trading liabilities - 99,853 - - - - - 99,853
REER Deposits from customers 61,475,731 35,870,147 69,652,215 37,670,614 2,634,371 - - 207,303,078
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued - 406,054 390,090 1,631,384 - - - 2,408,028
HiEER Subordinated notes - 1,754,856 - - 4,161,789 - - 5916,645
&k Lease liahilities - 12,387 24,063 96,617 297,877 52,935 - 483,879
EfiRERER Other accounts and accruals,

TEERESE excluding lease liabilities 379,281 4,294,330 972,785 1,591,954 64,501 11,371 208,575 17,502,887
HEREak Currentincome tax liabilities - - - 287,545 - - - 287,545
EEnEaE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 100,921 - - 100,921
&faas Total liabilities 61,952,702 43,547,820 72,961,451 41,616,111 7,505,717 114923 278,575 227,977,299
FREEE Net liquidity gap (51,247,902)  (3,281,381) (58,225,095)  (6,137,800) 85,523,382 55,817,211 11,139,086 33,587,501
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3. MFBEREE(E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 GEESRK (&) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 FIHFE 7 (48) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

HERNUE

13188
gUT  3ERUL
188 3months FlIE 15N
iRE FUF orless Over B5E SENE

20225128318 At 31 December 2022 Repayable Upto butover ~ 3months  Over1lyear Over  EBARHE ast
LEETF AR HKS'000 on demand Lmonth 1month tolyear  to5years Syears  Indefinite Total
BE Assets
BERERTNER Cash and balances with banks 3329660 14,471,220 - - - - - 17,800,880
ERTIZ1MERR Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months - - 5856260 2,760,303 - - - 8616565
}-*M ReRGNES Trading securities - - 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161

UATER EEHEE) Financial assets at fair value

aﬁ\?ﬂ INEHEE through profit or loss - - - - - - 9,303 9,303
fTEsmIE Derivative financial instruments - 297,916 169,477 233959 1390438 10809446 - 3901236
mag RS Advances and other accounts 131644 19328145 9450994 15939687 45195717 43779598 1708014 142,714,799

UATER EEHEE) Financial assets at fair value

aﬁ\ﬁ 2 A through other comprehensive

TREE income - 1495726 4732868 628075 20510033 4975835 675314 38,617,851
BRI AT SRR 27 Financial assets at amortised cost

&% - 139416 794 321013 2021557 7,591,000 1989 32,926,090
HANTRE Investment in an associate - 2159290 2,159,290
EEEGBREE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 123,072 123,012
BE Goodwill - - - - - - 713451 713,451
BVEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 61,005 61,005
EREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3645703 3645703
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 802,693 802,693
EREREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 262,073 - - 262,073
A Total assets 10,642,304 36992423 21,262,730  283785% 87,584,606 58,155,879 9,899,834 252,916,312
& Liabilities
RER Deposits from banks 517595 2574810 1,020,088 - - - - 4112493
TEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 249,956 184,586 161,327 401,768 - - 997,637
BERBERNEE Trading liabilities - 499,725 230,766 - - - - 730,491
REER Deposits from customers 71878233 21,539,766 55020079 48958156 2406361 - - 199,802,595
BEANETE Certificates of deposit issued 814916 3,049,143 364,924 - - 4218983
HhiEEE Subordinated notes - - - - 3,801,495 - - 3,801,495
il Lease liabilities - 11,992 23833 101,529 295,876 101,148 - 534,378
HiiRERFER Other accounts and accruals,

TOEHESE excluding lease liabilities 339,191 4,269,640 998,825 4,61 712,562 744,205 311,967 7,380,651
HEREak Currentincome tax liabilities - - - 284,453 - - - 284,453
EERESE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 36,267 - - 36,267

&EA Total liabilities 72,135,019 29,145889  58293,093 52,558,869 8,019,253 845,353 311,967 221,909,443
EER Net liquidity gap (62,002,715) 7,846,534  (37,030,363) (24,180,273) 79565353 57310526 9,587,867 31,006,929

RIERITARAE 2023FF%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

18R

ME
{83{8R 38R
gUT WME

BB 3months FE 1L

il HUT or less Over B5E SEDE R
Repayable Upto  butover  3months Overlyear Over B &3t
LSBT HKS$000 ondemand  1month  1month  tolyear  to5years Syears  Indefinite Total
20235127310 At31December 2023
ﬁﬁﬁﬂi%ﬁ@ﬁ i Certificates of deposit held included in:
ALTEBEEESA Financial assets at fair value through
,m%@uim NEREE other comprehensive income - - 116,051 245,088 - - - 361,139
DgsmAgRNEREE Financial assets at amortised cost - 5man - 3,390,846 - - - 3,918,269
N0ENA3IA At31 December 2022
ﬁﬁﬂm@aﬁ Certificates of deposit held included in:
ALTEEEEESHA Financial assets at fair value through
,ﬁﬁ%@%{m NEEER other comprehensive income - - - - 234,493 - - 234,493
WESHATRNSREE Financial assets at amortised cost - 547,529 167475 2,077,486 307,688 - - 310178

,\é 1B (B HAIR A A R BEC A R IER S AC &

EEE+NEE - ARNETHNEBR KRR
7FEE;EE’\J,H\HBE7S’Z7FH%EEU » BIRTTM S » T2AE
EERLENEER - THENFRRAERSE
Fges - BhERinEsERE

BEAAENIFAARNSENMAEREIERZ
ME&ERNES » Bt ERRASES REER
KRERETFIAIERBNEEZRSE -

RAEE—RIERE= S REABHELED

BEE ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁfﬂlﬁﬁﬁ%}ﬂEEIE"FFE%?’KIEE’\J
RBESHBREB VN AENSE - HNRZEE
HRIERE HHEJZZQ&E%’E@J%%T% » FICAR R
HEEZEERENRENSNREERLEFR
HEAIREEK °

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management
of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different
types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but
also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace,
at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature
are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis

include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency

futures, exchange-traded currency options;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

. Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps

and cross currency interest rate swaps;
. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

. Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.43 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
AR MU LB 3fEAMNL
3{ERHMUT F1f 1EYE
1ERSMT  3monthsor Over F5F
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 Upto  lessbutover 3months  Overlyear SENE At
LB i HK$000 1month 1month to1year to5years  Over5years Total
I TRRER Non-derivative cash flow
=L Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 729,834 1,755,734 6,107 - - 2,491,675
RRER Deposits from customers 98,086,351 71,344,966 38,783,585 2,706,755 - 210,921,657
RERZHEENER Trading liabilities 100,000 - - - - 100,000
BRTIETE Certificates of deposit issued 426,348 410,104 1,715,955 - - 2,552,407
BEEH Subordinated notes 1,800,993 - 214,323 5,012,902 - 7,028,218
HESE Lease liabilities 12,388 24,063 96,617 297,878 52,935 483,881
U= Other liabilities 62,410 1,482 43,277 - 292,685 399,854
EE0E Total liabilities
(BHRIER) (contractual maturity dates) ~ 101,218,324 73,536,349 40,859,864 8,017,535 345,620 223,977,692
TETARER Derivative cash flow
RFREEE Derivative financial instruments
TEEmMTIA settled on net basis (4,705) (14,592) (33,941) (65,284) - (118,522)
REREE Derivative financial instruments
fTEeMIA settled on a gross basis
AR Total outflow 85,336,237 22,075,866 72,768,443 5,529,931 613,826 | | 186,324,303
MR Total inflow (85,388,726) | | (22,183,153) | | (73,795,310) | | (8,432,753)| | (1,300,819) | ((191,100,761)
(52,489) (107,287)  (1,026,867)  (2,902,822) (686,993)  (4,776,458)
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3. RIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 GEESRK (&) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 HEHFIRIE Z KRR E T (B 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)

YEAMLE 3EAUL

3EAFUAT E1E 1FELE
VERZMUT  3monthsor Over E54F

20226124314 At 31 December 2022 Upto  lessbutover 3months Over 1 year SELE CH
LOBIET 03T HK$°000 1month 1month to Lyear to5years Over 5years Total
FETERER Non-derivative cash flow
afE Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 3,148,402 1,382,987 - - - 4,531,389
RREHR Deposits from customers 95,905,385 55,619,737 50,045,801 2,472,269 - 204,043,692
FERZRENEE Trading liabilities 500,000 232,000 - - - 732,000
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued - 831,134 3,186,512 392,760 - 4,410,406
BIaEH Subordinated notes 44,103 - 113,547 4,505,592 - 4,663,242
HEsE Lease liabilities 12,568 24,940 105,902 307,274 102,485 553,169
HEtafE Other liabilities 1,921,334 505,658 360,392 - 271,746 3,059,130
EfE0E Total liabilities

(B#93I8R) (contractual maturity dates) 101,532,292 58,596,456 53,812,154 7,677,895 374231 221,993,028
TETARSR Derivative cash flow
RFREEE Derivative financial instruments

TEEMTA settled on net basis (127,172) (39,229) (96,951) (47,124) (1,520) (311,996)
BEREE Derivative financial instruments

fTE2mIA settled on agross basis
AR Total outflow 65,920,646 19,021,182 19,090,989 16,823,690 6,407,382 | | 127,263,889
MALEE Total inflow (64,878,213) | | (18,802,935) | | (21,225,892) | | (19,005,166) (7,135,611) | | (131,047,817)

1,042,433 218,247 (2,134,903) (2,181,476) (728,229) (3,783,928)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments

that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the

reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

where a Group company is the lessee; and

. RERERREZBAKIE . Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1FEURA 1FENE SEMUE
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 No later E55F Over =5
LOB T oA d HKS’000 than 1 year 1-5years 5years Total
BRI Loan commitments 63,598,438 2,657,580 194,226 66,450,244
ERARTR Guarantees, acceptances and
HAtE AR other financial facilities
—ERKREREARE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,906,693 22,228 - 1,928,921
—REBREEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 393,322 - - 393,322
LS TRAY R Operating lease commitments 2,474 6,355 1,430 10,259
B RIE Capital commitments 50,729 - - 50,729
&t Total 65,951,656 2,686,163 195,656 68,833,475
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

1FELR 1FEM E SEM E
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 No later Z54F Over ast
LOBISFL5m HKS’000 than 1 year 1-5 years 5years Total
B Loan commitments 68,441,125 2,301,536 668,036 71,410,697
TR~ ARk Guarantees, acceptances and

HAthERARTS other financial facilities
—ERERERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 2,613,307 17,352 - 2,630,659
—IRE N EEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 247,910 - - 247,910
EHREHER Forward forward deposits placed 317,824 - - 317,824
IETRA A HE Operating lease commitments 6,299 10,297 - 16,596
B KIE Capital commitments 71,857 - - 71,857
&t Total 71,698,322 2,329,185 668,036 74,695,543
3.5 EMEEREBBRZATE 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(F) RFEZEE

AFEXRRNAHESEEERFAERE
BENEEEARENRFR ZIEFMER - &
FEREVERKRERBREZEERESRT
B LERF - hEHRREE R
B FESERMGER (NER) B tE
17> MLERRDERERE > BRATES
BRI TN -

EMTAZAFEDEBRITHRIER FHE5
2RENFERETZAFRZTHEERE
FRUER SRS B EPA (S 2B - TmZE
BB BENERGET AL

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair
value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward rates
and the fair value of option contracts is derived using appropriate
pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and
other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When
the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process

are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy

that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable

inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices). This level includes the majority
of the OTC derivative contracts. These are financial
instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments
in active markets or quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in inactive markets and financial
instruments valued using models where all significant
inputs are observable.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.



MBRARERE (B) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EHEEREEZATEE) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) A FEZRGE) (b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

AT ESEZEERERE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

REMATESE Recurring fair value measurements

2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 H14R 24k 34K AaE
LB (i3 HKS’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S Descriptions

BER 7 BasE 5 K& Trading securities and financial

AT EstEEEE assets at fair value through

STAETRHNSREE profit or loss

B85 Debt securities - 1,739,841 - 1,739,841

BREES Investment funds 8,216 - - 8,216
TEEmTA Derivative financial instruments

HIERX S AR Held for trading - 1,062,388 - 1,062,388

A BEEH Held for hedging - 2,503,761 - 2,503,761

AT EstE B HESH) Financial assets at fair value

stAEMEEIRER through other comprehensive

EREE income

B85 Debt securities - 38,764,287 - 38,764,287
Em e Equity securities 268 - 1,761,287 1,761,555

WA EstE2EESST Total assets measured
at fair value 8,484 44,070,277 1,761,287 45,840,048

A Est= B EEE) Financial liabilities at fair value
stABTEMEE— through profit or loss -

HIERZ AR held for trading

(EbiTiEs Debt securities - 99,853 - 99,853
TEEMITA Derivative financial instruments

HIERX S AR Held for trading - 1,057,303 - 1,057,303

1E5 BEEF Held for hedging - 222,116 - 222,116

BN EStEZ8ES5T Total liabilities measured
at fair value - 1,379,272 - 1,379,272
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent investments
in shares issued by unlisted entities. These investments were
acquired some years ago when the Group applied to join the
platforms or cooperative arrangements operated by the relevant
entities in areas such as international financial messaging, cross-
border payments, credit cards issuance, etc. which are essential
to the provision of banking services by the Group.

The unlisted equity investments are measured using valuation
techniques of market comparable companies, dividend discount
model, discounted cash flow model, or recent transaction.
The significant unobservable inputs are the average price-to-
book ratio (“PB ratio”) of the comparable listed companies, the
dividend growth rate and cost of equity used in the dividend
discount model, and the discount rate and dividend yield used
in the discounted cash flow model. As at 31 December 2023, if all
of the significant unobservable inputs favourably changed and
unfavourably changed by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased by HK$87 million (2022: HKS50
million) and decreased by HK$87 million (2022: HK$45 million)
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The
changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses
during the year. There was no addition or disposal during the
year.



3. RHIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.5 EMEEREBEZATEGEE 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) R FEZHR(E) (b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BATEECEEREE | @ Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)
REMAFESE (@) Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)
2022%F12831H At 31 December 2022 $14 2R S534% ~
LB T (75T HK$°000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S Descriptions

BER 7 BarsE 5 K& Trading securities and financial

AT EstEEEE assets at fair value through

STAETRHNSREE profit or loss

(et Tiess Debt securities - 562,161 - 562,161

KREREE Investment funds 9,303 - - 9,303
TEEmTA Derivative financial instruments

FHER S Ak Held for trading - 746,544 - 746,544

A BRI Held for hedging - 3,154,692 - 3,154,692

AT EstE2 A H S Financial assets at fair value

sTARMEER TN through other comprehensive

EHEE income

B%E5 Debt securities - 37,942,537 - 37,942,537
S EE Equity securities 337 - 674,977 675,314

WA EstE2EEST Total assets measured
at fair value 9,640 42,405,934 674,977 43,090,551

A EStEEHES) Financial liabilities at fair value

sFABEMNSREE—  through profitor loss -

FERZ AR held for trading

B85 Debt securities - 730,491 - 730,491
TTESmMTA Derivative financial instruments

R 7 Ak Held for trading - 640,447 - 640,447

FEREEH Held for hedging - 357,190 - 357,190

WA EstE 86485t Total liabilities measured
at fair value - 1,728,128 - 1,728,128
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Cash and balances and placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

(iii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits from banks, deposits from customers and
certificates of deposit issued

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is
the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings
not quoted in an active market is based on discounted
cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar

remaining maturity.

(v) Subordinated notes

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 except as follows:

AREE

2023%12831H  At31December 2023 Carrying F14 24 34 ATE
LOBISTF o8 HKS000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
TREE Financial assets
REKIFTHAERK  Cashand balances and

ERITIER placements with banks 19,547,584 19,547,584 - - 19,547,584
LUBERALASTIERAY  Financial assets at

SRHEE amortised cost 39,372,378 - 39,306,558 2,000 39,308,558
ERHaE Financial liabilities
EEITHEIE Certificates of deposit issued 2,428,028 - 2,430,481 - 2,430,481
BEEK Subordinated notes 5,916,645 - 5,915,400 - 5,915,400

IREE

2022412831H At 31 December 2022 Carrying EA R 2R £33k NTE
LOBISTF o8 HKS000 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
ERMBEE Financial assets
R& KRBT K Cash and balances and

EIRTTIGER placements with banks 26,417,445 26,417,445 - - 26,417,445
LUBBRAZASBRR)  Financial assets at

SMEE amortised cost 32,926,090 - 32,562,989 2,000 32,564,989
TRBE Financial liabilities
BEITNENEE Certificates of deposit

issued 4,228,983 - 4,233,857 - 4,233,857

BEER Subordinated notes 3,801,495 - 3,797,662 - 3,797,662
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

. To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a

going concern;

. To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to

other stakeholders; and

. To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for
supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA
on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, the Bank is required to
meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital,
Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted assets.
The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are set at
4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-
5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar Il
capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements
set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms part of Basel IlI
implementation and the required information is submitted to the
HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the international standards, the
minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by the
HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into
account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet
exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts by applying
relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before being
classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated statement of financial position are share capital, retained
profits, other equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also
includes collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general
banking risks as allowed under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in Mainland
China, DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the National Financial
Regulatory Administration (“NFRA”) respectively for supervisory

purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the NFRA on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM and
the NFRA requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or capital
base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy ratio)
not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are
not included in the consolidated financial statements. These services
could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-
administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the consolidated financial statements are fair and
reasonable in all material respects.

(a) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and
the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note
3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these

elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the

measurement of ECL;

. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of

measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at fair
value are valued based on observable market quotations. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation for
valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range of observable
quotations, recent observable transactions, the reliability and quality
of the pricing source, and the value of securities of a similar nature. For
unlisted equity investments, management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modelling techniques.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at fair
value at reporting date are shown in Note 18, 19 and 21.

(c) Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions
in relation to future benefits to be generated from the intangible
assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the
acquired entities, or discount rates which could be caused by major
changes in market conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments
to the carrying values of such assets. In the event that the expected
recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly
lower than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have
to be recognised.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible asset at reporting date
are shown in Note 25.

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out impairment assessments on its investment in
BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment against
the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in use is based on
a discounted cash flow projection which contains certain assumptions
derived from management and observable market information. This
estimate is subject to application of management judgement and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$552 million (2022:
HK$1,683 million).

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

. If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the

Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

. If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

. Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise)
it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects
this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the
current financial year, the Group has not exercised any extension or
termination options.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at
reporting date are shown in Note 27.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Tax position relating to the unamortised upfront
payment and deferred payments recognised as income

As announced by the Group when the Hong Kong Distribution
Agreement (“HKDA”) was entered into on 19 June 2017, the HKDA was
intended to be an exclusive, long-term bancassurance cooperation
between the Bank and Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited, which
was terminated on 8 July 2022. A new bancassurance arrangement
entered into with Sun Life Hong Kong Limited which has commenced
in the second half of 2023. Management assessed that the upfront fee
and deferred payments received and receivable by the Bank under
the HKDA and the new bancassurance arrangement can be treated
substantially as capital in nature for tax purpose. Management has
taken this consideration into account in the preparation of the financial
statements.
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5. ASRTRISRRR R

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

TIRITHAFEANR R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
LGBIETF T lid)m HK$°000 2023 2022
BE ASSETS
RE RERITIAEER Cash and balances with banks 14,997,455 16,089,680
TEIRITIE 1288 AEIERAER Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 2,880,090 8,288,099

HER 5 BRNES Trading securities 1,739,841 562,161
AT EStE B HEE A Financial assets at fair value through

BRNEHEE profit or loss 8,216 9,303
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 3,441,663 3,862,552
BIEEFREMIEE Advances and other accounts 127,291,471 121,884,694
AT ESE B HEE A Financial assets at fair value through

HthemlEremEE other comprehensive income 39,650,280 38,284,541
DUBER A AT BRIV ERB & Financial assets at amortised cost 32,193,991 27,547,435
BEARKRE Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEZEGIBRRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MEBAERERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,853,351 4,150,476
B EE Intangible assets 2,753 2,753
TERAMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 3,089,905 3,074,630
REME Investment properties 713,169 752,315
BNEARIEEE Current income tax assets 1,273 -
FIERIEEE Deferred income tax assets 85,047 189,690
BELSE Total assets 231,181,562 225,931,386
aE LIABILITIES
RITE Deposits from banks 5,755,333 7,733,611
TEEmMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,195,252 964,415
R ZRRNERE Trading liabilities 99,853 730,491
BERER Deposits from customers 177,992,411 172,702,945
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,428,028 4,228,983
BEED Subordinated notes 5,916,645 3,801,495
HMER B R TER Other accounts and accruals 7,314,701 7,315,277
AIEpRIEEME Current income tax liabilities 252,627 251,404
aEat Total liabilities 200,954,850 197,728,621
G EQUITY
BeA Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
& Other reserves (including

(BEREEH) s (H) retained earnings) Note (a) 22,858,902 20,834,955
KRREE Shareholders’ funds 29,058,902 27,034,955
BIMERET A Additional equity instruments 1,167,810 1,167,810
fERat Total equity 30,226,712 28,202,765
EEKkaEes Total equity and liabilities 231,181,562 225,931,386

EEEN2024F3 828 Bt R ISREEEf o

BEHE FHE
EFE EFAESTE

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

March 2024.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director



5. ZFRITHBRARKRFEES (&) 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (CONTINUED)
5t ¢ Note:
()  AIRTTRefEEEh (@)  Reserve movement of the Bank
MRinAERE REER
TEEfE RESHEE 2t (&)
Premises  Investment ER b —fRffE  Share-based Retained
Revaluation Revaluation  Exchange General Compensation  Earnings A
LSBT TR HKS000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
202351817 At1 January 2023 233,100 (95,724) - 693304 14940 19,989,335 20,834,955
NATEEEHESHA Net change in fair value of debt
HEt2ERENERTIEZ  instrumentsat fair value through other
ATELEEE comprehensive income - 298,270 - - - - 298,270
WATEEEHESHA Net change in fair value of equity
Ht2ERENERETAZ  instruments at fair value through other
ATEEDIE comprehensive income - 543,920 - - - - 543,920
REERHEEHZELHIE  Deferred income tax on movementsin
investment revaluation reserve - (43,181) - - - - (43,181)
WATEEEHERHA Net change in allowance for expected credit
Hit2EWRENEBTIAZ losses of debt instruments at fair value
FEEEGBEREESFE  through other comprehensive income - 33,627 - - - - 33,627
BMERM TR RENE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - - (135,025) (135,025)
BERIMTHBERRY Exchange differences arising on translation
ERER of the financial statements of a foreign
branch = - 58 - - - 58
DR R AR Provision of equity-settled share-based
Bz BE compensation - - - - 54 - 54
MR AR AR Settlement of equity-settled share-based
Hitgm 2 48 compensation - - - - (14,994) - (14,994)
FERF Profit for the year - - - - - 1,862,018 1,862,018
WNERARE 2022 final dividend - - - - - (378,200) (378,200)
2023FHERE 2023 interim dividend - - - - - (142,600) (142,600)
2023%12631H At 31 December 2023 233,100 136,912 58 693,304 - 21,195,528 22,858,902
5t Note:
KIRITEUGEEREL MR E AN BREGE The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in

AIFFALUN RIDRERE o MRFZEEEE
5t KB P EIRIT R A HTIRTT (B ) Th %5
BEBIRTERG R UEREE

”‘%EE o ZEE

175658

IE&HA% SfFE PR

720235 12H31H » &IR1TEIE
© 438,466,000787T) Z £EEIEAS

75 (20224F :
BHREEEES

—fRfEf o BRERBRARITZ 47

BREEMNTIEE °

ERENZAME
fa%f%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁé*%k%zﬁﬁ%
o RERBZENAREESERE

TE616,530,00078
==

excess of those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve.
The regulatory reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is
maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance
and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision purposes.
The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can be
distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are
made directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve
of HK$616,530,000 (2022: HK$438,466,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked
against the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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5. AIRITHBRRRRFRES (B

)

(F) HRITREEEZS ()

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

DR AERE REBEF
TEEREE REBGEHE A G (&)
Premises Investment —fRf##E  Share-based Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation General  Compensation Earnings At
LS Flis)m HKS000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
2022F181H At1January 2022 233,100 302,690 693,304 14,701 17,681,210 18,925,005
MATE 2R HEHEH A Net change in fair value of debt
Hit2ERENERIEZ instruments at fair value through other
AFEEEFH comprehensive income - (834,317) - - - (834,317)
NWATEFFEEHEBHA Net change in fair value of equity
HEt2ERENERETAY instruments at fair value through other
NTEEETE comprehensive income - 296,220 - - - 296,220
REABHREEHZETNE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - 132,583 - - - 132,583
NWRATEFFEEHEBHA Net change in allowance for expected
Eth2ERENERTEZ credit losses of debt instruments at fair
BHREEREEREEFE value through other comprehensive
income - 7,100 - - - 7,100
BMERM TR ZREE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - (41,652) (41,652)
DU AR H EAER Provision for equity-settled share-based
S DA compensation - - - 239 - 239
FERF Profit for the year - - - - 2,799,277 2,799,277
2021FKHRE 2021 final dividend - - - - (310,000) (310,000)
02FRERE 2022 interim dividend - - - - (139,500) (139,500)
2022F12A31H At 31 December 2022 233,100 (95,724) 693,304 14,940 19,989,335 20,834,955

KITRITRIRAT) 2023555k




6. EXEHDERS

FEBRBEBUHFREENEF(EEEFHD
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC members,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
is determined on the basis of personal banking, corporate banking,
treasury and global markets and banking businesses in Mainland China
and Macau. Operating performances are analysed by business activities
for local banking business, and on business entity basis for banking
businesses in Mainland China and Macau.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

. Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales and
investment services.

. Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance to
commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the
provision of trade financing.

. Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the provision
of foreign exchange services and centralised cash management
for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk management,
management of investment in securities and the overall funding
of the Group.

. Mainland China and Macau banking businesses include personal
banking, corporate banking business activities provided by
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau, and the Group’s

interest in a commercial bank in Mainland China.
. Others include results of operations not directly identified under

other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. EENEKS ()

FARRDBEREME - WO EZRABZER D
BZIRBEER ~ ERKRBEA - RERZ®RN
BERNE; MRBEZBNELERKEZEIRFA
EENRANEERNAE > Z2RHHN X2 EZ
BREFIDEESDIE - DEBZXZTHKRER
TEZERNEE=EXZ ZEEFRREE - DE
B2 WA B B AR S BRI ©

FRETRDIEZ ERAXRFENERNDED
18 o IR SR EBPIF S Th IR IBR S M E
HHERAZFKRERIFEMDEEERA > DEE
TRNDERER - FEGEMDEERDE
EmkZEFIZ EEEBRS - RIFRERX
ZFRTHEM AT °

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments
are reported directly under respective segments, while revenue
and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and
funding resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated

on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.



6. EXRDERS (@

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

#F2023F12831HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
FERHR
MERERK RFSERAT
HiEER  Mainland
fEAET %8BT Treasury  Chinaand BIER
Personal  Corporate  and Global Macau Hfth Inter- st
LOBETF AR HKS000 Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
BHEKRA/ (i) Net interest incomey(expenses) 2,015,027 1,183,911 1,124,749 478,004 13,610 (164) 4,815,137
MBI/ () Non-interest income/(expenses) 748,390 203,211 (26,453) 148,483 36,443 (9,275) 1,100,799
BEWA /(i) 4888 Total operating income/(expenses) 2,763,417 1,387,122 1,098,296 626,487 50,053 (9,439) 5,915,936
BESH Operating expenses (1,855,232)  (533,440)  (232,540)  (547,755) (19,316) 9,439  (3,178,344)
NIFEERAE(58) /i  Operating profit before credit
Az E.u:ﬁ%‘ impairment (losses)/written back 908,185 853,682 865,756 78,732 30,737 - 2,737,092
EEREBE) /o Creditimpairment (losses)/written
back (311,830)  (350,600) 21,560 (98,244) 1,803 - (1131
NIFETRERETEEZ  Operating profit/(loss) before gains
Wi R EE R and losses on certain investments
BHl/ (B5%8) and fixed assets 596,355 503,082 893,316 (19,512) 32,540 - 2,005,781
HERENE  TEK Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair
HMEREER value adjustment of investment
HATEREL properties, premises and other
3 (58) /A fixed assets (874) - - 1,794 (39,179) - (38,259)
BEHERRIEE Share of results of an associate - - - 688,957 - - 688,957
HENTREZAESE  Impairmentloss on the investment in
anassociate - - - (552,000) - - (552,000)
REHEREATRE Loss on deemed disposal of
ZE58E investment in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)
FEEEFIEHEREZEE  Shareof results of jointly controlled
entities = - - - 27,014 - 21,014
eyl Profit before taxation 595,481 503,082 893,316 119,229 20,375 - 2,131,483
BB ) /I Taxation (expenses)/credit (98,487) (82,3200  (147,363) (16,346) 63,241 - (281,275)
FERF Profit for the year 496,994 420,762 745,953 102,883 83,616 - 1,850,208
HE2023512A31H For the year ended
IHFE 31 December 2023
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 73,020 18,407 10,177 57,666 201,734 - 361,004
1#2023F 128314 At 31 December 2023
PEEE Segment assets 59,462,117 65445748 93,997,176 38,706,673 8,690,058  (4,736,072) 261,564,800
NEEE Segment liabilities 121,866,174 49,354,251 12,902,840 31,848,027 16,742,979  (4,736,072) 227,977,299
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6. EENEKS ()

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

HE2022F12831HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022
FEIR K
MERER RPET
MHEES Mainland
AR T Treasury  Chinaand EEH
Personal  Corporate  and Global Macau Hit Inter- fazt
WEET AT HKS'000 Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,890,619 1,183,415 918,047 485,207 (105,69) 35 4371627
FMEHA/ i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 2,102,346 188,591 33,839 114,999 10,320 (5726) 2,444,369
BEWA/ (i) % Total operating income/(expenses) 3992,965 1,372,006 951,886 600,206 (95,376) (5691) 681599
EELH Operating expenses (1,747,004) (485,425) (199,218) (543,714) (56,382) 5,691 (3,026,052)
NIFEERAESE) /% Operating profit/(loss) before credit
BIZEEET/ (518) impairment (losses)/written back 2,245,961 886,581 752,668 56,492 (151,759) - 3780944
EEREER /o Creditimpairment (losses)/written
back (192,606)  (468,365) (36,388)  (107,359) 2117 - (803,100)
NFETRERETEE,  Operating profit/(loss) before gains
Wi RE BRI 8 and losses on certain investments
iafl/ (5%8) and fixed assets 2,053,355 411,716 716,280 (50,866) (149,641) - 2,986,844
HERBMERAM Net loss on disposal and fair value
EEBEREATE adjustment of investment
BEFEE properties and other fixed assets (2,337) (60) - (29) (38,336) - (40,762)
HELEEMATERNER  Netgain on disposal of financial
BEZ NG assets at amortised cost - - 2% - - - %
BEHEARIEE Share of results of an associate - - - 656,691 - - 656,691
FENFREZAEFE  Impairment loss on the investmentin
an associate - - - (1,683,000) - - (1,683,000)
BEHEREAFRE Loss on deemed disposal of
b - investment in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)
PEEHREESIEREZ 2 Shareof results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 29,879 - 29,879
BriaER/ (E538) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,051,018 417,656 716304 (1,077,214) (158,098) - 1,949,666
BB /E% Taxation (expenses)/credit (338,200) (68,936) (118,357) (14,879) 179,205 - (361,167)
FERT/ (558 Profit/(loss) for the year 1,712,818 348,720 597947 (1,092,093) 21,107 - 1588499
HZE202512831H For the year ended
IHFE 31 December 2022
EREHER Depreciation and amortisation 74,355 15,862 8,150 58,725 234,643 - 391,735
#2022E 128318 At 31 December 2022
NEBE Segment assets 56274744 63748907 93451822 35908242 8252664  (4,720,097) 252,916,372
DEEE Segment liabilities 11729213 48743485 14526149 29279831 16,850,862  (4,720,097) 221,909,443

RIERITARAE 2023FF%



6. EEDIEHRSEE)
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7. FFRKA

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,
and services to external customers. For the period ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, no single country or geographical segment other than
Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,

operating income, or profit before taxation.

7. NETINTEREST INCOME

LB T I 5T HKS’000 2023 2022
FIEUA Interest income
IR & R IRITHVASE R Cash and balances with banks 704,047 327,255
HERE Investments in securities 3,846,823 1,882,200
HIEEMREHMERE Advances and other accounts 6,934,736 4,755,158
11,485,606 6,964,613
MEXZH Interest expense
IRITER BETER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 6,068,896 2,278,236
BEITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 184,061 104,812
BIEET Subordinated notes 328,257 164,346
HESE (W=E27(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 27(b)) 7,705 8,201
Hith Others 81,550 37,391
6,670,469 2,592,986
FEBAER Included within interest income

— B PRRNESR
AT BB B EE B A
BN REE

—LIATESHB A HBEE A
Hih2 EUGENRREE

— LU AT IR SRS

fexzHes
—ATHEFTEBEEHF AT
NEREE

— DR AT BRI SR B R

REZE2023F K20226F 12831 B I FE > TR
REREEEZFBWA

- Trading securities and financial
assets at fair value through

profit or loss 13,110 6,258
- Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 2,560,848 1,052,753
- Financial assets at amortised cost 8,911,648 5,905,602

11,485,606 6,964,613

Included within interest expense
- Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 5,098 7,086
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost 6,665,371 2,585,900

6,670,469 2,592,986

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no interest
income recognised on impaired assets.
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8. FRFERAEWA
LGBM TS

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

HKS’000 2023 2022

R ERAERA
RURATEHEEHSE A
BaftREERERZ

RSB RAEUA

—EERMZIRBE AL

—B5RME

—fEAF
HMRB B KRB

—EHEAL AT

—fREBEHE R EM (GE ()

—TERERVEEERS

43

il

—RITIRFERTEE
—HtRBE

RIS ERAEXH
RURFEHEBHET A
BaMERMEEREEZ
BRFFE RS

—FEENAE
—BENHEMER

() R2002FERF 2B SRR 2022F758
AAEEEHRIEEBASRE D HE R RE
SHHITET AR IR IE S (9 £ 354 +£1,394,149,00078
775 o

(2) FEERFE=FHREMTE « 5t EEERR

BEERY - BRUESHRBHNEERUREAS
DFBELNESEILFREMERERA

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income from
financial assets and liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss

- Credit related fees and commissions 158,987 156,941
- Trade finance 49,475 57,761
- Credit card 272,664 250,016

Other fee and commission income

- Securities brokerage 100,840 144,653
- Insurance distribution and others

(Note (a)) 163,961 1,518,633
- Retail investment and wealth

management services 131,980 157,757
- Bank services and handling fees 72,258 70,096
- Other fees 128,802 76,890

1,078,967 2,432,747

Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense from
financial assets and liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss

- Handling fees and commission 202,974 176,750
- Other fees paid 9,191 6,902
212,165 183,652

Note:

(a) The amount reported for 2022 includes recognition of the unamortised
upfront payment and deferred payments totalling HK$1,394,149,000 upon
termination of the HKDA announced by the Group on 8 July 2022.

(b) The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. The assets subject to
these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in these
consolidated financial statements.



9. EFXRHUWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME

LB F 04T HKS’000 2023 2022
INERZ 7R R Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 125,817 144,193
FER 5 RRmE S 2 3 lE (B518) Net gain/(loss) on trading securities 2,819 (452)
FERZABNITTE T A B E Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 34,947 8,035
BAFES e ST A Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
Flla S (B518) instruments subject to fair value
hedge 2,222 (3,785)
MAESIEBHEEH T AEBTN Net loss on financial instruments at fair
ST AZFEIE value through profit or loss (812) (3,980)
164,993 144,011
10. HthEEWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
REXRDF/FEZUAFETER Dividend income from investments
Heggst AHMEmiEEn in equity instruments at fair value
R TREEZRERA through other comprehensive
income, held at the end of the year
— FhERE - Listed investments 609 716
—JELHEE - Unlisted investments 32,137 3,410
KREWMEZ HEWALEEE Gross rental income from investment
properties 14,580 18,310
HABESUHA Other rental income 15,994 16,763
Hith Others 5,684 12,064
69,004 51,263
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11, ZEEXH

11. OPERATING EXPENSES

LGB F T2 HK$’000 2023 2022
EE 5N bz (fsE12) Employee compensation and benefit
expenses (Note 12) 2,129,531 2,043,778
TEREMBEEEES W Premises and other fixed assets
TEIEIE expenses, excluding depreciation
—TEMESZH (H5E27(2)) - Rental of premises (Note 27(b)) 2,959 3,952
—Hf - Others 223,948 249,018
e Depreciation
—1TERHEMETEEE (Mi5E27 () - Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 27(a)) 214,734 243,591
— B EREZYE (sF27(2)) - Right-of-use properties (Note 27(b)) 146,270 148,144
[EE R A E T Advertising and promotion costs 85,050 89,824
ER) ~ XA RIBE Printing, stationery and postage 47,858 41,295
T2 EmE Auditors’ remuneration 16,240 11,244
Hith Others 312,254 195,206
3,178,844 3,026,052

12. {EEFHMKREFZEH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT EXPENSES

LCBIET 7T 5 HK$’000 2023 2022
R EMAEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,996,824 1,939,689
BB — TR 512 Government grant - Employment Support
Scheme = (3,704)
MR =B BRI 2 Provision for share-based compensation
iR (fEEe3) charged (Note 43) 14,108 239
BAREZ - REMHRETE Pension costs - defined contribution
plans 118,599 107,554
2,129,531 2,043,778

RIERITARAE 2023FF%




13. SER{ERE

13. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

LB T (05T HKS’000 2023 2022
I EEME (EI0PROIE > 2E48) New allowances net of allowance
releases 851,311 868,342
WEEEE EE 2 I8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (120,000) (65,242)
731,311 803,100
PECUWT - Attributable to:
— B ERRER - Loans and advances to customers 798,335 784,312
—HhREE - Other financial assets (36,369) 40,419
—ERRIE RIS - Loan commitments and
financial guarantees (30,655) (21,631)
731,311 803,100

14. RIB

EBFERDIZBERGSERRENURE
16.5% (20224F : 16.5%) IR ZER  FREIHI K R
FIRR AR IR E R 5T FERR T A F A SR AT 2
BB 2 IRTTREE o

FEMBSRAaEiANERER  RERSS
RIS ER AR REEN TR FREA R
SRR BT °

14. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation

on profits in Mainland China and Macau has been calculated on

the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

LCBBET 7T 5T HK$°000 2023 2022
KEEIRIA Current income tax:
—EARFER - Hong Kong profits tax 231,269 352,450
— RE Pt R FIFRIE - Mainland China’s and Macau’s
taxation 38,212 37,687
— BT EEBRE B - Over-provision in prior years (39,498) -
PRIEFRIA (MI5E34) Deferred income tax (Note 34):
— AR EENES KD - Origination and reversal of timing
differences 51,387 (28,970)
—HESBIR IR - Recognition of tax losses (95) -
281,275 361,167
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14. IRIE(4E) 14. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

AEBFRAEN 2 RBEARGEEZ A BN The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
TOREAE L IERBEENT ¢ amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

LGB T T 5T HK$’000 2023 2022
FRIR AT A Profit before taxation 2,131,483 1,949,666
BEBFSNEL 5% HZRIE Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% 351,695 321,695
RIEAERR - Tax effects of:
HMMERZ FERE Different taxation rates in other
countries 13,208 17,208
EEEIRZULA Income not subject to taxation (39,944) (130,931)
REEIRISZ H Expenses not deductible 138,208 273,352
DRBERER 2 MHEAT Results of associates and jointly
KHEEEHERE 2 ¥E& controlled entities reported
net of tax (120,115) (113,284)
Hith Others (22,279) (6,873)
PRI FEBRE B Over-provision in prior years (39,498) -
281,275 361,167
15. EEME 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
LOBMSTF (75T HKS’000 2023 2022
BE0E Directors’ fee 3,835 3,685
e TEA - BE - EYFl=E Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits in
FeEAhERL kind and other allowances 108,918 112,196
DR 7= B bR ERENAY 2 Share-based compensation payment 755 -
BAREFEE 2 B EHRR Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,158 2,423
115,666 118,304
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15. EEME (@)

DR M AR R 2 I BERMDERIFTE
REERRBETEDRBLUREREFHEIR
RELIREST N Z R R R Z 2T o MURMD
REIET B Z M > HARKRERMOIIRE BRI
B« MR ZURBERSERZ MR
B - BAURAEE LRI R 1T (P FE SR AR AY
i o MUIRE A Z URMD R BRI Z K
B - RIRRITEEREBREREHBRERZH
KRB Z FHURTHE -

REERNFNRELLD > UEMAEREREIE
AEAR S ~ BHEREH » EPRRITAER—
A RARITZ ER AN BB EEPBEIEAR
% (20224F : 4®) o

REZE2023F 12831 HIEFE » WEAEHES
TMEBEARIRITHEMNB AR EH A M HAMAR
AR S (TR R E BN S (20224 © £) o

TER > TESZMRIEBANZ BN EFNFES
R SRR E RRE MM S = A AT
(R ARAE (20224F © #8) o

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Share-based compensation payment includes share awards, equity-
settled and cash-settled share based payment on the share options
exercised or cancelled during the year. Share-settled portion generated
from incentive bonuses accrued in respect of services rendered in the
year is excluded. For share awards, it represents the cost of the vested
shares based on the closing price of the vesting date. For equity-settled
share based compensations, it represents the cost borne by the Group
recognised on the exercise of the share options while for cash-settled
share based compensation, it represents the cash payment, being
the difference between the exercise price and the average closing
price of the shares of the Company for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of cancellation of the share options.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2022: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in
respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of
the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no

consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2022: Nil).
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16. g8

16. DIVIDENDS

LB T (05T HKS’000 2023 2022
BIRTEARE | BREER2.30ET Interim dividend paid of HK$2.30
(20224 : 2.25%7T) (2022: HKS$2.25) per ordinary share 142,600 139,500
BRRHARE | SKEEKR11.2087T Proposed final dividend of HK$11.20
(20224 : 6.10%7T) (2022: HK$6.10) per ordinary share 694,400 378,200
837,000 517,700
17. RERERITHAEER 17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
RS R RITIVAERR Cash and balances with banks 3,072,114 3,273,316
BRI RERATERR Money at call and short notice 13,324,813 14,529,515
16,396,927 17,802,831
NBx - REZEE Less: impairment allowance
—PEERL - Stage 1 (1,157) (1,951)
16,395,770 17,800,880

RIERITARAE 2023FF




18. FHEXRZABRNEFRALTFENE

18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

BHEFF ABENERMEE FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
LB (5T HKS’000 2023 2022
FERX ZFRmES Trading securities:
1BE%5Es Debt securities:
—&5&Lm - Listed in Hong Kong 14,406 16,866
—3JELm™ - Unlisted 1,725,435 545,295
1,739,841 562,161
MR EstEBEHESHTA Financial assets at fair value through
BENERMEE profit or loss:
KREESE . Investment funds:
—&B LW - Listed in Hong Kong 8,216 9,303
8,216 9,303
=El Total 1,748,057 571,464
BT EFHESFAE ¢ Included within debt securities are:
—BEER% (ZRRLER) - Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 1,725,135 89,278
— HEETRE - Other treasury bills - 455,887
—BAHESS - Government bonds 14,706 16,996
1,739,841 562,161
IR | By issuers:
—FR R R RERTT - Central governments and
central banks 1,739,841 562,161
—1b% - Corporate entities 8,216 9,303
1,748,057 571,464

R2023FE 2022512831 H » Ei&EGFARTES
ERFBERE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no certificates of deposit

held included in the above balances.
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19. FT&EERTH 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

R2023F 12 318K BAZTTETASHNELER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
EREAFEWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2023 were as follows:
a8/
2BLHE AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =1
LB T i3n HKS’000 amount Assets Liabilities
1) FERGERZITETIR 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SMEGTHETR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRAKRIAEEH Forward and futures contracts 183,067,007 878,718 (885,411)
BB A Koot S PE B Currency options purchased and written 20,696,124 128,874 (121,144)
I E TR 11 Cross currency interest rate swaps 874,545 13,361 (12,907)
Z) FIEGTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
|24 17 Interest rate swaps 3,689,125 34,352 (30,717)
7)) BTt TR ¢) Equity derivatives
BAROh i e Equity options purchased and written 433,584 6,779 (6,797)
T) BmirETA d) Commodity derivatives
iz i Commodity forward and swaps 56,593 304 (327)
BERGBGZiTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/ (8B 5t trading 208,816,978 1,062,388 (1,057,303)
2) HEEHBBRZITETAR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) 1EEULFEEFZ a) Derivatives designated
TTETA as fair value hedges
lESEE: Interest rate swaps 46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
FHER AR ZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
&g/ (8 &t hedging 46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
Bz ITEE/MIA Total recognised derivative financial assets/
BE/ (8B a5t (liabilities) 255,691,221 3,566,149 (1,279,419)
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19. FTEERIT A &)

FR2022F 12 A31HKREAZITAE TEGNRER

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

EREAFEUWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2022 were as follows:
ai/
2ELE A
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =lE
LUBBF oAU HKS’000 amount Assets Liabilities
1) FERZRRZITATIA 1) Derivatives held for trading
&) SMETETR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BRAKIAEEHN Forward and futures contracts 89,702,960 619,726 (517,746)
AR HSMNERRE Currency options purchased and written 15,996,882 54,410 (55,034)
BT 11 Cross currency interest rate swaps 258,108 8,646 (8,565)
Z) FIEGTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
il Interest rate swaps 2,546,183 61,362 (56,702)
7) #amltiTt TR ¢) Equity derivatives
BARh i e Equity options purchased and written 229,616 2,400 (2,400)
BERGAGZiTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
EE/ (8l &t trading 108,733,749 746,544 (640,447)
2) FEERRRZITETIA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
F) IEEULTFEE a) Derivatives designated as
TETA fair value hedges
F =i Interest rate swaps 47,823,185 3,154,692 (357,190
SRR ZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
&g/ (8 a5t hedging 47,823,185 3,154,692 (357,190)
EHRZTEEMIAEE/ Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(Bl &5t (liabilities) 156,556,934 3,901,236 (997,637)
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19. FTEERT A &)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

BEXR &t
LEST Notional amount Trading Total
LSBT mid)n HKS 000 2023 2022 2023 2022
EEAL Exchange rate contracts
BHNPERH Forward and futures
contracts 183,067,007 89,702,960 183,067,007 89,702,960
SMEHREAK Foreign exchange option
contracts
—BBASMERRE - Currency options
purchased 10,603,232 8,066,306 10,603,232 8,066,306
—hHNERE - Currency options written 10,092,892 7,930,576 10,092,892 7,930,576
HE IR =5 Cross currency interest rate
swaps 874,545 258,108 874,545 258,108
204,637,676 105,957,950 204,637,676 105,957,950
FIZ=EH Interest rate contracts
pilESers Interest rate swaps 3,689,125 2,546,183 50,563,368 50,369,368
3,689,125 2,546,183 50,563,368 50,369,368
HiG4 Other contracts
AL Equity option contracts
—EARE - Options purchased 216,792 114,808 216,792 114,808
—hH AR - Options written 216,792 114,808 216,792 114,808
iz e Commodity forward and
swaps 56,593 - 56,593 -
490,177 229,616 490,177 229,616

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%




20. RIEEMREMERE 20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
LOEBETF T3 HKS 000 2023 2022
BR BB RAEEE Gross loans and advances to customers 143,049,476 136,530,371

Nkx © REERE
—PEERL
—PEER2

—F&ER3

g
S8

R E S

\

OB% © RERERE
—PBEERL
—PEER2

HihE E (Fi5E29)

OB% © BEZERE
—PEERL
—PEER2

—FEER3

BEERREMRR

Less: impairment allowances
- Stagel
- Stage2
- Stage 3

Trade bills

Less: impairment allowances
- Stagel
- Stage 2

Other assets (Note 29)

Less: impairment allowances
- Stagel
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

Advances and other accounts

(364,345) (406,618)
(263,656) (342,731)
(485,255) (887,053)

(1,113,256)  (1,636,402)

141,936,220 134,893,969

2,060,317 3,666,988

(2,981) (5,569)
= (1)

(2,981) (5,570)

2,057,336 3,661,418

5,143,394 4,184,605

(6,979) (10,169)
(2,907) (2,238)
(11,029) (12,786)
(20,915) (25,193)

5,122,479 4,159,412

149,116,035 142,714,799
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20. FIEEZRREMIRE (8)

() BEEERERRERZHEHEREK
BRUNTF ©

REERABREEREREEERAFHEM

ENMZEABEAAMEEFER I RERE R

58 o AR MARANEERRFEERE > M\

EREEZHEEE -

LGB T Tl 5T

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease
receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts
have an option for acquiring by the lessee the leased asset at nominal
value at the end of the lease period.

HKS’000 2023 2022

REEMEHEZ EUARIEEE

o

1A
1FEL EZE24F

2D EE3E

3EL EFESE

5L E

MBEREZ KRR ZHMERA

MEREREFEZONIT

1R
1M FE2eF

2EL EE3E

3FEM EFESE

S5EFL E

R2023FE 2022512831 H » LR ERER
BRBRIEE BIERRIGRER -

FR2023F12831H » AEBEZ BEEESE
AOWElzmMEREREWREFHNERSSA

29,418,00078 7T (20224F © 30,782,000587T) ©

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

Gross investment in finance lease

receivables:
Not later than 1 year 960,410 901,741
Later than 1 year and not later than

2 years 660,989 655,159
Later than 2 year and not later than

3years 466,321 468,447
Later than 3 year and not later than

5years 397,624 529,133
Later than 5 years 1,478,151 837,773

3,963,495 3,392,253

Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (946,216) (468,733)

Net investment in finance leases 3,017,279 2,923,520

The netinvestment in finance leases is

analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 810,108 801,909
Later than 1 year and not later than

2 years 530,845 587,721
Later than 2 year and not later than

3years 374,505 420,228
Later than 3 year and not later than

5years 319,335 474,667
Later than 5 years 982,486 638,995

3,017,279 2,923,520

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2023 of the Group
amounted to HK$29,418,000 (2022: HK$30,782,000).



21. UAFE-tERHE

st AHMEE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

W RS E COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LGB T T3 HK$’000 2023 2022
B%ES . Debt securities:
—&BLH - Listed in Hong Kong 10,976,354 13,609,856
—&BLU ETH - Listed outside Hong Kong 15,729,976 15,742,345
—JEkmm - Unlisted 12,057,957 8,590,336
38,764,287 37,042,537
R MEE s Equity securities:
—BBLD - Listed in Hong Kong 268 337
—3JELm™ - Unlisted 1,761,287 674,977
1,761,555 675,314
=L Total 40,525,842 38,617,851
BIEEEHESNE - Included within debt securities are:
—FENFERGE - Certificates of deposit held 361,139 234,493
—BEERE (ZRRELER) - Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 1,489,951 897,617
—HEERE - Other treasury bills 1,878,367 3,867,536
— B ES - Government bonds 1,198,230 635,348
—HMEHR - Other debt securities 33,836,600 32,307,543
38,764,287 37,942,537
M aEsrEREEHTA Financial assets at fair value through
HithemN S EmEE other comprehensive income are
TR DT T analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
B%HES . Debt securities:
— R R A R R ERAT - Central governments and central
banks 8,338,984 9,160,937
—NEENE - Public sector entities 1,799,394 802,807
—IRIT R H SRS - Banks and other financial
institutions 9,422,100 5,902,047
—1bZE - Corporate entities 19,203,809 22,076,746
38,764,287 37,042,537
RS - Equity securities:
—1b% - Corporate entities 1,761,555 675,314
40,525,842 38,617,851
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21. UATESIERHEHHAHMEE
Wl EREE (48)

EFUATEEREEH T AHLMEEEREDN
BEMETERER20202FEFNRAKREREER
RMWHE o PR IERREHE > BREZATED
7,817,000 78 7T K2 3 # HE R et W im A 518 o it

theEREEEETRRE -

FLmEmMtEFIEARTERERMZ IR
BABR I RBOEREETA R R -

22, LUBERAATIAREIEREE
LOBMSF TS

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income had been sold during 2022 due to
risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the investments at the
date of derecognition was HK$7,817,000 and no cumulative gain or loss
on disposal had been recognised. No equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income has been derecognised
during 2023.

Unlisted equity securities mainly represent the Group’s equity interests
in financial institutions that provide payment gateway and cross-border

payment services.

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

HKS’000 2023 2022

B
—&BLH
—BBMUIET
—JFET

PR R ERER

—PEERL

BEEEHESAE
— R BRERE
—BEEERE
—HBES
—HhE#E5

DUSERmAY IR SRE E
REATIRAEERDIIT ¢

— P REFF R RIFT

—REHE
—IRIT R HthEREAE

—¥

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

Debt securities:

- Listed in Hong Kong 13,549,372 11,895,925
- Listed outside Hong Kong 15,977,711 12,981,228
- Unlisted 9,886,223 8,108,343
39,413,306 32,985,496
Less: impairment allowance
- Stagel (40,928) (59,406)
Total 39,372,378 32,926,090
Included within debt securities are:
- Certificates of deposit held 3,918,269 3,120,178
- Treasury bills 1,577,781 1,121,950
- Government bonds 222,317 214,612
- Other debt securities 33,694,939 28,528,756
39,413,306 32,985,496
Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
- Central governments and central
banks 1,800,098 1,336,562
- Public sector entities 2,031,319 1,410,432
- Banks and other financial
institutions 13,394,699 10,420,964
- Corporate entities 22,187,190 19,817,538
39,413,306 32,985,496




23. FEATRE

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

LB (5T HKS$’000 2023 2022
FE(LEEFE Share of net assets 7,097,508 6,489,667
HE Goodwill 344,623 344,623

7,442,131 6,834,290
& . HEERE Less: impairment allowances (5,227,000)  (4,675,000)

2,215,131 2,159,290
12831 Z A& Fair value at 31 December 1,816,000 1,866,400

FEAREBRTZRENATFENLZEERR
TTHRZ 2023 F % 2022548 7 ILTHIE ©

R2023FE %2022 F 12331 A E AT 2 T EE
BT

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongging shown
above is calculated with reference to the closing market price of BOCQ’s
H-shares as at the end of 2023 and 2022.

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
December 2023 and 2022:

SE R E 2L Frik##Esma ot
p2Y Place of incorporation FEER Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2023 2022
BHERT FhEE A RHEFE R
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 13.20%
LB T8 HKS$’000 2023 2022
1H1H At 1 January 2,159,290 4,230,951
FEIEBRIR RS Share of results, net of tax 688,957 656,691
FE(LIRINBIEE EhER Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax 248,924 (226,037)
BUsEE S Dividend received (198,237) (209,484)
PEAIEY E =t Impairment loss charged (552,000)  (1,683,000)
REIHE 2518 Loss on deemed disposal (10) (10)
ER =R R HMARE Exchange differences and other
adjustments (131,793) (609,821)
12H31H At 31 December 2,215,131 2,159,290

BERTERTERRTHNESFTAEZIRAKR [
FrAES EARRARVARTRBE » MAERRGESYHE
BRITRERTES -

The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ on the
basis of its representation on the board of directors and participation in
policy-making process.
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23. BEQBIKE (B)

() EERITZREMFER
BEIRTTZAEE2EHEEA12831H

B E2023F 2022F 12 B31 HIEFEHAR » A&

EEEEERITEAMNEE2023F12831H
LE12ER Z B F5RR 2 34E ©

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the results of BOCQ
were included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial statements

announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31 December 2023.

20235 20226
12831H 12H31H
At At
31December 31 December
LGBIETF T lid)m HK$°000 2023 2022
BEIRTZEEMBRRRER Selected information from the statement of
financial position of BOCQ
B REPRIFITHGERR Cash and balances with central banks 43,939,228 45,946,001
FEUCELMERTT R i E Due from other banks and financial
institutions 50,810,875 48,589,056
ERERMEBR Loans and advances to customers 418,020,589 383,513,820
HitemEE Other financial assets 308,278,102 275,311,617
Hitn&E Other assets 13,118,284 13,465,538
BESS Total assets 834,167,078 766,826,032
FE(SRRERIT Due to central banks 68,498,716 44,158,597
BRER - BORTRAMER Customer deposits, and amounts due to
W IE banks and other financial institutions 507,495,786 476,494,843
HitheriBE Other financial liabilities 186,771,430 183,203,799
Hit&E Other liabilities 6,304,844 5,297,773
BfEast Total liabilities 769,070,776 709,155,012
U Total equity 65,096,302 57,671,020
0k - HiERMTE Less: Other equity instruments (8,860,278) (6,239,197)
Bk © IREEHIRERR R Less: Non-controlling interests (2,614,518) (2,417,877)
LERREEGERSE Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 53,621,506 49,013,946
BERTZERREER G Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’
KT EMBRERAZ equity to the carrying amount in the
IREEHERR Bank’s consolidated financial statements
RERITIE (LR R R S S The Bank’s share of total shareholders’
equity 7,076,999 6,468,932
o e 2 BE R AT ERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment at
acquisition 365,132 365,358
b - RfE Less: Impairment (5,227,000) (4,675,000)
SREME Carrying amount 2,215,131 2,159,290

RIERITARAE 2023FF%




23. BHEQERE (8)

() EERITZHEMBEN(B)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20235 20226

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31December 31 December

LGB T lid)m HK$°000 2023 2022
[E(REEIRIT SR E ERRIE Share of BOCQ’s contingent liabilities and

commitments 9,372,253 12,065,327

20235 20226

1H1H 181H

F20235F F0226F

12H831H 12A31H

112188 k12188

12 months 12 months

from from

1 January 1 January

2023 to 2022 to

31December 31 December

LGB T Tltg)m HK$’000 2023 2022
BEBRITZIEERRRER Selected income statement information of

BOCQ

FBH B A Net interest income 11,523,285 12,536,232

FRBERAESWA Net fee and commission income 453,826 883,061

BREEER Loan impairment charges (3,577,073) (4,128,183)

MBS H Tax expense (947,152) (1,359,852)

FERA Profit for the year 5,767,658 5,934,531

Hit2EilE Other comprehensive income 1,913,724 (1,739,289)

PHE AL Total comprehensive income 7,681,382 4,195,242

BEWEERITRE Dividend received from BOCQ 198,237 209,484
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23. BHEQERE (8)

(2) REZBEARRK2023F B 2R
=1

120235128310 » REETEBRITTZREZ
ANFEEEPREEEANLIE - Bt » KEEFF
BEHESERRITZREZREEETRENSMU
FHEHAIUNEIEEE o

RERS LS Gt EEREE (TEREE)) mE
EZEERTIWOEENZREZ REE ° &
REENNZREERGEZERRITEMFARR
RORIRE > RiEEREBRTHHNRAZIER
REEFERZ RRRFIERFEE - BH
IR RBRAFE - BFAREREEHNEZ
MREXTLSETNARTSERNZ EFRITRA
PRASTIEE

ETERAEEFEUSHZREZAIREISE
B AEEEZEFIARMEREETSEEAE
ERZURFRSEEREEZ2HEHE - BEITF
AFHURME BEEIRTZ &G LR TR
BEERITARKBERZTHARRATSEREE -
ERBEEERTZARRERETEEEEREF
EEFH -

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2023

At 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s investment in BOCQ
had been below the carrying amount for approximately 10 years. On
this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment test on the
carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the recoverable
amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation,
with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses
discounted cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of
BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated
probable exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and
its net asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate
applied to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s

cost of equity, which is publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.



23. BEATRKRE (B

(Z) ¥EZHERR BRI 2023F 2 2R
B (48)

RetEH2023FE 12831 EBRERRTRE

R fEEF{E{E 72,215,000,00078 77 » EHFAERAZ
BEARSHEUWT :

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment

recognised in 2023 (Continued)

in BOCQ as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

The key inputs underlying our HK$2,215 million VIU on our investment

2023 2022

EERMNEER Annual profit growth rate NF2%E4%  F2024FH5EHA
NF6%ZET%

EREFH%

Ranging from Ranging from

2% - 4% 6% - 7% in the

near termup to

2024, and 5% per

annum thereafter

S IKEELEER Dividend payout ratio 28.2% 25.3%

BRIREE (34) Discount rate (Note) 12.0% 12.0%

BLESTR AER R #Z R BT IR CIEER PB ratio for estimation of 0.26 0.27

i

MizE : MBMIREARREBERESRUAEEREEB - R
BELREFERAT ERAIRLIRE  2023F 2 A0
BEIRER15% (20224F © 15%) © 118 RMAETFrst
HERBEERER -

potential future recovery
value under different

holding periods

Note: Post-tax discount rate is used to calculate the VIU using the post-tax cash
flows. The post-tax discount rate is subsequently grossed up to pre-tax
discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate for 2023 was 15% (2022: 15%). The
calculated VIU using post-tax and pre-tax is the same.
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23. BHEQERE (8)

(Z) REZRBERMNFHRI2023F/HEZH
0@

THREAEEERASENTENEAZH 2 E
BHEREENTE - UTHERMREHAEEYR
BE-ER2HHENGRE - ZIN—1EFR
B/ BRI E TR o] SE R —BF R R o

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2023 (Continued)

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
inputs which management considers as reasonable and possible. The
following summary reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to the
change of each key input. It is possible that more than one favourable

and/or unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

Bt Rt
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EFREEN EBEEN
I T
20234 2023 Increase  FAEE Decrease  {EAEE
(GE#T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) inVIU Viv inVIU Viv
FERHEER Annual profit growth rate +1% 40 2,255 -1% (40) 2,175
R SRR Dividend payout ratio +5% 124 2,339 -5% (124) 2,091
BRIRE Discount rate 2552 25 2,240 +2558, (25) 2,190
-25 bps +25 bps
iR PB ratio +1% 52 2,267 -1} (52) 2,163
+1bp -1bp
Sl el
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EREEN EREEN
7 T
20228 2022 Increase  fERERE Decrease  fERfEME
(BE#T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) inVviu VIU inVIU VIU
FERTIERE Annual profit growth rate +1% 4 2,201 -1% (42) 2,117
RERELLE Dividend payout ratio +5% 126 2,285 -5% (126) 2,033
BIRE Discount rate 255 25 2,184 +255E (25) 2,134
-25 bps +25 bps
[iElES PB ratio +125 50 2,209 1% (50) 2,109
+1bp -1bp

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%



23. FEATIRE (B

(Z) REZRBERMNFHRI2023F/HEZH
0@

RIEEHE2023FE12831AZ MR EEE L E
A2EHNHKEM 28 FrEN B8k EMmE
Tz ih > R EB 2 ERBERKEEFAE
BRE (B8EHE202F128318EEE2 8
STRVEETR) MMES R ME T 2 AU ElIEERT)
MEFERE(E - AEEF2023F 128310 2R
ETRMBENS  BAKHBEEREBRZH
Bl RE A RN IORE E2022F 1283182
K&t R (ET124,675,000,0008 0k 2 IREE » K&
BRAFESEE4552,000,000787T © FIE 2 722023
R RTTIE R (E 5552,000,00078 7T LUAME
ZIREZBEE2,215,000,000587T °

SHEARRITZEATEEE T EAEZREZR
Bat  WARETWNREERRGTZESRER
Sh o MEZREMRSENABRTBREREZ
1,213,000,00058 7T » ZIKEZBERT R ERIR
TZEXRTRELER -

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2023 (Continued)

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31 December
2023, which takes into account the sensitivity of the key inputs shown
above and the effects of possible interaction of these inputs, the
recoverable amount, as determined by the VIU calculation and after
considering all relevant factors (including the cumulative impairment
charge having been recognised as of 31 December 2022) and valuation
inputs, remained below the carrying amount. The latest impairment
test performed by the Group for the position as at 31 December 2023
concludes that the recoverable amount, based on the VIU calculation,
is assessed as lower than the carrying amount, after deducting the
cumulative impairment allowance made up to 31 December 2022
of HK$4,675 million, by HK$552 million. As a result, an additional
impairment charge of HK$552 million was recognised in the year of
2023 to reduce the value of the investment to HK$2,215 million at 31
December 2023.

The calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy does not include the
retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend
received by the Bank. Provided that the investment continues to be
held at or above the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213 million,
impairment made on the investment does not affect the Bank’s capital

adequacy.
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24. HENEHIBRERE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

LOBSTF (15T HKS$’000 2023 2022
JEETRRD 5 ¥BAS Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FE(LUN BB (A fE Share of post-acquisition reserves 109,946 103,072
129,946 123,072
F22023F 52202212 31 BV H [FZEHI B FE U The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2023
I and 2022:
A ZE AL
SR ES FEEBRL S A, Percentage of
B Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
REHEIRARAT 58 REEK &8
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REHEEEARAT 58 BIRLER > B
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
REERARAE 548 BIREER > B
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
AR BR AT Z AR IRITIHA © MR The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by
SRR AR KIBHERMA R AR T IR IER the Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial

BRABZZEMBAT -

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.



25. BEREREE

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EFRfk

B N EEE
B EE Ef/EE  Customer [k BHERES

7%  Contract Coredeposit relationship Trade Club &t
LBETF LT HK$'000 Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name debentures Total
A Cost
03F1B1HK At 1 January 2023 and
023E12A318 31 December 2023 811,690 26499 80583 70,777 58,252 2,753 1,050,554
RIEAE /B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2023F181H% At 1 January 2023 and
2023F12831H 31 December 2023 98,239 26,499 80,583 170,777 - - 276,098
REE Carrying value
20235128317 At31 December 2023 713,451 - - - 58252 2753 774,45
ERRA
B BUES  BVEE
BVEE BFEE  Customer i BRES
BE Contract  Coredeposit  relationship Trade Club At
BT HKS 000 Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name  debentures Total
A& Cost
W2E1A1T At1 January 2022 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,7177 58,252 - L7801
g Additions - - - - - 2,153 2,153
202F128317 At31 December 2022 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 2,153 1,050,554
RERE/ 4 Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
202F1818% At1January 2022 and
20224128318 31 December 2022 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - - 276,098
REE Carrying value
WNEDAIA At31 December 2022 713,451 - - - 58252 2,753 774,45

EEARRZELEESRESN  RUERAE
FRAGELEERUSRRERFIZEN FSERTF
ZP]REAEEY - R EREES A EERIR
g ESENHEREBRERURANGRERE

SRS ©

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name and club debentures are carried as an
asset of indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
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25. BERBEFEE(E) 25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

BMENREERENPEEREE-—REHED Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
HERRAZREELEM(MREELEMN) o8 identified according to business segments in line with the internal
ENFMEZ5)WT © management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
&8 P
Hong Kong Macau
EERT ELASRIT IRITHEH
Corporate Personal Banking =1
LB T (75 HKS’000 Banking Banking Business Total
D% Cost
2023F181HK At 1 January 2023 and
20235 12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
RERE Accumulated impairment
2023F181HK At 1 January 2023 and
2023%F12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 - = 98,239
REE Carrying value
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
o EPY
Hong Kong Macau
EEEIRTT BAIRTT IRITERS
Corporate Personal Banking =
LOBMST oA F HKS’000 Banking Banking Business Total
D% Cost
2022F181HK At 1 January 2022 and
20224 12831H 31 December 2022 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
RERE Accumulated impairment
20221818 K At 1 January 2022 and
20225 12831H 31 December 2022 98,239 - - 98,239
IRMEE Carrying value
20222£12831H At 31 December 2022 - 220,428 493,023 713,451

198  KHRITAMRAR 2023555




25. HEREREE (@)
() BERBREEZRENS

FEASFERENS  BHREAEZFHE
BEMEEZREELSBMUNLINEER - Z5TEE
FHREEERASMGS » USFEFE 2 ERIR
& KREBRERFEENIEREA20%BUE
ﬂiEiE%Z‘EZO/o?ﬁ?EU%SfEMTﬁiﬂ(E °o %5 T
HEEEEBEABENHEAMIRSESBA#
BRZEBREARPANEEE R Z R
il o TR Z BIRE L EEN AEE 2 BEARM A
DNFEF98011.23% (20224F © 11.10%) ©

BESREEETZRERNAT ER2BEETSE
35 2 3% R Al B B R AR EA ST 8 2 TR
A BHERISBSELBEKE - FTEAZMIRES
11.23%(20224F : 11.10%) [y BN AER 2 B
FRA NI o

SHEEFNARENSENSFRBMULRESE
BESHREERAETHEEET EE,\F’E%{E
EERIREERTG DA R ERSR -

AEETERIEHE BRESEGESIRES
18 (20224 © ) o

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth rate
of net profit at an average of 20%, and in perpetuity with 2% constant
growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed
by the Senior Management based on their evaluation of the businesses
and associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the
relevant CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will operate
over the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the
Group’s weighted average cost of capital at 11.23% (2022: 11.10%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar market transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity after the
fifth year. The discount rate of 11.23% (2022: 11.10%) used is based on
the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Impairment testing in respect of club debentures is performed annually
by comparing the book value of each club debenture with its fair value
less cost of disposal. Impairment loss is recognised when the market
value is below the book value.

No impairment losses on goodwill, trade name and club debentures
were identified in the year (2022: Nil).
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26. [MiEBAT

72023128310 » KT ZHBATWT :

NETE
Name of company

26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Bank’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023:

FEER

Principal activity

s thES

Place of incorporation

B ITEBERRA
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

RERTT (PED) BIRAE

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
BPIEEIRTTIRNBIRAT

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
A RIBEER B R AE]

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited
KHEFEARRE

Dah Sing Nominees Limited

Dah Sing Properties Limited
KITEHBRAT
Dah Sing Securities Limited

DSB BCM (1) Limited

DSB BCM (2) Limited

CWL Prosper Limited

ZEMBARAE

OK Finance Limited

18R ENH (BB BRAT

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

HERERRAE

Vanishing Border Investment
Services Limited

Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

$R1T

Banking

R1T

Banking

R4

Insurance broking
RIEARRTS
Nominee services
REER
Investment holding
BHERS

Securities dealing
KEER
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
MERE

Property investment
JieE

Money lending
Inactive

MERE

Property investment

MERE
Property investment
MERE
Property investment
MERE

Property investment

EARHAME

People’s Republic of China

s
Macau
aE

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
aE

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
REREUES
British Virgin Islands
)

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
aE

Hong Kong

HERERHE
British Virgin Islands
RERURFS
British Virgin Islands
HEELHE
British Virgin Islands

RMB1,200,000,000

MOP225,000,000

HK$500,000

HK$100,000

HK$9,998

HK$10,000,000

HKS1

HKS$1

uss$1

HK$1,000

HK$450,000,000

HKS$20

uss$1

Uss1

uss2



26. MIBAT (4)

FRORPIEEIRTTIRID B R AR (H22% e m A1z H
DSB BCM (1) Limited 5zDSB BCM (2) Limited#5)
Sh U E AR BARIRITE2EREES o

PRRFIFEIRITRMBRAE « KHFIRIT (FED)
BRAB KR EHMFREEBLINEMRIIF AT
5 HMABIIIERBEKE o

KFrERTT (P E) BIRAE M 200857 B EHEAH]
SEMAL - HIR B EAREMBE AR EMAS
MERAT (BRAE « EBIRFIZEELESE) -

AR B g o

27. TEREMEEEE

26. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2) Limited,
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded

by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China.

There was no change in the list of subsidiaries.

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

LOBWEFTidT HKS$°000 2023 2022
1T ~ B ARE Premises, furniture and equipment 3,184,134 3,141,706
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 456,386 503,997

3,640,520 3,645,703
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27. TEREMETEEE (48) 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

() 172 ~ FM KRB (a) Premises, furniture and equipment
R
RERSE
Furniture,
equipment
17E and motor &%
LOBIEFTli3m HK$’000 Premises vehicles Total
HE2025F12831HIEEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FYEREFE Opening net book amount 2,706,929 512,917 3,219,846
i Additions 97,452 85,243 182,695
HE Disposals - (2,659) (2,659)
e (fiEELD) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (77,993) (165,598) (243,591)
ERER Exchange difference (9,852) (4,733) (14,585)
FREEEFE Closing net book amount 2,716,536 425,170 3,141,706
20224F12831H At 31 December 2022
B Cost 3,445,950 1,432,175 4,878,125
RIEME Accumulated depreciation (729,414) (1,007,005)  (1,736,419)
SRESE Net book amount 2,716,536 425,170 3,141,706
HZE2023F 12831 HILERE Year ended 31 December 2023
EAIREFE Opening net book amount 2,716,536 425,170 3,141,706
g Additions - 275,081 275,081
HE Disposals (12,309) (2,676) (14,985)
ITELH (ML) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (79,080) (135,654) (214,734)
EREE Exchange difference (2,020) (914) (2,934)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,623,127 561,007 3,184,134
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023
e Cost 3,423,495 1,679,623 5,103,118
REINE Accumulated depreciation (800,368) (1,118,616) (1,918,984)
e Net book amount 2,623,127 561,007 3,184,134

202 KIERITAIRAR 2023F 55



27. TEREMEEEE (B)
() 17 - Fffb Rkt (&)

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZREFESE - The net book value of premises comprises:
LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
GEN =R Leaseholds
EEARA ZFHHEY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(£10E50F 2 [H) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,217,766 2,282,821

EEBLIMNTAE ZHEAEYN
(fE10ZE50F 7 f9)

() HE
LM AERIERABAZAERMEER

(i) EERGEEHBERRERZEEE

FEMBRRERANEREEZ2RIRU

Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
term lease (between 10-50 years) 405,361 433,715

2,623,127 2,716,536

(b) Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

LOBEEFi8T HKS$000 2023 2022
FREEE Right-of-use assets
EYJES Properties 456,386 503,997
HE&R Lease liabilities (included in

(BT HthARE K TELR) other accounts and accruals) 483,879 534,378

QB FHHFERNNBERAREES
99,473,000 & 75 (2022 £ :© 73,626,000

7o) ©

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023 financial year
were HK$99,473,000 (2022: HK$73,626,000).
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27. TERHEMEEEE (&)
(z) HE#)
(ii) TGRSR 25

FREWERANEBEE SEFRIT ¢

27.

(b)

PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

aE
LGB T TR HK$’000 Note 2023 2022
FREEEZINES Y Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
/e Properties 11 146,270 148,144
MEZL (BETAMEXZL —HEEH) Interest expense (included
in interest expense - lease
liabilities) 7 7,705 8,201
EREHREEEBEEEZZ Y Expense relating to short-term
(BRETERAMEEEES L leases and low-value assets
TESEITE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 2,959 3,952

Q03FANEMEEZREMEEES
156,669,000 7T (20224 © 157,077,000 &
7o) °©

(iii) ZEE2ZHEZERANTARK

REBRBEERZBEYE o 522022 F %2023
T IHEARA—MAIEEIFEZEFEAR
(BRI BEMES TN 31 (iv) Bt > JE S 52k

HEHZERERHE R A ZZ HEZ TR
IR AR - FREEAFBEEBE
frigmsh - HESRLTRIMMERZL - 18
EZEEMFIENEERR LBFEERF
Y o

(iv) FERRALIEIERE

ERMEIEEEROEEAEERT 2 AT
MEEERN - AEEEENEETEAZ
BEMS > CRARFFRAERRETEER
M o RBHRE ZIER MR IIEEER R
HASEBEMIFS EBRAITE -

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was HK$156,669,000
(2022: HKS$157,077,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2022 and
2023, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.



28. IREME

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LGB F T2 HK$’000 2023 2022
1H1H At 1 January 802,693 756,353
Hrig Additions - 84,651
BHEATERIE Fair value losses on revaluation (41,087) (38,311)
12A31H At 31 December 761,606 802,693
REREB 2 BEETGEWERIRF Unrealised gains or losses recognised
Bz RS IR IR ET I8 in consolidated income statement
relating to those assets held at the
end of the year
— ATERE - Fair value losses (41,087) (38,311)
KREWEZREZEEE - The net book value of investment properties comprises:
LGB T o) HKS$’000 2023 2022
GEN =R Leaseholds
EEARA ZFPHAHEY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(fE10ZE50F 2 [E) lease (between 10-50 years) 646,110 683,557
EEALUOMEE 2 FHATEA Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(fE10ZE50F 2 [E) term lease (between 10-50 years) 115,496 119,136
761,606 802,693
STEREMEZATE Fair value measurement of investment properties

EEF2023F 5%2022F 12331 H AR EYEN
BEETT 7 B o I HRB I XA =57
B—RFEAEH ((HEREERERL) BRAR R
REERTPEBENZ BEE RS — K FH L
CEFI) BRABAMMNBFZ EEYEREREIL
BAERBRARBEELCHEZUTZE Z AL
EEUR AR A BT © (ELE R EMENE
B Hh—T8XBRIBEALE BRI - HBK
BRRRMEF IR/ NS E e ERIEH & Bl
B o SHEBAERN TREERRENEZ A
TEEAEEEDENREL > RZIRR ©

TIZEEAMEZLERER  HEEBUBRE
ZRFBHR(RAFEH BT ZATEEE B
EFIARTZ2HEEME 2RENRENYER
;@ o

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2023 and 2022 by adopting the direct comparison approach or the
income capitalisation approach. Under direct comparison approach,
valuation is referenced to recent transactions for similar premises as far
as practicable by independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills
(Valuation and Professional Services) Limited for investment properties
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for
investment properties in Macau. The key inputs was the unit sale rate
taking into account of time, location, and individual factors such as
size and levels of buildings. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in
decrease in fair value measurement of the investment properties by the
same percentage and vice versa.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the

property from the perspective of market participants.
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28. KREWE (@)
STEREMEZATE@)

REWEURS DA AIHRZ BBRERMGEE
SAEATE S ERDEERAEAEBYHRS
ZRF13F( AT EFE)PRTFEFRIIEIMR
Al o

DWARBEEECREBERATEZREYSE
BRZERBRAREBEECREEBZEFY)
R XHREPERWAZBIET - R F(ER
EEMIGHATMIERRREG > EHERERME
1ERARA % o

WAIRBEEECT AT AIRE 2 80

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified
as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”.

Under income capitalisation approach, investment properties of which
the fair value is determined on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes
with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary income potential.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the market rental
and inversely correlated to the market yields.

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

fHEs=* FrRIBRgRZ 8% g[E

Valuation technique(s) Unobservable input(s) Range

BEYE BERELECER SHEE BB HFAR1,45587TE102,000787T
(2022%F : ®FHR1,64787T

% 108,90077T)

Investment properties Direct comparison Unitsalerate HK$1,455 to HK$102,000 per square foot
approach (2022: HK$1,647 to HK$108,900

per square foot)

WAIRBEBEEERE [l G 2.00%%3.15%

(EHWEX) (20224F : 2.00%%3.10%)

Income capitalisation Market yields 2.00% to 3.15%

approach (reversionary yield) (2022: 2.00% to 3.10%)

st ST HR26BTESSHETT

(20224 : B HR2TETEILETT)

Market rental HK$26 to HK$88 per square foot

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

(2022: HKS$27 to HK$91 square foot)



29. HthEE

29. OTHERASSETS

LOBIETF L5 HKS$°000 2023 2022
W EIE R AT IEE Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,272,229 2,583,622
FEFTUA Accrued income 1,746,420 1,479,954
Hith Others 124,745 121,029
5,143,394 4,184,605
30. FHEXZRENERE 30. TRADING LIABILITIES
LOBISTFL5m HKS’000 2023 2022
AR EEE & EEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 99,853 730,491
31. BERTEM 31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
LB F TSR HKS$°000 2023 2022
TEERTER B A R IF RN Demand deposits and current accounts 26,382,111 34,156,924
HETA Savings deposits 34,682,959 37,661,100
THA ~ BRI AGHRER Time, call and notice deposits 146,238,008 127,984,571
207,303,078 199,802,595

PRIERA ~ BRIAZHAERIN - FREEMEBERER

ERTEFER -

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.
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32. BEITHIERREE

LCBIET T 5

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

HKS’000 2023 2022

YRR R i T A AR A
RIS A THEH PRERY R

142023% B20224E P » AHEEF A PIATERES
SRR STEREAUATHH B0 LS
SIS ©

AEEFEIEC S TEREEBRESENN
SEER L T 2 BRE {8 59,000,000 7T (2022
£ : 560,000,00057T) ©

33. BEGEH

LCBBET 7T 5

At amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments (for hedging interest
rate risk)

2,428,028 4,228,983

During 2023 and 2022, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$9 million
higher (2022: HK$60 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES

HKS’000 2023 2022

PR R @ T SRR A RS A THE
HIPREERIR

225,000,0005=7T1 20294 EIEAKY
EEBEESGE(R))

300,000,000 7T 2031 F I HARY
EEBREER G (2))

250,000,0003= 7T 20334 EIHARY
ERBEEY GE(®))

1R2023F [ 202267 > REBKRARIEHTE
EEEAREEBAULAFESEEHEHFA

8 o

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

At amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments (for hedging interest
rate risk):

US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (a)) 1,754,856 1,708,812
US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (b)) 2,158,805 2,092,683
US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
Rate Notes due 2033 (Note (c)) 2,002,984 -
5,916,645 3,801,495

During 2023 and 2022, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.



®’IEET (@)

T4 $R1T7220194F 1 5 15 H 8547 2. 225,000,000
EREEEHERBMARAR (TEERZZF)
FHERFECEBHENMHFES _HRERH
10 HAE B REER (MEH)) (BETEERT
¥ (BA) RADZ G o LEEFHR 202951
B15BEIH - BEEMEIE A 22024F1815H ©
HETEEHEENEER > £84A5% 8%+
FERNE—R o Hig - MEBRTERZUBEEDE
Bl FENF S B E5] AR FHREEEEGES
BEEM2BLET - HESSESER/MELIE
FIRTTAI U REEEBEO A GEHD) & o &
RITINE S —EIPRIRITET LM I R S 0BT
HEEH BB B RRRAMERN =X (HERR
RREFE)) AEBRITEF ST

IET5 AR 1T/ 20214E 11 52 H #5472 300,000,000
ETESBRBM MRS EEBBENTH
REAREANIOFIE S BEER (MEK)
(BEFEBRITE (EXR)RADZER) o 1bF
BRI 2031F11F2HFHf - EIENEERS
202611820 - HETHEEEZEMEERH »
FEA3%  BFFNHE—X o HE > MEBKRIE
EEMREEOEL ) RN S gEIAERE
HEEEEES BRMIBHTF - BESEES
BRELIDE - NRITRIUEREEEERLARE GF
B) (BT o AIRITINE B —EIPRERTTE T L A= IS
HENBEBNEERN SR AUERRRAE
Mz R BB B ST

IET5 A ER1T5220234F11 5 15 H #5172 250,000,000
ETESBR B MRS EEBBENTH
REAZREANIOFIE S BEER (MEK)
(BETEBRITE (EXR)RADZER) o 1bF
EFEHEF2033F 115 15A 3 - SZMEERA
20285 11H15H - HETHEHEEMEEH »
FERT315% > FFENE—R - HE > HEH
FOEEMEEHER > TRNFEgEAE
RFSFHAEEIEEES BENN29580 T - RS
BeERELIE > ARTIUEEEEREDIT
B GEED) & o ARITIFE L —EFEIRTTE] 1L
FEIFRESOREBNE T Ristan LUERIR
RREFE AR TENF ST ©

AEEELSEEERRIBREGNESNS
BB L _EFTS 2 BRE &5 137,000,000 7 (2022
£ 1 5292,000,00057T) ©

33.

Note:

(a)

(c)

SUBORDINATED NOTES (CONTINUED)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 15 January 2029
with an optional redemption date falling on 15 January 2024. Interest
at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The Bank may, subject
to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole
but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed
rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) has been entered into with an
international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling on 2
November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis points. The
Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on SOFR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
November 2023 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 November 2033 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 November 2028. Interest at 7.375% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 295 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on SOFR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$137 million

higher (2022: HK$292 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
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34, EEFIE

EEMBEEREENHEREERGERITE
HIHEVARTIR IR E EM B AR IR A AR RIEIER R
HE MBI AR 7 PIET - HiIEZ 28RN
T

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
currentincome tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

LGB T HK$°000 2023 2022
IRIERRIRE Deferred income tax assets 165,823 262,273
FIEFRIEE(E Deferred income tax liabilities (100,921) (36,267)

BERIAEE E KRB RRBERE R ZARER
[EWASZ 2 Fast HEIDATAT

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

LB 5R HKS$’000 2023 2022
IRIEFRIEE E Deferred income tax assets:

— AERER BB ZIETEIREEE

EIEIRIEE(S
— BERERREEZIETREARE

IRIEAR AR B ABE BT ©

- Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than

12 months 299,443 347,384
Deferred income tax liabilities:
- Deferred income tax liabilities to
be settled after more than 12
months (234,541) (121,378)
64,902 226,006

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

LOBIETF 5T HKS’000 2023 2022
1H1H At 1 January 226,006 105,441
Rz EUERERRIRIE (S 1)/ [al# Tax (charged)/credited to the

(Pf5E14) consolidated income statement

REMEERENRIE (ZH) /[l
(M95E38)
ERER

12831H

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

(Note 14) (51,292) 28,970
Tax (charged)/credited to other

comprehensive income (Note 38) (108,662) 97,430
Exchange difference (1,150) (5,835)
At 31 December 64,902 226,006




34, RIEFRIA (48)

HEREEER TR ZERNT ¢

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BIERIAAE - Deferred income tax assets:
A
EEREE BIEZH
Impairment  fIERMFEITE ReEHf
allowances  Accelerated Deferred REEMR
and tax nsEE expenses  Investment At

LOBIETF T lidm HKS’000 provisions  depreciation Tax losses and others  revaluation Total
202251818 At1 January 2022 218,540 - - 52,926 282 271,748
RIRERIESE Reclassified from deferred income

EEiipaps] tax liabilities - - - - (53,031) (53,031)
P& IR,/ Credited/(charged) to the

() consolidated income statement 10,814 - - (8,228) - 2,586
REMZEREA  Credited to other comprehensive

(o income - - - - 131,912 131,912
ERER Exchange difference (4,000) - - (1,804) (27) (5,831)
2022F12A31HK  At31December 2022 and

202351818 1 January 2023 225,354 - - 42,894 79,136 347,384
RIEERESE Reclassified from deferred income

EEivips tax liabilities - 427 - - 416 843
R alamiRm (Charged)/credited to the

(Zt) /[l consolidated income statement (22,332) 200 95 17,490 = (4,547)
REM2EWER  Charged to other

X comprehensive income - - - - (43,181) (43,181)
ERER Exchange difference (844) - - (212) - (1,056)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023 202,178 627 95 60,172 36,371 299,443
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34, RIEFRIA (48)
IRIETRIEEME -

Deferred income tax liabilities:

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

R{EER
Rt
Impairment  NIEHMFSIFE KREMEER
allowances  Accelerated Investment KREER
and tax #E  properties  Investment =

LOCBIETF 5w HK$’000 provisions  depreciation Provisions  revaluation  revaluation Total
2022181 At1 January 2022 - 98,227 11,453 3,525 53,102 166,307
BRHEERIE Reclassified to deferred income

REEE tax assets - - - - (53,031) (53,031)
RiEWmiRm (Credited)/charged to the

(T8 /L consolidated income statement - (16,884) (11,453) (156) 2,109 (26,384)
REM2EWEA  Charged to other

S comprehensive income - - - - 34,482 34,482
ERER Exchange difference - - - - 4 4
20222F12831H%  At31December 2022 and

2023F181H 1 January 2023 - 81,343 - 3,369 36,666 121,378
BHEERIE Reclassified to deferred income

REEE tax assets - 421 - - 416 843
R EWmiRA Charged/(credited) to the

S,/ (BlE) consolidated income statement 34 26,980 10,851 (136) 9,016 46,745
REMZEWEA  Charged to other comprehensive

S income - - - - 65,481 65,481
ERER Exchange difference - - - - % 94
2023%12831H At 31 December 2023 34 108,750 10,851 3,233 111,673 234,541

THBENREMEERERN () /O IE

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to other comprehensive

JEFRIA : income during the year is as follows:
LGB T Tl 5T HKS$’000 2023 2022
PR ER 2 AT EREE Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
— AT EFFEBEEEE T AR EBEN - financial assets at fair value through
EREE (F15E38) other comprehensive income
(Note 38) (108,662) 97,430

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%




35. HAKBARZAER

REMHEIRNRRRE BERER AT —RE
ERRETRBPREEZEFFIINT ¢

35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies

arising from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

LB F T us)m HKS°000 2023 2022
SHEEFREMERE Advances and other accounts 11,093 584
ERER Deposits from customers 237,506 732,184
HheR B T8 Other accounts and accruals 15,086 91

REMHIKRNRNIRE EERRRMB AR 24
BREESIANT

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

LGEME T T HKS$°000 2023 2022
EIEEFHRAEMERE Advances and other accounts 7,925 6,074
BERE™R Deposits from customers 530,212 613,430
HheR B &8 Other accounts and accruals 14,896 18,277

36. HABERKIE

() BAEE
R12B31HRERMNAIEEEFE 2 EBIEB KE
ABEEEZEAREENT !

LB T us)m

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

HKS’000 2023 2022

EROERERERZRN

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 50,729 71,857
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36. HARERKIE (&)

(2) F&a%iE

FEBEESBRIIEERETFERZERIA
BREREMEEERBINESEENT

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

AHNEEE

Contract amount
LGB F T2 HK$°000 2023 2022
BEEREEAER Direct credit substitutes 1,572,787 2,135,043
BT SRR siPRIEH Transaction-related contingencies 356,134 495,616
B8 S8R 2 SRER Trade-related contingencies 393,322 247,910

Bl RR ARV R BTESTB A 2 A Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 62,066,805 66,596,620
HAhEE Other commitments 4,383,439 4,814,077
=EAFERERR Forward forward deposits placed - 317,824
68,772,487 74,607,090

EERMBMNEREE

Credit risk weighted amount

LGB F T2 HK$’000 2023 2022
A E R A Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,119,544 2,657,818

S8 AR IR R (RTE (E4) BRI Fr
st o

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.



36. IWABERARE(E)

(R) BIERRZEE
LOBKSF LTS

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Assetspledged

HKS’000 2023 2022

EIIRZ HERZRREEKR
TRt EFREER

—Hrh | ZEEEHE

BERZBEEZER
—Hrh | ZEEEHE

LRI ERRAGHEEMROIRITIFEEE
RZEE - ZEXSHIREERIEEHNIERRS
(BB IR IR E E URE R B T B B
BATZ SAJ12FF) IRTOETT ©

(T) RERERIE

MAEBRZ ABRHEAA » AR BUEYEEE
HEMRARARBW 2 RIGEE RABZEN T

Trading assets and financial
investments pledged to secure

liabilities 2,473,697 3,185,206
- of which: under repurchase
agreements 2,373,752 2,453,089
Amount of liabilities secured 2,397,069 2,678,069
- of which: under repurchase
agreements 2,297,216 1,946,069

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to
secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions are
conducted under terms that are usual and customary to collateralised
transactions including repurchase agreements, and include assets
pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate settlement processes
with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases
are as follows:

LOB T o2 HKS$’000 2023 2022
1A Within 1 year 12,260 12,165
15 E24F Between 1 and 2 years 8,470 7,941
2EFE3F Between 2 and 3 years 834 6,083

21,564 26,189

tE9h » AREEERABA - BiL20235F 20224F
RAHETATMARBGBZEE - HZEHE
M 2 A E I FRAEEE S 5124 10,259,00058 7T
(20224 : 16,596,000 7T) ©

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 that have not yet commenced. The
aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to
HK$10,259,000 (2022: HK$16,596,000).
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37. g4 37. SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022
;5254 gz REEL ([N
EAG Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
BETREBERZ : issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1818 X&12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000
202312 A31HBETEBRKRHBE A The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2023
62,000,0000% (20224F : 62,000,0008%) ° FTEE % is 62 million shares (2022: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully
T2 RN DB - paid.
38. {#E 38. RESERVES
fTESf RESf DS REER
ikt 1 PR 2 fikf (&#)
SARE Premises  Investment ERfHE —fif#E  Share-based Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General Compensation Earnings A
LEEFTAT HKS 000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
2023%1A1H At1January 2023 8,827 233,100 97,604 (493,816) 700,254 16,053 23,077,097 23,639,119
WATESEAEEE AL Netchangein fairvalue of debt
SENBNERTEZATE  instruments at fair value through
2E50 other comprehensive income - - 298,270 - - - - 298,270
B RRR g EEN Share of other comprehensive income
BEARZEMAENE of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - 248,924 - - - - 248,924
DWATETEREEH AL Net changein fairvalue of equity
2ENENERETEZATE  instruments at fair value through
2850 other comprehensive income - - 1,086,307 - - - - 1,086,307
RESEREZHZETRE  Deferred income tax on movementsin
(Fiz34) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - (108,662) - - - - (108,662)
WATEEAELE AL Netchangein allowance for expected
SENBNERTEZES  creditlosses of debtinstruments
BEFBREREEH at fair value through other
comprehensive income = = 33,612 = = = - 33,612
BMERMTEZRESIE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (135,025) (135,025)
BERIMEERTSRR Exchange differences arising on
NERER translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (156,209) - - - (156,209)
DR URIAEAZE  Provision of equity-settled share-based
B 4 compensation - - - - - 54 - 54
DR AURIAEARE  Settlement of equity-settled share-
Bz GERAMER based compensation and other
adjustment - - - - - (16,107) - (16,107)
FERR Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,850,208 1,850,208
WRERERE 2022 final dividend - - - . = . (378,200 (378,200)
WRERERE 20231nterim dividend - - - = = = (142,600)  (142,600)
2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 8,821 233,100 1,656,055 (650,025) 700,254 - 24,271,480 26,219,691

216  KIFRITAMRAR 2023F 55



38. f#f& (&)

38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

HZE12A31HILFE
Year ended 31 December
LOB T o5 HKS$’000 2023 2022
BERRERANZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
BORKREARRE, BRI S paid included in retained earnings
(FizE16) (Note 16) 694,400 378,200
5t ¢ Note:

FRTRUEERBINERGRE BB REERIFRE
DSz SATTRE R o MERT BB (Bt RoRPIRE
FERITRAIIRIT (FED) IH B EEBIRITEEGI R
BEGEABNZAMEERT - ZEERHFBRRAIK
BTRRZERDHE - RERBZEHAREBEER
EITHR 0 WEEN R EE R o

72023512 831 H » AR 1T B 15 7E 616,530,000 78 7T
(20224 : 438,466,000787T) 2 & REIF AR S HE/TIKH
R E—RHE > REBULARTZGERERI T

o

[l

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$616,530,000 (2022: HK$438,466,000) first against the consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against the
consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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38. f#f&E (48) 38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

ESfH REBf MEHAE RERA
i (5 BEHRA 2 (1R ()
Lotk Premises  Investment EQEE —MREE  Share-based Retained
Consolidation Revaluation Revaluation Exchange General ~ Compensation Eamings fst
LEEF HKS'000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
02%181A At1January 2022 8,821 233,100 467,041 225,363 700,254 15,814 21,979,750 23,630,149
WATESEAEEE AL Netchangein fair value of debt
SENENERTRZATAE  instruments atfair value through
2850 other comprehensive income - - (834,317) - - - - (834,317)
R g AREN Share of other comprehensive income
=N PGSl e of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - (226,037) - - - - (226,037)
WATEHEAEEEAEM  Netchangein fairvalue of equity
SERENEGNTIAZ instruments at fair value through
AHEZEEH other comprehensive income - - 586,378 - - - - 586,378
RESEREZHZETRE  Deferred income tax on movementsin
(HizE34) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - 97,430 - - - - 97,430
WATEERELE AL Netchangein allowance for expected
PENENERTEZES  creditlosses of debtinstruments
EEFEREETIE atfair value through other
comprehensive income - - 7,109 - - - - 7,109
EMEGMTAZREZE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,652) (41,652)
hEEMEIBRR Exchange differences arising on

BERESR

LRSI MR AR
R 7 B R AR

FEER

WAFFERE
WNFFERE

20225128318

translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities

Provision for equity-settled share-
based compensation and other
adjustment

Profit for the year

2021 final dividend

2022 interim dividend

At31 December 2022

RIERITARAE 2023FF

1,588,499
(310,000)
(139,500)

(719,179)

239
1,588,499
(310,000)
(139,500)

97,604

23,077,097

23,639,119




39. FEIMEmMTR
LCBIET T8

39. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

150,000,0003= 2B MER E T A

2022 12H8H » ARITHEITHEEEBRHE
1% & A& & % 150,000,000 7t 2 EHAR IFRTE
BEZRS I —RELRES (MBI —RELE
%1) o ZREI—IRERF S DR BERIIRITERE
Be K& R4 L4 110,000,0003= 75 52 40,000,000 3= 75
2EGTHE o

HESBZERBNART  RESBZERA
BEZBFEBER > RBSMEEI—IRERE
HRE  BRIFIRITREREF > BRI R
BARBHFZ AR ERMBEEE BT ERAMET
ZEEE o

HETREHP2027E1238A 7 EEMEER
IE s IREREREA115%  SFEIF—N o
H% > MR —RBERBHRLEO » KEESEX
BUEGSFEFT—R > HERSFHAEBERERS
BENN788EL T o IRIFEBIN—RE AT H 2 KRR
E&EFRFIE 2 RE - ANIRTTERBUHIKEZ T »
KEEUHEZ KE S (M RERET o

e

EESEBTERTRSAME  KRITOINEEN
BERIABZIRES N AUEEEERBRFRA
(FEEE D) BRIN—IRE AR F o

HKS$’000 2023 2022
US$150,000,000 AT1 Capital Securities 1,167,810 1,167,810
1,167,810 1,167,810

On 8 December 2022, the Bank issued Basel lll-compliant undated non-
cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the “AT1
Capital Securities”) with a total notional principal of US$150,000,000.
The AT1 Capital Securities were subscribed in full by DSBG and DSFH to
the extent of US$110,000,000 and US$40,000,000 respectively.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that in
the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-off
is necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.

Distribution at 11.5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date
to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2027. Thereafter,
if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the distribution rate will
be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 788 basis points. The Bank has the right
to cancel distribution payment, subject to the requirement as set
out in the terms and conditions of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the
distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par either
on the optional redemption date or any distribution payment date
thereafter.
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SIRENELERMEE 40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

A

40. %

() MBFEFREKREEEEZ W REE (a)
Al 2 S SRS (FRA) A

Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

220

IREPEEHRR cash (used in)/from operating activities
Vi awmielan HK$’000 2023 2022
MBETREREEEEZ WE KB Operating profit before gains and losses
EiERA on certain investments and fixed assets 2,005,781 2,986,844
R B UA Net interest income (4,815,137)  (4,371,627)
i Bl Dividend income (32,746) (4,126)
EEREBE Credit impairment losses 731,311 803,100
e Depreciation 361,004 391,735
BEREIE 2 E Rk P28 Advances written off net of recoveries (1,284,633) (511,989)
DUBSHESE (S LUBAD VE A BRI — B Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 54 239
BUFIE Interest received 11,162,676 6,347,542
BEAFIE Interest paid (5,411,661) (1,606,779)
BUEE Dividend received 32,746 4,126
SEEENEREEHF 2 SERT] Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,749,395 4,039,065
CEEERGBZE ! Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—RERTRTIER KR EBIE - cash and balances with banks and
3B A 2B RFTHRER money at call and short notice with
an original maturity beyond
three months 757,616 331,234
—REIEARBIE3E R 2 FERITIER - placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three
months 3,507,492  (3,241,056)
—FHERZBENES - trading securities 458,177 1,648,281
—f1EEmT A - derivative financial instruments 616,869 (3,707,908)
— DR ESZEEEEFH I ABTNEREE - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,087 4,816
—B5E5% - trade bills 1,606,671 586,862
—BREMREBR - loans and advances to customers (6,519,105) 7,783,637
—HthEWERE - other accounts receivable (692,326) 1,726,493
— AT EEEHEHHAHMEE - financial assets at fair value through
WEHEREE other comprehensive income 68,922 1,026,320
—DUBERA AT BRI SR E & - financial assets at amortised cost (6,351,827)  (8,522,259)
—8R1TES - deposits from banks (1,627,449) 2,409,296
—FERZAzNaE - trading liabilities (630,638) (781,436)
—BRTEN - deposits from customers 7,500,483 2,780,154
—BITERGE - certificates of deposit issued (1,796,485)  (2,336,292)
—EMEMERE K TEiE - other accounts payable and accruals (377,551) 397,388
PE R Exchange adjustments (43,440) 263,046
SRS (FRR) /AR S Cash (absorbed by)/generated from
operating activities (682,109) 4,407,641
S BETHNERGEZAE Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (176,733) (65,885)
BaEEHEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (215,280) (252,600)
b E ot R B PSR =R Mainland China and Macau tax paid (12,891) (13,319)
s E S (FTA) / HAIRS 358 Net cash (used in)/from operating
activities (1,087,013) 4,075,837

RIERITARAE 2023FF%




40. FRRSHBLERME ()

(2) EREMEGEERA > RERFEARE
HESEEBEERSEIERAHUATE
HAZ FIGGER - REBEZ(CEERR

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date

G Hu RN EREREIREHEZF of acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible
E to known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
LGB F T2 HK$’000 2023 2022
IR& KSR TRVAS B Cash and balances with banks 2,675,034 2,894,529
[REIEREE3ME A U T 2 BRI S G HRTF R Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 12,679,755 13,108,548
[REVERBTE3ME A S T Z FERI TR Placements with banks with an original
maturity within three months 394,929 2,270,451
BIERFER S BiaEsAN 2 BEERE Treasury bills included in trading
securities 1,725,135 89,278
BRERUATEFEEEEEHA Treasury bills included in financial
Hit>EmNEMEERNZ BERE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,489,951 897,617
18,964,804 19,260,423

R E B RFIN A RIRTTAVAEER397,080,00078 7T
(20224 : 378,787,000 7t) EHX M IRE R ERIR
IEHEB IRBE MR RBE BT RS RERITHEG
ERIBRIET ©

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$397,080,000 (2022:
HK$378,787,000) were balances with central banks for prudential

purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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40. ZEREMELERMEE () 40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

(R) FEMEESZEEZHIRR (c)

TRALAERRERMBESH BB > B
RERIFREZEH - FEMETBZER 15
HFESRADHARBEAREELAER GRS
MEBEERNDEAMETHREARZERE

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

222

BERMEE
2afEEsE
Total
faafk BEES FE(IFIE  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
LGB Flidn HK$'000 liabilities notes payable activities
K2022F1A1H At1 January 2022 614,940 4,128,446 51,945 4,795,331
MERER 25 . Changes from financing cash flows:
THBETREES Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REHESZFE debt securities issued - - (164,342) (164,342)
BERESE Repayment of lease liabilities (157,077) - - (157,077)
HMERE R EBEE Total changes from financing cash flows (157,077) - (164,342) (321,419)
Hithi&g) : Other changes:
BETREEBRERES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
ZIESFIE debt securities issued - - 164,346 164,346
mEHEaE Additions to lease liabilities 73,626 - - 73,626
ERER Exchange difference (5,311) 315 - (4,996)
HEBRZFIEZY Interest expense on lease liabilities 8,201 - - 8,201
NTEH PR Fair value hedge adjustment - (327,266) - (327,266)
Hitneghieza Total other changes 76,516 (326,951) 164,346 (86,089)
12022128317 At 31 December 2022 534,379 3,801,495 51,949 4387823
ERER Exchange difference (844) - - (844)
120231818 At 1 January 2023 533,535 3,801,495 51,949 4,386,979
MERER 28 Changes from financing cash flows:
THBETEREES Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REHHEFZFE debt securities issued - - (309,761) (309,761)
BTRERD Issue of subordinated notes - 1,939,796 - 1,939,796
BEHESR Repayment of lease liabilities (156,669) - - (156,669)
RMERERZETEE Total changes from financing cash flows (156,669) 1,939,796 (309,761) 1,473,366
Hig) Other changes:
BETREEERERES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
ZIEFIE debt securities issued - - 328,257 328,257
FitHEaR Additions to lease liabilities 99,473 - - 99,473
ERER Exchange difference (165) 7,376 = 7,211
HEAGEZHESY Interest expense on lease liabilities 7,705 - - 7,705
NFEHFHE Fair value hedge adjustment - 167,978 = 167,978
Hiteghagg Total other changes 107,013 175,354 328,257 610,624
12023%128318 At 31 December 2023 483,879 5,916,645 70,445 6,470,969

RIERITARAE 2023FF%




41. ERTESFRHERAERME

RIEE ARG (£6226%) E1TH (HEESE
FHER) » BERERFEEHE20235F 52022
F12A31HAEEEZIFERE T2 -

LCBIET T 5

41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED
WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 are shown as below.

HKS’000 2023 2022

128318 2 AR F R EEMEER

F22023F K 20225 Lt 2 FR B B RAR 5 AR IRTT

el o

42. ARAEALZRS

FIRTZERERABDKMBTEBRARAE
(TRHIRTTER)) REREIERABKNERE
EEBAMNEELHRE -

BR20235F 220226 » FIRTTIR—FREFEIFR - B
ERABREMARNBARRESERE/ME
R BERTREFRRBR © HEERDHEA
FEh—RFEER - RHEMIRTRE -

IEoh > REBITTFARKIZER AT RERRNBEA
AR ERRITHRS  HERDENETRZ
MEAT

Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at
31 December
- Loans and advances 984 803

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
- Loans and advances 1,233 1,712

The above relevant transactions in 2023 and 2022 were all transacted
by the Bank.

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) and the ultimate holding company is DSFH. Both

holding companies are incorporated and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2023 and 2022, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms and conditions and at
market rates. These transactions include interbank placements and
deposit taking, marketing and distribution of life and general insurance
products and the provision of other banking services.

In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative

services to its immediate and ultimate holding companies and its fellow
subsidiaries, leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
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42, BREATZRS (88)
BERMEALTZEARRZZUT

() BERARKREARMBARNRZRE
iR

42, RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions and balances with holding companies and
fellow subsidiaries

(i) WMARSEZH (i)  Income and expenses
BERERRRERAT
Immediate and FRRMEBAR
ultimate holding companies Fellow subsidiaries

LT ST BT HKS’000 2023 2022 2023 2022
BFE Interest paid (263) (912) (21,391) (15,672)
BUHIE Interest received = - 1 11
&L ¢l Commission received = - 30,782 25,972
BEUARFS &, U= Service fee received/recovery of

HhEEsz other operating expenses 6,659 6,818 5,441 6,375
B ERIERFAE Rental and related building

BEH management fee received = - 2,484 3,060
B EMEESZH Other operating expenses paid - - (25,681) (9,162)
BfHE Rental paid - - (4,531) (4,459)

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%




42, BREATZRS (88)
() TEEEAE

(i) HEFRTEEENSZEAX
S RAEER

FR > RRTIRHBEER - B8~ ERF
BRISERGTEEERAE » HITRRES
REFRPTERIBERE - IEARFFIIEE X
BIZPR MR EE S TRFMER °

TEEBABZRGAEEZ WA RS HIL
REKXR > MERRFRZAEFUT -

42.

(b)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with the key
management personnel, their close family members and the
entities controlled by them including deposit taking, loans, credit
card facilities and investment services. These transactions were
provided in the ordinary course of business and at the same terms
with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

LOBHET TS HK$’000 2023 2022
BRRBR Loans and advances 984 745
ER Deposits 438,197 464,480
KRENFBZ ERUEGS Undrawn commitments 4,133 3,872
R Guarantee = -

(i) FEEEASHE

FRTEEEEASS/WTES - HERIE
BIETEREFIRMIEELS

(R) BBEARRIREHEREZRXZ RS
iR

FRABRTHRIEHELRTDEEIRT
198,237,000 78 7T (2022 £ : 209,484,000 75) &
BIRA © 18202312831 H » KAIFTIEES
HEERITELHNE SRR (20224 | BAERX)
FR o ARTIRESHBEEGIBREFHR > ME
1220234512 A31 B F R 45 8579 113,786,000 & 7T
(2022 : 226,552,000 75) ° £ » &AIRET
Y E BB (5] 25 51 B 220,140,000 78 75 (2022 £F -
21,180,000 7T) REUIA © BLER 5 RAAGFITE
B R EREER— RIS ESL -

(c)

(ii) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors
and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate, dividend
income of HK$198,237,000 (2022: HK$209,484,000). As at 31 December
2023, there is no outstanding balance of Bank accepted trade bills issued
by BOCQ (2022: no outstanding balance). During the year, the Bank took
deposits from jointly controlled entities and the balance of deposit as at
31 December 2023 was HK$113,786,000 (2022: HK$226,552,000). During
the year, the Bank received from a jointly controlled entity dividend
income of HK$20,140,000 (2022: HK$21,180,000). The transactions
and balances were provided in the ordinary course of business and on

normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
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43. LR AERREETE

FREMIRHMURES (T RUIRE N Z UMD %
ERBNGE - AREFZURMN AERERINZ
MHEn SR M EEL2 ©

(FA) LABRHESZ {3 LARRAS A B AR ERAM 5121
() LRIEZ (135 1EE

FERBBAMRTER ZBREE (TK
MIRTEEE) ) REERAR M ERE
BB RAR 208 (TR TR S8))
RIS A RN BB RIN T HE
ERBRITHAR °

(i) KHEERITEEEE

KB ITEBERERF2014F5827H
HEESANED R RE ST 2 ©

ZERRRE TR AR TE R B R
ZERRIEERT o S0 BRI
ZITEEBRARFMEE g AR
RIRITERES S U EERNE
BRZA EHRAIE17.03(9) KR E
T BRERU T 2B 2 RSEF
BE . (VAETEERGERTH
REBZZMEEZWME ; K(i)K
WIRITEERM TR EEFHAISE
EEHNEBRZMEE 2 FHKTH

BEe

BAMBRTERFIERMHEE
202312831 H » BT LUGRKREW

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
compensation plans. Details of the share-based compensation paid to
directors under these plans are disclosed in Note 12.

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “DSBG
Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of its holding company,
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH Scheme”), equity-
settled share-based compensation is available to directors and
senior executives of the Group.

(i) DSBG Scheme

The shareholders of the DSBG approved the adoption of a
share option scheme on 27 May 2014.

The share options were granted in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise
price per option share was concluded by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) on behalf of the
Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the
average closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

Share options granted under the DSBG Scheme since the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2023 are as follows:

B
SRITEE (BT
#FH a5 R AR 171EHA Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS$)
20184F4826H DR s A 20185F4H26HE 2019%F4H268%E
2023F4826H 2024F4826H
26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 - 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
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43. MR AERIRE S (B) 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)
(FF) LARGRESZ (G LARRID A ERERENETEI (48) (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)
() LURIEZ(T:8R1E12) (4B) (a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
(i) K¥rEFEE (ii) DSFH Scheme
L2015 5H27H » KM=/ ER On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH approved the
HEOE R NGB RE ST B (T RFTE /5T adoption of a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).
Bl
RHTEREETEIEER M B EE2023412 No share options had been granted under the DSFH Scheme
A31H 1k » WEAAIRRERIE A since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2023.
ERIEHEIRY o
RSN RRNER 2 AR ES M URN A ER Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to consolidated
BNz 2R income statement is as follows:
LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
DU HESZ (S 2 5O PR Equity-settled options 54 239
LARGHES 2 SRR Equity-settled options
AR TE B FTRIFTR T 2 MU With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the
TEVERIHE » H T EZ ATEU=1E DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by
EAEEBIRAETE - using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the

options are granted.

1020234 » I AT R BGHESE 1 2 ERRG No equity-settled options were granted under the DSBG Scheme
RIE AR TEE T B R AR EE 2 and DSFH Scheme in the year of 2023.
B o
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43. LURRDZASERIRMETE (&)
(FR) LARRHESZ (AR (R A EERIRAN 518 (48)

() LURiEX (18R 1EE] ()
SRR SE foh2 SB AR (1)
BT 2 IR E RE MR TEE2 2

43.

(A)

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Equity-settled options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their

E LIl related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
AHRTEEHE AHERLEE
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2023 2022 2023 2022

el &y el &¥a

BEAM BEAN B8 BB

RTER RTERE AR AR
SR METY SRR NETY DRED METS IRER mETS
%A it RH%UE e RAEE g kHEE e
Number (BjT)  Number (B7)  Number (B7)  Number (&)
of DSBG  Weighted ~ ofDSBG ~ Weighted ~ of DSFH ~ Weighted ~ of DSFH  Weighted
shares  average shares  average shares  average shares  average
inshare  exercise inshare  exercise  inshare exercise inshare  exercise
options price options price  options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) ~ granted (HK$)  granted (HKS)
1818 At1January 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 1824 - - - -
ool Granted - - - - - - - -
[5iai Expired - - - - - - - -
2178 Exercised - - - - - - - i
BERCH/ Rk Cancelled/forfeited - = - - - - _ i
12A31H At 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 1824 - - - -
1A31BA1TE Exercisable at 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 960,000 1824 = - - -

KHIRITEEN2023FE12831HKITHEZ
RREEERE R HITEERET18.248
70 (20224 © 18.24787t) > MER20225F
TR ERET B EEA0.324F o FANAEE
BRERSRITERABREAEZ A&t
> 1R2023F12A31HAB B RITEZ R
SRIETARNE (20226F [ RAETTEZRRHE) o

RIERITARAE 2023FF%

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2023 are all
vested and have an exercise price of HK$18.24 (2022: HK$18.24).
The remaining weighted average vesting period in 2022 was 0.32
years. In respect of directors and senior executives of the Group,
there is no DSFH’s share option outstanding as of 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).



43,
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LABRAR 2 B a5t & (48)
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(Z) Rl ZZ@Et2)

RIRITEEE AT/ BRI R
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R RArER AR SR8 )) - URIBET
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MIEEt 2972202149898 4% > 87
[EA104F o

ERBAHAERZEAREREHES
(BERTES > FRTEFERIEIL
FRITER) DEERSEILEE -

EFERAHERERERRAERER
12~ REB IR RAZREE 15 BEBV EAh
ZER 0

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(A)

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b)

Share award scheme

DSBG and DSFH have each established a share award scheme

(hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Share Award Scheme” and

the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” respectively) as another long-

term incentive plan to recognise the contribution or value of

certain employees or directors and to motive and incentivise

them in furtherance of the long-term business objectives of the

Group. Details of the schemes are as follows:

=

(ii)

(iii)

Both schemes were adopted on 9 September 2021 for a
term of 10 years.

Any employee or director (including executive director,
non-executive director and independent non-executive
director) of the Company or any other member of the Group
is eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The Board or its Delegate shall determine the vesting
schedule, vesting criteria and other conditions in the Award
Letter.

BHRBROERBIRETIBEA - 8 (iv) The Award Shares should be acquired via on-market
FIBBBITIIRIER o purchase and/or issue of new shares.
(1) KISRUARIDIEENETE (1) DSFH Share Award Scheme
ZEt IR N 20219898 I & ? The scheme was adopted on 9 September 2021 and further
202238 30HE:] - BEERMBREE amended on 30 March 2022. Award shares granted under
2023F12831H 1k > BFHEKHN the scheme since the date of its adoption till 31 December
T 2023 are as follows:
BRATE
(77T)
= BRI B I HAR Fair value per share
Date of grant Number of award shares granted Vesting period (HKS)
20224 12H6H 2022512868 FE
20274 1286H
6 December 2022 358,100 6 December 2022 - 18.34
6 December 2027
2023%F4H3H 2023F4838E
20265F4H3H
3 April 2023 848,782 3 April 2023 - 20.15
3 April 2026
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43. MR AERIRE S (B) 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(FF) LARGRESZ (9 LARRID A E R ERENET B (48) (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)
(Z) BR172ZE)a12) (48) (b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) KRR IEENETE (8) (1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)
PR E NS R ATERE 2 I D8R EN 2 Share award expense charged to consolidated income
wur statement is as follows:
LCEEF T 5T HKS’000 2023 2022
AP EZEDSZ H Share award expense 14,054 209
ETPRDIRERE 2 T : Movements in the number of award shares granted as
follows:

KRR D EER5E KRESRITE AR (R 52 @12

DSFH Share DSBG Share
Award Scheme Award Scheme
2023 2022 2023 2022

KHER AMrERl  AMRTEE  AWRTEE
RSB RIN#E RITEBE R #E

Number of Number of Number of Number of
DSFH DSFH DSBG DSBG
shares shares shares shares
1A1H At 1 January 358,100 - - -
By Granted 848,782 358,100 - -
RE Vested (70,940) - - -
pelid Forfeited (2,920) - - -
12AH31H At 31 December 1,133,022 358,100 = -
SRz ATE Fair value per share HK$19.70 HK$18.34 - -

FARMD BT R TR HIE © Details of award shares granted during the year:

BT R ERKE B AR
Numberof &R ATE Vesting period

= award shares Fair value 2] F
Date of grant granted per share From To
2023%4H3H 2023%F4H3H 20265F4H3H
3 April 2023 848,782 20.15 3 April 2023 3 April 2026
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43. LURRDZASERIRMETE (&)
(FR) LARRHESZ (AR (R B ERERAN 518 (48)

(Z) R17ZEEz18) (#)
(1)  K¥ERIRDIERNEEI (48)
B 82BN 5+ B TIBRER B EART ¢

43.

(A)

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b)

Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Remaining vesting periods of award shares outstanding:

2023%12H31H 2022412831H
At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
RErERBEAR ROBE FEREERE B E
Remaining Remaining

vesting Number vesting Number

BT H Shares granted in period of shares period of shares
20226 1256H 6 December 2022 3.93F

3.93 years 284,240 4.93 years 358,100
202348301 3 April 2023 2,265

2.26 years 848,782 - -

AR TETEERETLEIATER
BHE2023F12831HIEFEEHNE
R 0 2023 F EMRIBIEALE 1220244
3E28HENRTFEIEEENEENRE
T o AEENETEIRES (IS4
THAB)) 2023 FERRIVICALEZ
RBEFEELURIES, B AR > 1Y
2022FMEZFERIA > SRITEA
BRI FE (IR BN i AR 19 22 B
STEIEE ORI & o S (T20235F KT
TEALFERITHAENZHE > B1EMU
PIERE TS VTR > BE7020244F
3ETHRARITEEE R AR
NEEGEL - A TFERITHAESE
#2023 FERIBIEAI MRS 2
BPRIERD » BEaTERTERE
BB, B ENME TR ER
BAR R E MRS > B =FEAEA
DEAEHLRERE o

(2) KHIRITEEIRD LR EE

B E2023F 12831 H K2022F128
31H > REAIIRITER KM HEN T
B TRERS ©

As a reward to eligible employees to recognise their
contribution for the year ended 31 December 2023, 2023
performance bonus was advised to or paid to eligible
employees including directors of the Group as of 28
March 2024. For certain employees and directors (“Senior
Management”) of the Group, their 2023 performance bonus
was granted in the form of deferred remuneration similar
to prior years, and starting from 2022 performance year, a
portion of the deferred remuneration payable to the Senior
Management is in the form of deferred shares granted
under the DSFH Share Award Scheme. The arrangement
of the payment of 2023 performance bonus to Senior
Management, including granting to them deferred shares,
was approved by the Board of DSB and the Board of DSFH
on 27 March 2024. The deferred shares granted as a portion
of the deferred remuneration to the Senior Management as
their 2023 performance bonus will be vested in three equal
tranches over a three-year period, subject to vesting and
satisfying other conditions per the bonus and share award
letter given to the Senior Management.

(2) DSBG Share Award Scheme

By the end of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
no award share was granted under DSBG Share Award
Scheme.
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43. LURRDZASERIRMETE (&)
(2) UBREXMURMGEAERERME

RHRITER B AN EMERYL —BALIRE R
MR th B 7 SRR 5T 8] (DB AT AR
TTEEEREER 58 KT R SR IZR R 5t
8)) - FRRBE R RIIERENSE -

() ARiRTTHE BRI EF 12

et EIRIIN 2018538208 - BEANEE
ZF2023F12H31H1E » BFZHEEFWT ¢

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)
(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

DSBG and DSFH have each adopted a cash-settled share-based
incentive option scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme” and the “DSFH Incentive Option Scheme” respectively)

as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise employees.

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was adopted on 20 March 2018. Incentive options
granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption to 31
December 2023 are as follows:

SRITEE (B)
fmd=! $aR EREHAR 171EHA Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS$)
20184F4H26H DRSS A 2018F4H26HE 2019F4H26H=E

2023%4H26H 202454526 H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 - 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
20194E6H5H MRS 201996 A5HE 20206 858H%E
2024%F6H5H 2025%F6H5H

5 June 2019 Cash-settled 5June 2019 - 5 June 2020 - 13.66
5June 2024 5June 2025
20204 7H22H IRt 2020F7TH22HE 2021F7H228E
20255 7H22H 20265 7H22H

22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020 - 22 July 2021 - 7.33
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
20204F8528H DRSS A 20209F8H28HE 2021%F8H28HE
202548H28H 20265F8528H

28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020 - 28 August 2021 - 7.44
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
202110829H MIRES 2021108290 E 2022£F10829HE
20265F10829H 2027510529H

29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021 - 29 October 2022 - 7.46
29 October 2026 29 October 2027
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LR R 7S BB ER A 51 8 (48)

LR & 37 (3 AR 2 F A B RE e EM 5t 21
(&)

(Z) AR mEREIEF=E)

ZEt BRI 2018453208 © EIMANBIE
F2023F 1283101 BFEBREE
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43.

(B)

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive options
granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption to 31
December 2023 which are related to employees of the Group are

as follows:

SRITEE BT
= #8571 e 1T{EHA Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS$)
2020494 28H DRSS A 20209F9H28HE 20219F9H28HE

2025994 28H 20265F9528H
28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020 - 28 September 2021 - 19.89
28 September 2025 28 September 2026

ZERN R AIRITEE RS RET 2
W2 IERBARFFIIRT - MBI Z1TEE
ThHRR RN EE ERRAFIRITEE R
KNERESGUNMEERNEERZM L
MRAELT.039)KRE T > FBABERUT
2BH BRESEFEE | (VAHIRITER
ANERERNERTEREERZMEE Y
W18 5 Re(ii) AHERITEEE, A aAg
HERERTHASEEXHNREBXSM
BEZ FHURHE -

ZEtBRTRER] » R T HESEUERE
FNSH TR AT LUITE - TmEx
REMERZRIAR T > ZRATITEHRB
BYRER - ZEtBIR—ERAER ARIRIRTER
FERITEE AT R BBV IETEIR S
BRENETE > WA G RARAZE T ERAHR
TEERARHERRN

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the respective DSBG and DSFH schemes. The
exercise prices per incentive option were concluded by the NRC
on behalf of the respective Boards of DSBG and DSFH on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and
were determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant;
and (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded
on the SEHK for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The rights granted under the respective schemes shall be
exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from
the first anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to the fulfilment
of the vesting conditions set out in the option award letter, the
grantees may exercise their vested options. No shares of DSBG
or DSFH will be issued to the grantees of the options under the
schemes which are essentially deferred cash incentive schemes
linked to the performance of the grantees and the share price of
DSBG and DSFH.
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43. MR AERIRE S (B) 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)
(2) UBREZ ARG IEAERIREN 2 (B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

(48) (Continued)

(Z) A2 miiZEEr=18 (&) (b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme (Continued)
RAREWERERAES 2 LRSS (UMD A Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to consolidated
BRI T income statement is as follows:

LCEBET 75T HKS$°000 2023 2022
MUIRE 2 2 #ER Cash-settled options - -
LURE T Z R Cash-settled options

IR TS B R A SRS BN RER 5 With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the
BIFR TEERE 2 LIRSS IR > 5 DSBG and DSFH Incentive Option Schemes which are related
AE2EWRH 2 AFETIUZ BN AR EEL to employees of the Group described above, the fair value is
T8 o L2023 F W EIR T UUIRE L TRV determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at
H o 2021 FAELEEFMETFZATEZ reporting date. There were no cash-settled options granted in
MERIREWNT ¢ 2023. The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the

options granted during 2021 are as follows:

REIRITEE
ERIEREEY
DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme

BHH 2021510829H
Grant date 29 October 2021
PRI BAHIRITEERRE (BrT)

Share price of DSBG as at grant date (HKS) 7.46
TEE BT

Exercise price (HKS) 7.46
SEEENAEAGAD)

Expected volatility (Note (i)) 37.22%
HAtESEs ()

Option life (years) 6
R PR (3 (i)

Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.20%
TEHAAG B = (5E(iii)

Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.94%
AR EZ ATE (BT)

Fair value of a share in the option (HKS) 2.01
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43. MR AERIRE S (B) 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)
(Z) UWIREZ UG EAERIREN T2 (B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

(#8) (Continued)

(Z) A#r2FtiZEER =12 () (b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme (Continued)

LIRS {47 #EF (48) Cash-settled options (Continued)

R Note:

(i) RS HAME R TR R HA RS A TR HR R Eh =R B AT (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical
RITERN AT SRENES KSR volatility of the share price of DSBG or DSFH, as appropriate, during
B EEEAESR » JEENEXREEBT the one year period immediately preceding the grant date and
BRI RITERNEEH A —ENRE is based on the assumption that there is no material difference
MFE S RBRMEE » Wl EXXFRYR o between the expected volatility over the time to maturity of the

options and the historical volatility of the share price of DSBG, as
appropriate, as set out above.

(ii) EREANERASBIIEESEENEER (ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of
BFAERATIBREARR RUUR R 2K © relevant time to maturity at grant date.
(i) TEHERREXRZUEBHHMESRESHE - (i) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant
date.
B EERS M BE RENEESTE Movements in the number of options granted to employees of the
BZET Group and their related weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:
AR T E B RER 512 AH R AR 512
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme DSFH Incentive Option Scheme
2023 2022 2023 2022
e &y
Il £ AEE o Eai
RHRAT RART Il 5 PEE

£E8  mETY £8  METH AWER  METY AhER DETS
g HER e SDkET fEE T B DRET e
Rir#E (Bm) Rih%E (Bn)  RiR¥E (Bm)  RHEE (B7)
Number  Weighted Number ~ Weighted ~ Number  Weighted Number ~ Weighted
of DSBG  average  ofDSBG  average  ofDSFH  average  of DSFH  average
sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise
options price  options price  options price  options price
granted (HK$)  granted (HKS) ~ granted (HKS)  granted (HKS)

1818 At1January 14,250,000 12.31 14,750,000 .23 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
o Granted - - - - - - - _
Eia Expired - - - - - = - -
BT Exercised - - - - = = - -
BEH/ R Cancelled/forfeited (700,0000  10.62  (500,000) 993 - - - -
12A31H At 31 December 13,550,000 12.39 14,250,000 1231 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
RE3RAE Exercisable at 31 December 10,440,000 13.48 8,070,000 13.80 240,000 19.89 160,000 19.89
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43. LURRDZASERIRMETE (&)

(Z2) UREZ UG E2EREIRM 5 &
(&)

(Z) AR mLREIEF=E) (48)
MRS Z (2 R ()

MEBEFZURSI 2 EN » AEER
2RO ZHEAFTENEAREES
12,000,0003E7T (20224F :12,000,000387T) ©

RAERESERSHRITHRAEHERAZ
AITIRITEB R A EREF] > 52202345
R2A3IBRFEZ LIRS 2 #H 1T
EBDRANF1.3387TE18.24787T (2022
F 7338 TE18.243 7T) & 19.893 7T
(20224 : 19.89787T) > KMENMBEFHFIER
BR B HA D B 75 0.834F (20224F | 1.64%F) &
1.756E (20224F : 2.754F) ©

44, ETHEERGRVEHE

HEAER LREIMENTRERN P Il EREE
RaBzBEREiE > UWRARPFEAERE
REIAFRRSREERFEARE  AIRERE
EXRaEEEHEH -

() KBRS EHREET EERSMBER
MRAHPEZEHEERER

FERBBEEBTREFARAT (MEBHR
BE)ARZIRPARPETRREEERS °

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme (Continued)
Cash-settled options (Continued)

In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has
recorded liabilities of HK$12,000,000 (2022: HK$12,000,000) with
reference to the fair value of the options at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding cash-settled options
under the DSBG and the DSFH Incentive Option Schemes related
to directors and senior executives of the Group have exercise
price in the range of HK$7.33 to HK$18.24 (2022: HK$7.33 to
HK$18.24) and at HK$19.89 (2022: HKS$19.89) respectively, and a
weighted average remaining vesting period of 0.83 years (2022:
1.64 years) and 1.75 years (2022: 2.75 years) respectively.

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts securities

trading transactions for its customers.



44. THEEASRIHE(E)

() KBRS EHREET EEREMBER
MERAHFEZ THEERER (B)

REBER 2V RN RERNEBPREE 2 S5
BRI EBP REH 2 NGB EE R IR
TE4B%E o 7220235128310 » I PREAERRIE
REENHE29P 2 MW RIBRBIIER RE
M0 RFR2022512831H » &3 BEARNRIER
BN TEMIRE RTERIRIERA o IRH> &8
AR o

LCBBET TTis)T

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has offset
the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the gross amount
of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December 2023, the net
amount was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 29, and as at 31 December 2022, the net amount
was a payable and was included in “Other accounts and accruals”. The

amounts offset are shown below.

HKS’000 2023 2022

FENE B RER 2 FURBER

BAEBRRER 2 RBER

U/ (FEfY) BB REEFER

(2) ZFEEELHHRRBERSMER
RAHPHZEMEERAR

AR PR E

FERGRAEARZHFIBEFRERER
B LURBEERR - FREEHERE - —B
HBIREWNEM > AT RSB FZRTARS
HERIE > MAAABRRBERH SR FREE -
WIRBEENEMN > FRERBF RS T B
EER—RAEEREV IR AR HIEEER
BfEe

Gross amount of accounts receivable

from HKSCC 146,241 9,253
Gross amount of accounts payable

to HKSCC (13) (69,208)
Net amount due from/(to) HKSCC 146,228 (59,955)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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44. EREEHREENEHEE @) 44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(Z) SR iaEETHHERETEESHERR (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
KA SHEEREE () agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

BT AEA £ g (43) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
TEITSEHY « BF@Nh s M SEsE R The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
R AR R B SR T BEEE o to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements.

. IEEGRAHBRARA

REEHE B2 N2

wAEA  RREME
HiZERE RAEA
GRAREE  SiTCER

Related amounts not set
offin the consolidated

statement of
S REFE financial position TRk
amountsof  Netamounts ————————— otk
recognised  offinancial $RTE 238
BHER financial assets (@RS Tt
BEEE  liabilities set presented gk 288
Gross offinthe inthe Financial Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments  EWIREIER subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash $#  enforceable
2023£12A31H At 31 December 2023 financial of financial of financial non-cash collateral Net netting =
WBET 9T HKS$'000 assets position position collateral) received amount  agreements Total
THEE Financial assets
TE&TA Derivative financial instruments 3,324,635 - 3,324,635 (797,336)  (1,493,009) 1,034,290 241,514 3,566,149
jeam BEEGEMEKRRA
WREN  REAHER B2 IS
HeORa REh Related amounts not set
SEEENE e off in the consolidated
Goss  BHIE BLAIEL RoRAE
amountsof  Netamounts financial position BHAT
recognised  offinancial EHMIR A
[l financial liabilities  (BfZ3FRE HEthE
BB  assetssetoff presented HRg) 288
Gross inthe inthe Financial BER Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments ReimR subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash et enforceable
2023F12A831A At 31 December 2023 financial of financial of financial non-cash collateral Net netting a5
WEEFT AT HKS 000 liabilities position position collateral) placed out amount  agreements Total
ERAE Financial liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 1,849,838 - 1,849,838 (1,849,838) - - 635,206 2,485,044
TEEMIE Derivative financial instruments 1,086,501 - 1,086,501 (797,336) (228,572) 60,593 192,918 1,279,419
RIERFRRNEE Trading liabilities 99,853 - 99,853 (99,853) - - - 99,853
HfiRERTER Other accounts and accruals 41317 - 441377 (447,377) - - 7,629,389 8,076,766

238  KIFRITAMRAR 2023F 55



44. EREEHRGENEHEE @) 44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(2) ZPREHLHHEERBEEESHMBRR (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
RAHHEZz EMEEREE R agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)
AEREBERALT E e HE (4B) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
AR UEEEAHBRARA
HRER  RGAHE HRERER

H T BRD R Related amounts not set
LHBEEE  FITreR offin the consolidated

Goss  HEFE statement of Rk
amountsof  Netamounts finandial position SEEIATT
recognised  offinancial $RIA 238
ERRaE financial assets  (BFEFRS SHEfE
BEEE  liabilities set presented AR 258
Gross offinthe inthe Financial Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated instruments  EYCREIA subject to
recognised statement  statement (including Cash F8E  enforceable
2024128318 At 31 December 2022 financial ~ offinancial  of financial non-cash collateral Net netting At
el HKS'000 assets position position collateral) received amount  agreements Total
SRBEE Financial assets
frEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 3,732,908 - 3,732,908 (730,160) (2,002,713) 1,000,035 168,328 3,901,236
ez Antze TR AMBRRERR
RER NGAEE A2 SR
B BR YRR Related amounts not set
cmEEmE  Anoe offin the consolidated
Goss  EEFE statement of FERARE
amountsof  Netamounts financial position SEEIAT
recognised  offinancial $HIA 238
[BliREa financial liabilities  (BFEFERE HEfE
BELE assets set presented i) 258
Gross offinthe inthe Financial BER Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments Rewmm subject to
recognised statement  statement (including Cash 8 enforceable
2020F12A318 At 31 December 2022 financial of financial of financial non-cash collateral Net netting At
el HKS$°000 liabilities position position collateral) placed out amount  agreements Total
SRER Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,245,724 - 1,245,724 (1,245,724) - - 2,866,769 4112493
fTE$RMIA Derivative financial instruments 873,366 - 873,366 (730,160) (102,009) 41,197 124,271 997,637
FIERZERNER  Tradingliabilities 730,491 - 730,491 (730,491) - - - 730,491
HftiRER AR Other accounts and accruals 700,345 - 700,345 (700,345) - - 7,214,684 7,915,029
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N ABERTERZBERHERRE M HBRERZER
PHINER > BUAIFHEBEFREMBHRERZ—

e

1. BXRELE

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as
part of the accompanying information to the consolidated financial
statements and does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2023%F 20224
12H31H 12431H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BATELEE Capital adequacy ratio
—EiBRE—R - Common Equity Tier 1 16.2% 15.2%
——#R - Tier1 16.9% 15.9%
— 5 - Total 21.2% 19.3%

2023F12831HK2022F 12831 H 2 EARTELL
KTLARIRITHAR S AT (BB RPIR ZE R T R A HT
ER1T (RED) ) IRBRCERTTZE (B ) :RADN B Em 15
ENERE c ZEATEILENHAEEER
FThIZ R PR AR IERE R o

RIBEBIRITERD - FIRTHEBEMIRITE
BTEAREILRRMEER - MPIFHERITAR
ST RRPIIRTT R B BRI E R AHIRTT (FE)
RESTARTERTEEERNNEE

AT E(IRTE (RE) KA > AEAEEGEESE
A AR 88 Z ZRINE R E T B A IR T4
Hhttp://www.dahsing.com > I FJ A& T E%E
#5 © http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.html#E A ©

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering BCM
and DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account
market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to the Mainland banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.
html.



UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2. fARRLEE

2. LEVERAGE RATIO

2023 20224

12A31H 12A31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BIRLEE Leverage ratio 11.2% 10.6%

LR ABITZFERRZ LR RIZE AT ELL
RZIERGEERE o

AHAE(IRTEER) R > EHAEHE
BEEXRBHNENETHENARITHEE
http://www.dahsing.com > i A] & b T & %
H4% . http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_
us/regulatory_disclosures.html& A o

3.  REMMEMERFLEE

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of the Bank and
are computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital adequacy
ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio is
published in the Bank’s website at http://www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/
en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2023 2022

TENEMERFEE R

MBS LR T AIRTT (BERPIEERITRAK
ER1T (PED) R EESER AR THEGEa R
BMAERF LRV B TIOR8 o MENEMERFLERTD
RBCRITE (REM) FRADEE -

FIRTTRHEBEMIRITARBEBRITEEAE
STREMETENR - RPIFERTABTARR
FIRTTEEBRIRERAIIRT (PE) BETH
RIEIRITRE ERIRTE ©

Liquidity maintenance ratio 64.0% 50.4%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated LMR of the Bank (covering BCM and DSB China)
for the financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is
subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to the
Mainland banking regulations.
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4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2023 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2023 and 2022. The net position is calculated in the basis
of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option contracts.

Hftohgs SNBSS

il Other Total

20237128310  At31December 2023 E5T BRIt AR Macau foreign foreign
HERGEET Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Euro Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
RELE Spot assets 80,496 1,054 16,286 10,028 10,091 117,955
BEas Spot liabilities (56,183) (1,580) (15,414) (10,625) (7,521) (91,323)
=HIB A Forward purchases 87,748 2,429 31,383 - 19,741 141,301
EHEY Forward sales (110,039) (1,577) (32,820) - (22,389) (166,825)
HAte B R Net options position (420) (34) 532 - 3 81
E/ () &35 Net long/(short) position 1,602 292 (33) (597) (75) 1,189
HAthh& MBS

pealishict Other Total

2022F12A31H At 31 December 2022 ET NG Macau foreign foreign
THER GEET Equivalent in HKS millions USdollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
BEEE Spot assets 72,101 16,890 9,502 9,356 107,849
BEaE Spot liabilities (55,594) (15,503) (10,912) (10,016) (92,025)
2HIB A Forward purchases 41,010 5,859 - 16,671 63,540
BEHEY Forward sales (56,946) (6,958) - (16,027) (79,931)
HANES R Net options position 33 3 - (a7 19
E/(5) &35 Net long/(short) position 604 291 (1,410) (33) (548)

RIERITARAE 2023FF%




5. (RIEREREEZEEINDI 5.

() BITEDEZERERRBMREER (U (a)
ERARIARURERRFEENE D

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans and

e ) analysed by percentage covered by collateral
2023F12H31H 20225124311
At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
[ EdE BRI
ZIERmIRE SR RRE
ZER ZB7t
% of gross % of gross
loans and loans and
KERGES advances KEBRGER advances
Outstanding covered by Outstanding covered by
LOBEF 5T HKS$’000 balance collateral balance collateral
EEAERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TE&R Industrial, commercial and financial
o E:d= - Property development 6,908,262 60.1 5,194,440 63.5
—MELE - Property investment 23,767,506 91.4 21,406,840 88.0
o e - Financial concerns 3,607,794 14.0 2,564,573 16.0
-2 - Stockbrokers 1,240,252 46.9 842,926 56.9
—HERETEY - Wholesale and retail trade 4,791,670 88.5 4,825,599 9.7
— Bl - Manufacturing 1,684,066 67.7 1,954,317 445
— BRI REERE - Transport and transport equipment 2,662,549 80.8 2,247,726 78.2
—BASEE) - Recreational activities 62,840 99.1 79,708 99.8
—BRHE - Information technology 29,760 50.8 22,048 59.8
—Hfth - Others 6,062,815 75.7 6,054,928 80.1
50,817,514 77.1 45,193,105 776
A Individuals
—HEREFHRHE - Loans for the purchase of flats in
IAAZEER LK Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[TREEHE B EFER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 467,752 99.3 484,470 99.7
—BEHEMEENEERN - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 34,954,353 99.9 33,911,826 100.0
—-EREER - Credit card advances 3,841,087 - 3,674,222 -
—Hffh - Others 13,530,504 50.4 12,181,304 45.0
52,793,696 79.9 50,251,822 793
EEEFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 103,611,210 78.5 95,444,927 78.5
BERE (3H(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,624,799 73.1 5,752,611 72.5
AEBLIMERNER (GE(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 33,813,467 56.8 35,332,833 61.4
143,049,476 73.2 136,530,371 73.8
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(a)

Note:

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans
and analysed by percentage covered by collateral
(Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the
HKMA.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.



5. f{REREREEZEEIMNIH (48)

() BITEDEZ2EREMRBMRLEER (U
ERARSARUAZERRFEENE S

EE#7) (48)
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans
and analysed by percentage covered by collateral
(Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of loans and advances to customers,
the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and
Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

=E05
Bk
BEKEE PEER1 R PSR 2
AEER #iB3fEA FEER3 AEERE
(BER3)  Grossloans HEEE  Stageland
RIEBEER Impaired and advances Stage 3 Stage 2
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Outstanding loans  overduefor impairment  impairment
LOBEEF 5T HKS’000 balance (Stage3) over3months  allowances  allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TESH Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 23,767,506 470,739 546,729 31,720 64,506
BA Individuals
—BEHMEE - Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 34,954,353 170,938 179,532 31,933 217,440
EEBLUMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 33,813,467 1,269,535 995,898 147,671 149,084
(£
PR
AEARER PRER LR ER2
AEER Him3fEa PEEL3 AEZEE
(F5E&3)  Gross loans BEZEE  Stageland
KEBER Impaired  and advances Stage 3 Stage2
202212A31H At 31 December 2022 Outstanding loans  overduefor  impairment  impairment
LOBIETF T i5m HKS’000 balance (Stage3) over3months allowances allowances
EEEERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEsH Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 21,406,840 34,299 92,035 2,095 138,453
BA Individuals
—BEEMAE - Loans for the purchase of other
ST residential properties 33,911,826 81,842 92,156 11,350 24,518
AEBLIMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 35,332,833 1,685,840 1,413,348 618,858 261,878
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5. fREREREREZERIMN IR (48) 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(2) HPEAMEEFIEREE (b) Mainland activities exposures

RESEZERCRITE KE) RA) > UTHH The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the categories

BARBEEBNGRIEZ DMHSREBSERET

Bl KFEREFZHRRRPAAIZIFRITERZH T4

of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures defined
by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with reference to

M ERETEEREENDE » HhREERR
TRERMIBTNBARR T2 REAEERR

the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which includes the Mainland
activities exposures extended by the Bank and its Mainland subsidiary

BREE ©
bank only.
BEAERA EEAERI)
HEREE HYERER
2023F 2023 On-balance Off-balance agrER
LB 5 HK$’000 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
L FRRET > RREEESR 1 Central government, central government-

HERAWEATAAE
A7 (BEAR))

TR > HAEAH
HEREWEATAAE
2

BiaT a2z BRI
SRR
RAENEATAAEAT

RO LB A2
RIS

R LB RS2
IEGERLUL

BEATERLNZER
SEPEAAL A
> T RAERI
EotEr

R T - R
(RSP EAREETES
FHEE

KRITREMMIRTHB AR Z
NirskkcEELS

S

246  KIFRITAIRAR 2023F 55

BREMGFEGEESS
[EB)

:

-\

L2 RERREEE P AN

BT -

owned entities and their subsidiaries and

joint ventures (“JVs”) 5,335,030 - 5,335,030
2. Local governments, local government-owned

entities and their subsidiaries and JVs

767,841 599,965 1,367,806

3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or

other entities incorporated in Mainland China

and their subsidiaries and JVs 9,281,772 1,578,580 10,860,352
4. Other entities of central government not

reported in item 1 above 4,812,981 69,574 4,882,555
5. Other entities of local governments not

reported in item 2 above 760,676 135,329 896,005

6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China

or entities incorporated outside Mainland

China where the credits are granted for use in

Mainland China 9,777,277 274,183 10,051,460
7. Other counterparties where the exposures are

considered to be non-bank Mainland China

exposures 475,299 344 475,643

31,210,876 2,657,975 33,368,851

Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
subsidiary bank after provision 242,059,031

On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
total assets 12.89%

B HME R R ZE Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
other balances of claims on the customers.



5. (EEREREEZRBIND IR (48) 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(CONTINUED)
(Z) HAPEAPEEFEIVERRE (4B) (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBREA BEBEERN
(ERER if
20225 2022 On-balance Off-balance HBERER
LB IAR HK$’000 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1 HRBFF RREBFFESYN L Central government, central government-
REREWBARNEE owned entities and their subsidiaries and
YN=I joint ventures 7,328,050 106,667 7,434,717
2. BB MBBEEBR 2. Local governments, local government-owned
REREWBARNEE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
A7 631,492 592,303 1,223,795
3. BAETERMZERRE 3. PRCnationals residing in Mainland China or
R Pyt pR T Y EL A other entities incorporated in Mainland China
MEMBRATMEE AT and their subsidiaries and JVs 10,500,933 1,932,334 12,433,267
4, REHELNFEIBERZT 4 Otherentities of central government not
NIRRT E MRS reported in item 1 above 3,753,802 71,984 3,825,786
5 REELMETIBE®RZM 5. Other entities of local governments not
FHER R E Mg reported in item 2 above 943,649 170,022 1,113,671
6. BEETERMLUINZER 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
FAEFEPH ML I or entities incorporated outside Mainland
e MY RNEFIF China where the credits are granted for use in
Bl 5 Mainland China 11,535,421 593,574 12,128,995
7. HMRZHF  HEFEHE 7. 0ther counterparties where the exposures are
TERRE AR ERITRR considered to be non-bank Mainland China
PHEREE exposures 440,041 - 440,041
35,133,388 3,466,884 38,600,272
ARITRARMIRT Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
B AR08 subsidiary bank after provision
Bz EESs 237,109,784
BEAERANGSR On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
HEEARHBENT total assets 14.82%
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5. (EEREREEZRBIND IR (48) 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(CONTINUED)

(R) BEEDTZEREMKRBREERE (c)
HAER

ERERKBRZEHAOFTHIRBEES B RERE
B2z XZHFRAEMDE - —KRME > BEW
FUERA EEARZHFAEZ @EE - EERE
W -

Analysis of gross loans and advances to customers and
overdue loans by geographical area

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into account
the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

TERBEFLERKBRRE  HEZTRERKLR
R (PEER3) ~ BT P BB  FEER3 ~ K&
BRI PER2BEREEIZRIDT ©

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to customers,
impaired loans and advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue loans and
advances to customers, Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment
allowances by geographical area.

HEZREM
ZREG RBER(EE) ABEREH PRER 1R P ER2
ok e Impaired RE#h FEER3 HEERE
Gross loans and Overdue W{E%fE  Stageland
loansand  advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 advances to customers advancesto  impairment  impairment
LOBIETF T idm HKS000 customers (Stage 3) customers  allowances  allowances
s Hong Kong 119,759,434 2,259,148 1,771,878 422,162 552,353
R Mainland China 7,546,867 334,757 205,675 27,347 46,698
P Macau 14,012,453 185,656 185,656 35,746 19,272
Hh Others 1,730,722 = 4,380 = 9,678
143,049,476 2,779,561 2,167,589 485,255 628,001

AEERER
EREF REF(EHR3) RBEXFEX PEER LR fER2
REBTUEEE Impaired KB PEER3 REERE
Gross loans and Overdue BEZEE  Stageland
loansand  advancesto loans and Stage 3 Stage2
202212A31H At 31 December 2022 advances to customers  advancesto  impairment  impairment
LOBEF 5T HKS’000 customers (Stage3) customers allowances allowances
E# Hong Kong 115,359,550 1,605,378 1,084,661 538,724 682,729
FRER R Mainland China 6,387,927 688,723 525,172 259,363 36,674
e Macau 13,466,387 244911 244911 88,966 20,320
Eth Others 1,316,507 - - - 9,626
136,530,371 2,539,012 1,855,344 887,053 749,349
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
JESRITRAN SR
Non-bank private sector

e

JESRAT FhAHRE

ERbE Non-

EAE Non-bank financial
2023128318 At 31 December 2023 R1T Official financial private R4
BEBT In millions of HKS Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BRI Offshore centres 5,913 8,819 7,129 158,640 180,501
—Hh &5 - of which: Hong Kong 5,197 7,109 6,728 142,097 161,131
ERTPTAR Developing Asia and Pacific 25,060 1,271 3,173 16,882 46,386
—Erh : hERH - of which: Mainland China 15,920 1,100 3,016 11,550 31,586

JERITRANIEE
Non-bank private sector

=

FERIT YN

TRl Non-

EAEE Non-bank financial

2022128318 At 31 December 2022 #17 Official financial private (L

BEBT In millions of HKS Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
B Offshore centres 6,660 8,643 5483 152,869 173,655
—Hf EE - of which: Hong Kong 5,822 7,398 5,399 137,402 156,021
BRPGLE Developing Asia and Pacific 27,231 1,094 1,375 17,580 47,280
—Hr PR - of which: Mainland China 19,734 949 1,106 12,901 34,690
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages

39 to 239, comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

. Recoverable amount of the investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)

. Information Technology - Implementation of the new core

banking system
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
impairment allowances of HK$1,113,256
thousand in respect of its advances to
customers.

The determination of the impairment
allowances involves complex methodologies
and significant management judgement.
During the year, the uncertainties in economic
environments in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, including but not limited to the dynamic
situation in the China real estate sector, have
continued to impact the inherent risk and
estimation uncertainty involved in estimating
impairment allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECL include:

+  Segmentation of portfolios based on
credit risk characteristics, selection of
appropriate model methodologies and
determination of key measurement
parameters and assumptions;

+  Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (“SICR”), or a default;

« Determination of macro-economic
forecasts, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings; and

+  The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3.

Impairment allowances on advances to
customers is an audit focus due to the high
inherent risk given the uncertainty of estimates,
adoption of complex models, involvement
of significant management judgements and
assumptions.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls for the measurement of
impairment allowances on advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

« We tested controls over selection of ECL
model methodologies and segmentation of
portfolios, determination and approval of key
measurement parameters and assumptions
such as staging, macro-economic forecasts
and their related probability weightings;

«  We involved our credit risk experts in
evaluating the model methodologies for ECL
measurement including segmentation of
portfolios, key measurement parameters and
assumptions;

+ Wetested controls over timely identification,
assessment and reporting of credit impaired
advances to customers;

«Onasampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of the internal credit
ratings, management’s judgements used
in determining significant increases in
credit risk and identification of credit-
impaired advances to customers based on
the borrowers’ financial and non-financial
information and other evidence provided by
management;

+  We evaluated management’s selection
of macro-economic forecasts, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned. We
assessed the reasonableness of the macro-
economic forecasts by comparing them
to available public information, and other
current macro-economic conditions; and



FREEER) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

WREHEE BN E R RS B Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRBIHREER (BHEEE%) (B) Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)
¢ BMERTHEZRRERE + Wetested controls over estimated future cash
TNEH AR REURE flows and calculation of present values with
EAEEMRER o HRER respect to advances to customers in Stage
F-RENERERELS B 3. For a sample of advances to customers in
e T B ERRAHER Stage 3, we assessed the reasonableness of
FERNEREIEEEAGE key management judgements and estimates
SHEEEN B ATHE used in the ECL calculation such as estimated
TABEHNAREERE ] future cash flow from borrowers, collateral
RaftE  UREEESNE valuations, range of scenarios and scenarios
2B weightings.
EREAmBTNER  2ERN Based on the procedures performed, we considered
BRI RERETERAE that the models, significant judgements and
FEARMFERNRLE  EXHE assumptions, as well as key parameters used by
MBRREESH o management in measuring impairment allowances

on advances to customers were supported by
available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverable amount of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging (“B0CQ”)

Refer to notes 4(d) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is accounted
for as an associate, using the equity method.
The Group recorded net investment in BOCQ
of HK$2,215,131 thousand at 31 December
2023, after making a cumulative provision for
impairment of HK$5,227,000 thousand as at
year end. The provision forimpairment charged
to the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$552,000
thousand.

The gross carrying amount of the investment
(prior to impairment allowances) was
higher than the market value of BOCQ as
at 31 December 2023. This is considered
as an indicator of impairment. Therefore,
management performed an impairment
assessment and concluded that the recoverable
amount of the investment in BOCQ was lower
than its gross carrying amount, leading to an
impairment allowance. The recoverable amount
was measured as value-in-use (“VIU”) estimate
calculated by discounted cash flow model.

The recoverable amount of the investment in
BOCQ is an audit focus as it is subject to a high
degree of estimation uncertainty, particularly
in estimating net profit growth rates, dividend
pay-out ratio and the estimated disposal
proceeds of BOCQ and in determining the
discount rate. The inherent risk is considered
significant due to the subjectivity involved in
management judgements and assumptions
used in developing the estimate.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls for the measurement of
recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

+ Weinvolved internal valuation experts
in assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation models used by the management
and the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations;

«  We evaluated the reasonableness of key
assumptions and inputs including discount
rate, net profit growth rates, dividend pay-
out ratio and estimated disposal proceeds
used by the management based on relevant
supporting evidence and our knowledge of
the business and industry;

+ Wedeveloped our range of VIU estimates with
the support of internal valuation experts, by
using independent inputs and assumptions,
and compared these with management’s
estimates; and

+ We discussed with management, obtained
representations from the management and
obtained evidence to corroborate the key
assumptions used were consistent with
information currently available to the Group.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the assumptions and inputs used
in the impairment assessment of the investment in
BOCQ to be reasonable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Information Technology - Implementation of the new core banking system

In April 2023, the Group implemented a new
core banking system (the “new core system”)
which replaced the existing core banking
systems. The new core system supports the
Group’s Corporate Banking and Retail Banking
business operations, such as the opening
of customer accounts and the processing of
various customer transactions.

The new core system is used in the calculations
of interest income, interest expense, fee
income and fee expense, and the generation
of key system reports relevant to our audit.
The implementation of the new core system
involved interfaces of the new core system
with other systems in scope of our audit, as
well as the migration of financial and non-
financial data from the existing core banking
systems to the new core system. Therefore, the
implementation of the new core system is an
audit focus.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls over the implementation of the
new core system.

We have performed the following procedures:

+  We evaluated management’s testing of the
new system functionalities involved in the
calculations of interest income, interest
expense, fee income and fee expense, the
generation of key system reports and the
interfaces of the new core system with other
in-scope systems, by reviewing the user
acceptance test results and management
approval and sign off;

+ We tested management’s controls over the
validation of the completeness and accuracy
of the financial data migrated from the
existing core banking systems to the new core
system;

+  We tested the reconciliation of financial
data between the new core system and
the existing core banking systems as at the
implementation date of the new core system;
and

« We performed testing over the system
functionalities mentioned above.

Based on the procedures performed over the
implementation of the new core system, we did not
identify any matter which may impact our reliance
on the new core system.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2023

255



HthE2

BRTEFAERNHEMERSES o HiE R EEE
BANFAERER » EFE %i B HRER R
BIRZEEDER S -

BRPBFEMHRENERTTREEMES
WA ZF EAME R SR ATV ERE

A
am ©

EERMEREMHFRROE iﬂéTFﬁE’\JfE%
ﬁﬁ%% LhER » EIBERET » TEEMESR
E—i?v:.Hﬁ“%ﬁ?ﬁi@%ﬂdﬁf%u+L7FzE?3ﬁET%¢E’JIE
MEFEERRBNEMUFFEERERRABIE
W o

ERRAERTHIE > IRBRFRDAEMER
FEEAHERRL > RMAREREZFE - E6
FE  BFPRBEEERE -

EERBFREENRS
HEE

PATSERRIAAIE

%ﬁﬁﬁ%?’ﬁ%f*ﬁ#*%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi’&@ﬁﬁ#ﬁE’\J<<*
BUBRSERDREB(REEANREREMS
BRGREMHBRE  THARARTELRSHHR
KORBAFEHENRGFHERMERNEREE
SRERIMFT RN BPIERIE S

ARFERTYHBREE > EF88NE E5E
SREASERIAEY] WA BN TR E R AL
EAMNEE  URERFEEER G ER
MIFESARR BEEBEIFLES > =5
EHMBERNERTSE

FIEREEGREERE SEENMHBREERE

KITIRITARAT 2023F 5%

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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4317 Branch ik Address EE Tel f#HE Fax

KIERITER AR

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

ERFRT ERFROESE = SRRt E

Aberdeen Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3, 2554 5463 2554 0843
Aberdeen Centre

EEFEPODT BRE18SEE LS — 1210555

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 2529 1338 31102818
No. 18 Harcourt Road

RSS2 1T TSRS ET [EFHE4685% S M Fn 2 RO\ T K&

Causeway Bay G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre, 2891 2201 2591 6037
No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

REZT B EEIE R 1 9SRIR TR A B T T ASR AR

Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 25218134 2526 9427

M\EWDTT 1655 £18293-2995 1= AE i T 15-2257 4 K &

Fortress Hill Shop No. 15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

Eih 1T R #1358 HNASEES

BT 5 B F51 SREFNAEH A 25720708 2572 0718

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, Happy Valley

HIEWD1T SRS 10058 B TE MR AT TE AT 218 234-2355%

Heng Fa Chuen Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 2558 7485 2889 2520
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

prsuEstT 0 | B BT 2UE1645%

Johnston Road 164 Johnston Road, Wan Chai 2572 8849 28913743

bln=:ha ki HE23E433-43T5R BRI A E

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 28114474

ERKRERAT BF ERARER248F A ERAOM N GT, GTAKG85E

Queen’s Road East Shop No. G7, GTA & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 23218912 2598 5300
248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai

BHEEDT B EBIEST-8TSR R 22 1EH T G851

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

ABIEEZT e ARIETA43-4535F 3 T 15- 16904

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

HIRSBT FIREEE 2885k Z E A E M B2t EE—1EBE

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 25812216

AEFA1T BERANGIMABES LSRR & 1t N 501585

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road & 2884 4802 28843151

No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

RIERITARAE 2023FF%



LISTS OF BRANCHES

4317 Branch ik Address EE Tel fEHE Fax

KIERITER AR

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

RVEST R EIE889SREER L T 1555

Cheung Sha Wan Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road 2361 0951 2958 0985

BIEHT BIBRIE 19 B A B T ATRER

Chong Yip Street Shop A, G/F., Montery Plaza, 19 Chong Yip Street, 23893911 2389 8239
Kwun Tong

AT AT BRI ST 2858 S M R T3 K45k » 1IE25R & Ko 21835k &

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop No. 3 on 2/F, 23658110 23635917
Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EH31T SR BEE3355%

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 23850161 27820993

EZEDT =R A AR5 78 10AH NN26E K Foéd

Mei Foo Sun Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V, 2370 2660 23702006

Chuen Mei Foo Sun Chuen

BEA 2T B A S 2B 69755

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 23919104

REHDT BB AT 105 N AR

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 21918103 21918723

ERIEE ST N BB EEES— R —18F5A-FAASE

Telford Gardens Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

RIVIBSTT VDR BEE66- 705 B THAE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 23669121 23111491

HAMAT EAAUBA NSRS FGICHER

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

SHRE 31T SRR SR FUE 561575

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 23859285

MERT 28 B AN B 88T AN B 5 FAL11-A1452110- 112574

Fanling Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza, 2677 8830 2669 9950
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

EEMT LS S R 17857 & B N 25

Kwai Fong Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung 2487 8033 2489 1253

BN 1T BRI R 15 The LOHASEE 418414555

LOHAS Park Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road, 28382023 27196373

Tseung Kwan O
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4317 Branch ik Address EE Tel f#HE Fax
KIERITRRAE
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
ERLUESST FERZ P8 7) %6085 FEBE LU 35 = 18335555
Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan
BRES1T AR EE339E 5 7)I%108 D-ESfE#H
Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 24351368 24351582
Bl 1T P22 58 168-23657% /EiliEH 11 5 93-955% 5
Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130
DIHE 1T 87D IE3E286-2885% M T
Sha Tsui Road G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 26151510 26151099
WHBT YO EREFE O T 95k ER
Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 26012413
ka7 KT B8 55-595% JKERIE I T Bt AR
Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 2671 5030 2672 1533
KIEA1T AL IR 1SR AIHE IS T 5355 K 5455 &6
Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No. 1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637
KESDT VDA B8 55-565F R EAT14- 1850 18 CEI# T 1R 25554
Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 26911272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
KIKER1T FKBEIRIBHE TR BRI K B 153 LI L 120555
Tin Shui Wai Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre, 2448 9008 24489112
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai
RHER HE EBMCP Discovery—181275%
FEBF A OAT
Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O 29272101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza
2HEBT EEAE14-165 5B NE
Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984
BRIRT TP & 48 52-62 57 B A1 N 457 K555
Tuen Mun Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion, 24416218 24416613
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
BORAMT AU L SRR B SR 1S BRI B 3 2355
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
TCRAE BT TCRAR LA RS T BAEL162- 1685k A A& 1 T Cotar
Yuen Long Castle Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road, 2479 4555 2479 4522
Peak Road Yuen Long

RIERITARAE 2023FF%
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LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

4317 Branch

ithiik Address

EiE Tel

JBPIB1T

Macau Branches
PEART

Main Branch
REST
Almirante Lacerda
HERT

lao Hon

BEST

Kin Wa

BEFRTAT
La Cite
EE 1T
Mercadores
EB1T
Nape

BERST
Palha

Bt SH2 1T
Pedro Coutinho
a7

Toi San

F S AR5 7258

Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572
TELEMIR B K S E843-BoE

Avenida Do Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B
EEINE— 7455t T3 A (5—HA) # FACEE
Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC
BIVIRIEIE BER 245 R I B 13 EE M FARE

Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,
Bloco 13 R/CA

EIDIRAET230-2385R B F R MU ~ VEE

Rua Central da Areia Preta No. 230-238, R/CU e R/CV
SR 40581 S ARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/CA

RE L 536357 E S H 0\ T ORE

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

E AT T AE

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/CA

=i S1725- DS B SR S BREE

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B
BLLERDIAE+— AR T EE 55 18R N CCRE
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2822 8380

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2821 6523

(853) 2823 8483

BIFED1T

Taipa Branch

KIFRFIEW DT
Prince Flower City
Taipa

CFIR BRI AT R FTE — REFT R T 1R
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BIRED1T

Coloane Branch

BIRDTT

Coloane

FRIRE SR 75t T DEE
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Annual Report 2023

263



264

4317 Branch ithiik Address E3E Tel

K#ER1T (RE) BRAR

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

41T R R R BR ER 50165 R 100K [EARELS1E

Head Office 15/F, Tower A, Kingkey100 Building, 5016 Shennan Road East, (86-755) 2519 9033

AW TT
Shenzhen Nanshan

Sub-Branch
EM31T

Guangzhou

LB
Shanghai

AEST
Nanchang
HIRT
Zhenjiang
LT

Foshan Sub-Branch

Shenzhen
FYImmELE O T2 s 8250 (J0@) 4-THEIZ 12345

Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),
Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

EREBEMNTHSEEARILE6045EAMIRITAIELE

1/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604 North Renmin Road,

Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
EEmiIOEEARES5015% E/5H EMES15/806, 0T8T
Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza,

No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai
LB mEmERAESELEK136571-2/E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
TLERE SR L R (& AR ER 595%

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

ER AL TR EEERIRE KSR B R IRRE A
111155 ~ 120%H

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,

Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng, Nanhai District,
Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 5598 7000

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555

RIERITARAE 2023FF%



Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#iR{TH R A El

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EBEFERKER248 AR A 02618

Telephone E:E : (852) 2507 8866 o
Facsimile fEE : (852) 2598 5052 */1.3

MIX
Paper | Supporting responsible forestry

FSC HE3R | XI5 AREHME
Website ~ #83t : www.dahsing.com s FSC” C176382
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